» o

|
» CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

Notice of meeting of

Decision Session - Executive Member for City Strategy

To: Councillor Steve Galloway (Executive Member)
Date: Tuesday, 20 October 2009
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA

Notice to Members - Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10:00 am on Monday 19 October 2009, if an item is called in before
a decision is taken, or

4:00 pm on Thursday 22 October 2009, if an item is called in after a
decision has been taken.

Iltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

Any written representations in respect of items on this agenda
should be submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00 pm on
Friday 16 October 2009.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this
agenda.

YORKPRIDE www.york.gov.uk



Minutes (Pages 3 - 16)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last City Strategy
Decision Session held on 1 September 2009.

Public Participation - Decision Session

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The
deadline for registering is 5:00 pm on Monday 19 October
2009.

Members of the public may speak on items on the agenda or
an issue within the Executive Member’s remit.

Beckfield Lane - Extension of Cycle Route (Pages 17 - 44)
Following the recent introduction of off-road cycle facilities on the
east side of Beckfield Lane between Boroughbridge Road and
Ostman Road, this report looks at extending these facilities to
maximise the potential for promoting safe and sustainable travel
to nearby schools, shops and other facilities.

Petition Concerning the Erection of Bollards and Chicanes
to Prevent Speeding on Etty Avenue (Pages 45 - 56)

This report advises the Executive Member for City Strategy of the
receipt of a petition from residents of Etty Avenue. The petition
requests that the Council take steps to tackle the speed of traffic
on Etty Avenue with the erection of chicanes and bollards.

Petition concerning Speeding Traffic at the Entrance to
West Bank Park from the Junction of New Lane and Hill
Street (Pages 57 - 66)
This report advises the Executive Member for City Strategy of the
receipt of a petition from residents of New Lane and Hill Street.
The petition requests that the Council takes steps to tackle the
speed of traffic on the junction of New Lane and Hill Street
opposite West Bank Park.

Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS) Policy (Pages 67 - 74)
This report contains suggested policy guidelines for the use of
vehicle activated sign installations to assess their effectiveness.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Street Furniture Removal (Pages 75 - 80)
This report seeks approval for an annual budget from the Capital
Programme to reduce the amount of street furniture on the
highway network and for new highway schemes to go through a
street furniture audit during the design stage.

A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements (Pages 81 - 98)
This report sets out options for the outline design for the
proposed improvements to the A19/A1237 roundabout to reduce
delays at this location and asks the Executive Member to
approve the design and public consultation strategy.

Crichton Avenue - Proposed Improvements for Cyclists
(Pages 99 - 124)

This report discusses the outcome of detailed design work and

public consultation on proposals to improve conditions for cycling

along Crichton Avenue. The Executive Member is asked to

approve a scheme for implementation.

Cycling Infrastructure within York - Principles,
Standards and Evaluation Tool (Pages 125 - 160)

This report considers the design of future cycling infrastructure for
York and presents a set of standards to be adopted. In addition, it
also considers a tool by which a direct comparison of cycling
schemes and their relative benefits can be made.

City of York's Local Transport Plan 3 - Consultation

Strategy (Pages 161 - 166)

This report outlines the consultation strategy to be adopted for
preparing York’s Third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) to cover the
period from 2011 onwards, and seeks the Executive Members
approval.

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under
the Local Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officer:

Name: Jill Pickering
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552061
e E-mail —jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

e Registering to speak

e Business of the meeting

e Any special arrangements
e Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above




Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00
pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing
online on the Council’s website. Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the
full agenda are available from Democratic Services. Contact the Democracy
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the
agenda requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you. The meeting
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing
loop. We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours
for Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign
language interpreter then please let us know. Contact the Democracy Officer
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the
meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in another
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing
sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this
service.

T AT TS (AT ST 2T =L G (FI ST T WARAT 56 T AT (b8 T ZA, §F T W
0 T TN 0T (R T S S (RIS AR T4 T | BRI a (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terciiman bulmalk icin mimkin olan hersey vapiacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

RS DERMIERAFEE TN RES A » 4 R ERIEMA BN TS ZHEE
=EIOERAS. |ES (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550uéJf-iufﬁ’“f@gd/é_fuu,ﬁ}E’aL}“ﬁﬁ'q_J@ $re e st Sl

Informacja mozie byé dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550



Page 2

Holding the Executive to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny
Management Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the
Council is to:
¢ Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as
necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to
which they are appointed by the Council;
e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for
the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
MEETING DECISION SESSION - EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR
CITY STRATEGY
DATE 1 SEPTEMBER 2009
PRESENT COUNCILLOR STEVE GALLOWAY (EXECUTIVE
MEMBER)
19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

20.

21.

22,

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any personal
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.
None were declared.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting of the Decision
Session — Executive Member for City Strategy held on
7 July 2009 be approved and signed by the Executive
Member as a correct record.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - DECISION SESSION

It was reported that there had been nine registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. Details of these
speakers are set out under the individual agenda items.

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY - AMENDMENT TO THE DECISION IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SCARCROFT VIEW GATING ORDER,
MICKLEGATE WARD

The Executive Member considered a report, which sought approval to
amend the decision made at the Decision Session of 7 July 2009 in
respect of the Gating Order to close the access/gap in the boundary
leading onto Scarcroft Green. Following the meeting it had come to light
that the Council had no power to seek a financial contribution from the
public to install highway furniture.

The Executive Member referred to receipt of written representations from
the following five local residents:
e Jaki Boston, of Scarcroft View in support of residents paying a
deposit for a key to a gate onto the Green;
e Katherine Nightingale also of Scarcroft View and in support of the
proposals and the payment of a deposit for a key;
e Lyn Kellett of Scarcroft View who had asked for further details in
relation to the allocation of keys;



Page 4

e Rob King of Scarcroft Road referring to recent problems
encountered by residents in the area in relation to anti social
behaviour and supporting the closure of the gap and the funding of
the work by the Council;

e Peter Lyons, in support of the proposals and issue of keys to
residents.

Councillor Merrett expressed his opposition to the proposals, as he
understood that this was a private alley and not a public right of way.
Officers confirmed that a private highway had the same legal standing as a
public highway and that this also fell under the Highway Act.

The Executive Member confirmed that residents of Scarcroft View should
continue to have access to the Green though a newly provided gate as
agreed at the last Decision Session. He also confirmed that he did
however have to accept legal advice, which meant amending the decision
to allow keys to be loaned to residents in return for a small deposit. He
pointed out that he could see no reason to include a hardship clause, as
residents were free to decide whether or not they required this type of
access.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member amends the original
decision taken at the meeting on 7 July 2009 (minute
16) and resolves to:

(i) Authorise the Director of City Strategy to instruct the
Head of Civic, Democratic and Legal Services to make
a Gating Order to close the access point/gap in the
boundary, leading onto Scarcroft Green from Scarcroft
Road back lane, Micklegate Ward, in accordance with
s129A of the Highways Act 1980 and to provide a gate
at that point. "

(i) Requests Officers to advise residents of Scarcroft
View that the council may issue any person with a key
to access the gate upon receipt of a reasonable
deposit (amount to be determined by the Director of
City Strategy). This deposit is refundable at any time
on the safe return of the key. The number of keys
gnade available to be restricted to one per household.

REASONS: (i) In order that the access point/gap in the railings,
leading onto Scarcroft Green from Scarcroft Road
back lane, Micklegate Ward, can be restricted to help
prevent crime and anti-social behaviour currently
associated with the back lane.

(i) To allow access to those members of the public who
wish to use it whilst implementing a deterrent to those
who are causing the issues associated with the back
lane.



23.

Page 5

Action Required

1. Gating Order to be made. SS
2. Notify residents of agreed arrangements. SS

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY - FUTURE OF THE CURRENT GATING
ORDER ON THE SNICKET BETWEEN CARRFIELD AND CHANTRY
CLOSE, DRINGHOUSES AND WOODTHORPE WARD

The Executive Member considered a report regarding the future of the
current gating order on the snicket between Carrfield and Chantry Close,
Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Ward, taking into account the current levels
of crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) and the views of residents living
on both streets.

The Executive Member referred to further representations received from:

Ward Councillors — confirmation that the snicket had been a source
of anti social behaviour over a number of years. They referred to the
division of views on the provision of a gate and for the need for any
future consultation on gating orders to specify those residents who
would be eligible for a key or PIN.

Cindy Redpath of Chantry Close in opposition to the gating order,
particularly as this area was no longer a high crime area.

Representations were then received at the meeting from the following:

Mr M Wilson of Chantry Close who confirmed that he lived adjacent
to the snicket and that he was still experiencing anti social
behaviour problems, which he felt, still supported the provision of a
gate. He also confirmed that he had no wish to build or use the
adjacent land as referred to by some residents in the report.

Mrs Holmes of Chantry Close referred to problems she would
encounter if the snicket was gated which included her key holder
who used this access. She also stated that this was a public right of
way which once closed would be lost and not easily returned to
public use.

Mrs Shields of Chantry Close confirmed that she had lived in the
area for 24 years and that it had never been a high crime area. It
was felt that gating the snicket could have the opposite affect.

Mr John Andrews of Chantry Close stated that originally he had felt
that such schemes were an excellent method of curbing anti social
behaviour but he felt that this proposal would be counter productive,
was in the wrong location and could not justified. He confirmed that
he supported the revocation of the order.

Mr Houghton of Carrfield Close pointed out that this was a public
right of way and not a cycle track and that there should be a barrier
at this point to make this clear. He did confirm that gating the snicket
would be inconvenient to many residents.

Councillor Reid confirmed that this was an unenviable decision to
make but that the original petition had been collected in good faith
from local residents who had, at that time, supported the gating of
the snicket. She referred to the frustrations in relation to the current
legislation but reluctantly she supported the revoking of the order.



24,

Page 6

She finally thanked officers for their efforts and time spent on trying
to alleviate this matter.

Following consideration of all comments received the Executive Member
then considered the following options. He also confirmed that he felt further
trials on restricting access were required in less sensitive locations but that
he must take into account the views of the Police and the even balance of
local opinion.

Option A — Revoke the order by formally reviewing the gating order which
exists on the snicket between Carrfield and Chantry Close, Dringhouses
and Woodthorpe Ward, in accordance with s129F (3) of the Highways Act
1980.

Option B - Uphold the current gating order, re-install the gate and make it
operational i.e. connect to the electricity supply.

Option C — Vary the times of closure on the order by formally reviewing the
gating order which exists on the snicket between Carrfield and Chantry
Close, Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Ward, in accordance with s129F (2)
of the Highways Act 1980.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member approves Option A and
that the Director of City Strategy be authorised to
instruct the Head of Civic, Democratic and Legal
Services to formally review the order with the purpose
of revoking the gating order which exists on the
snicket between Carrfield and Chantry Close,
Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Ward, in accordance
with s129F (3) of the Highways Act 1980. "

REASON: The restriction imposed by the order is no longer
expedient in all the circumstances for the purpose of
reducing crime or anti social behaviour and because of
residents’ concerns, which are detailed in the report.

Action Required
1. Revoke the gating order. SS

PUBLIC TRANSPORT PROVISION FOR TEMPLE LANE,
COPMANTHORPE

The Executive Member considered a report that detailed a number of
options for reinstatement of a public transport service along Temple Lane,
Copmanthorpe.

It was reported that the following representations had been received since
the agenda had been published:

e Una Dalton and Nigel Brown on behalf of residents and bus
passengers around Temple Lane. They expressed support for the
reinstatement of the No 21 bus service along Temple Lane for two
days per week.



Page 7

e Yvonne Cook, Clerk to Acaster Malbis Parish Council, who
supported the provision of a bus service on six days per week.

e Carol Green who confirmed that Bishopthorpe Parish Council would
prefer the 21 service to the village to remain as a daily service.

e Christine Oldroyd, resident of Mount Pleasant and regular bus user,
who referred to the change of options but who supported the
provision of a car or community transport service for Temple Lane.

e Julian Sturdy, in support of the reintroduction of the No 21 Service
for 2 days per week on Temple Lane as set out in the report.

e Derek Bowen, Copmanthorpe Parish Council in support of the
option put forward by Mrs Dalton and Mr Brown.

Officers updated that a further response had been received from
Bishopthorpe Parish Council reiterating their earlier expression of
preference for retention of a six day a week service on a standard route, in
the interests of simplicity and meeting the needs of the majority of
passengers.

Mrs Dalton, made representations on behalf of users of the service. She
referred to a number of elderly residents who had previously used the
service and who now found it difficult to visit the doctor and local shops
and to continue to lead independent lives. She confirmed that provision of
a service on two days per week would be a vast improvement and that
hopefully this could be agreed for a six month trial period.

Councillor Healey, confirmed that since the bus service had ceased
residents of Temple Lane had contacted him in supporting the option to
provide a two day service.

The Executive Member then gave consideration to the following options:

Option (a)  Provide a two or three day a week public transport link from
Acaster Malbis to either Askham Bar or York City Centre
using either bus or shared car options.

Option (b)  Extend First York Service 13, either in whole or part, to a new
terminus in Temple Lane.

Option (c)  Join First York Service 13 (Monks Cross — Copmanthorpe) to
Service 11 (Ashley Park — Bishopthorpe) via Temple Lane
and Appleton Road.

Option (d)  Divert some or all Yorkshire Coastliner services from Hallcroft
Lane/Top Lane via Copmanthorpe and Bishopthorpe to and
from Tadcaster Road.

Option (e) Revise the new Service 21 to run along Temple Lane and
return between Acaster Malbis and Bishopthorpe.

Option (f) Revise the new Service 21 to run some journeys each day
via Bishopthorpe and some journeys via Copmanthorpe.



Page 8

Option (g)  Revise the new Service 21 to run via Bishopthorpe on some
days and Copmanthorpe on others.

Option (h)  Revise the new Service 21 to run a one way loop (Acaster
Malbis — Copmanthorpe — Colton — Bolton Percy — Appleton
Roebuck — Acaster Malbis) linked to existing York -
Bishopthorpe route.

The Executive Member confirmed that this had proved to be a difficult
issue to deal with given the low number of public transport users living on
Temple Lane. He stated that he had felt that it would be better to provide a
service 21 loop for a period of 6 months, if this was affordable and to allow
for usage to be monitored.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member agrees to:

i) For a trial period of 6 months, and
subject to costs being retained within the
existing budget limits, to vary the number
21 bus service in line with the timetable
suggested in Annex C page 71 of the
Officer report; "

i)  That consideration be given by Officers
as to whether a clockwise or counter
clockwise route would optimise usage of
the service; %

i) That the numbers using the service be
carefully monitored and reported to an
Executive Member meeting towards the
end of the 6 month trial period; >

iv) In the event of this proposed revision to
the 21 service proving to Dbe
unaffordable, then Officers be authorised
to proceed to establish a shared hire car
service to serve the Temple Lane area
without the need for a further reference
to a Decision Session. *

REASON: In light of representations received these proposals
potentially offer the most cost effective achievable
means of providing a public transport service to meet
the unmet travel demands of the residents of the
Temple Lane area of Copmanthorpe.

Action Required
1. No 21 bus service to be varied for 6 months in

accordance with Annex C. SS
2. Officers to investigate optimum route. SS
3. Monitor usage of route and report back. SS

4. If revisions prove unaffordable authority given to Officers



25.

Page 9

to provide a shared hire car service. SS
WESTMINSTER ROAD PETITIONS

The Executive Member considered a report that presented the results of
initial survey information and options in response to the two petitions
received regarding the change in traffic conditions due to works carried out
on Water End earlier in the year.

The Executive Member referred to the additional comments received from
the Economic and City Development Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Task Group, which had been republished with the agenda. The group had
set out their comments in relation to the following options detailed in the
report:

Option A — Further Survey (paragraph 25 of the report)

Option B — 20 mph Speed Limit/School Travel Plan Review (paragraph 26
of the report)

Option C — Access Only Order (paragraph 28 of the report)
Option D — Banned Turning Manoeuvres (paragraph 29 of the report)
Option E — One Way Traffic (paragraph 30 of the report)

Option F — Banned turning manoeuvres with junction alterations
(paragraph 32 of the report)

Option G — Point Closure along Westminster Road or The Avenue
(paragraph 33 of the report)

Option H — Residents’ Consultation (paragraph 37 of the report)

The Task Group stated that whichever option was ultimately chosen that
there needed to be careful consultation as all the options offered
advantages for some residents and disadvantages for others.

The Executive Member reported that the former Chief Executive had
received five emails from residents in support of a point closure on
Westminster Road and three from residents who were opposed to the
closure. He also referred to the written submission received from Clir Scott,
copies of which had been circulated at the meeting. Councillor Scott asked
the Executive Member to support Option G or at least a temporary interim
closure to assess the impact, in addition he had asked for the left turn lane
to be reinstated at Clifton Green.

It was reported that additional information on comparative traffic volumes
had been provided by Officers and republished with the agenda.

Officers updated that the road humps in Westminster Road had today been
reinstated and that, weather permitting, the white lines would be applied
tomorrow.



Page 10

Representations in support of point closure on Westminster Road were
received from Mr Paul Moran who stated that neither road humps nor
signage would have any affect on through traffic in this area. He requested
the Executive Member to take account of resident’s wishes and stated that
point closure was the only solution to these problems.

Mr Begley, a resident of Westminster Road, referred to the increased
volume and speed of through traffic on every day of the week. He went on
to point out that residents felt that point closure was the only lasting
method of resolving this traffic problem. He stated that the recently
replaced road humps were less robust than those that had previously
existed. The Executive Member confirmed that, if the replacement humps
were not to the same specification, he would ensure replacements were
constructed to the same standard. "

Councillor King confirmed that the recommendation failed to address
resident’s views. He stated that the original petition showed that 88% of
residents living on Westminster Road gave their support to a point closure
on that road, as did 50% of residents fronting onto The Avenue. He then
went onto reiterate Clir Scott’s support for Option G.

Officers confirmed that there was clearly support in principle to the closure
but that no consultation had been undertaken. They recommended taking
some measures forward which would hopefully affect vehicle speeds and
this would be followed by a survey once these were in place, prior to
consideration of further works.

The Executive Member confirmed that his decision was based on the
relatively low level of traffic on this link as compared with similar streets
and the potential funding. He therefore felt that consideration of the
proposals to restrict traffic on these roads should be delayed until traffic
had adjusted to the speed hump reinstatement and traffic movements in
the area had settled down.

RESOLVED: #*That the Executive Member agrees to:

i) Approve the course of action detailed in Options A and
B of the report be approved which will allow:

a. Further surveys to be undertaken now the road
humps on Westminster Road have been replaced
and the results reported to a future Decision
Session meeting.

b. Progress the introduction of a 20 mph limit and
undertake a review of the School Travel Plan.*

(i) Options G and H in the report be given further
consideration as part of the reporting of the above; 4



26.

Page 11

(iii)  That the option of introducing build outs or chicanes as
a method of controlling both traffic speed and volumes
also be evaluated; *

REASON: These options to take forward for further works to
alleviate traffic problems encountered by residents in
the Westminster Road and The Avenue are
considered to be the most appropriate options to
progress at this time.

* Note: This decision was amended at the Executive (Calling In) meeting

held on 15 September 2009 - see under mentioned link to the minutes of

that meeting for further details.

http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=601&MId=4346&
Ver=4

Action Required
1. Speed humps to be checked and replaced to original

specification, if required. SS
2. Surveys to be undertaken and results reported back to

Decision Session. SS
3. Introduce a 20mph limit and review School Travel Plan. SS
4. Report back on these options. SS
5. Evaluate and report back on this option. SS

CITY STRATEGY CAPITAL PROGRAMME -2009/10 MONITOR 1
REPORT

The Executive Member considered a report which set out progress to date
on schemes in the 2009/10 City Strategy Capital Programme, and made
adjustments to scheme allocations to align with latest cost estimates and
delivery projections.

It was reported that the current approved budget for the City Strategy
Capital Programme for 2009/10 was £5,786k, which included £3,374k of
Local Transport Plan (LTP) funding.

It was reported that the proposed key changes were:

e Reduced allocations for the Access York Phase 1, Blossom Street
Multi-Modal and Fishergate Gyratory Schemes;

e The addition of an allocation for the implementation of the Beckfield
Lane Phase 2 cycle route in 2009/10;

e Inclusion of the details of the School Cycle Parking schemes in the
programme;

e Reduction of the overall budget by £516k due to the virement of
funds to Neighbourhood Services.

Councillor Merrett referred to the need for flexibility in Year 3 in relation to
the Cycling City schemes, and questioned the air quality position and the
need for a review.



27.

Page 12

The Executive Member confirmed that it was still early in the year for the
capital programme likely outturn to be forecast accurately but that good
progress was being made with scheme development and consultation. He
went onto state that some of the schemes would as planned slip into 2010
in order to stay within budget.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member:

(i) Approves the adjustments set out in Annexes 1 and 2
of the report; "

(i) Approves the changes to the allocation of the Cycling
g)ity funding, subject to the approval of the Executive.

REASON: To enable the effective management and monitoring of
the council’s capital programme.

Action Required

1. To update the programme spreadsheets and adjust the

budget on the ledger. SS
2. Refer changes to the Executive. SS

ADOPTION OF HIGHWAYS ON NEW ESTATES

The Executive Member considered a report on the adoption of highways
on new estates. The report had been prepared in response to his request
at the Executive Meeting in April 2009.

The report provided a background to the issues, including some of the
obstacles to be overcome, and suggested a number of initiatives and
proposals to improve the service.

The Executive Member confirmed that this was a useful report, which
detailed progress being made in adopting, for maintenance purposes,
recent developments. He pointed out that the backlog in adoptions
appeared to be reducing but that there was scope for regular review
reports as suggested by Officers.

He then gave consideration to the following options:

Option A — to note the contents of the briefing report and request that
officers prepare a further interim progress report in the final quarter of the
year, which would set out highways adoptions completed and current work
programme/site activity. In addition a subsequent annual progress report
could be brought to the Executive Member on the service. Officers would
make further contact with other local authorities to establish if
improvements could be made to current systems/procedures.
Arrangements would be made to establish a local developer forum, which
would aim to meet twice a year, with officers and the Executive Member
with the objective of discussing current development progress and future
schemes.



28.

Page 13

Option B — to undertake a detailed review of highway adoption procedures.
RESOLVED: That the Executive Member:

i) Approves Option A, as set out in paragraphs 34 to
36 of the Officer report; "

ii) Requests the Executive Member for
Neighbourhoods to review the arrangements for,
and costs of adopting, those streets in the City,
which historically have not been maintained by the
Council. *

REASON: To allow officers to present details of the progress
being made on outstanding developments and provide
the basis for informed judgement. This option also
proposes to establish a forum with developers in York,
which it is hoped will help to promote highway
adoptions more quickly.

Action Required

1. Prepare Annual and interim progress reports and

establish a local developer forum. SS
2. Request Executive Member for Neighbourhoods to

consider reviewing the arrangements for streets that are not
currently maintained by the Council. SS

BLOSSOM STREET MULTI MODAL STUDY - OPTIONS REPORT

The Executive Member considered a report that presented options to be
considered as part of the Blossom Street Multi Modal Study. The study
was commissioned to investigate options for improving the Blossom Street
/ Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction and enhancing the
streetscape of Blossom Street between this junction and its junction with
Holgate Road, with the aim of improving accessibility and safety for all road
users, particularly pedestrians; cyclists; and public transport users.

Mr Sydes made representations as a resident of Dringhouses and as a
regular cyclist on this route. He made the following points;

e Questioned why the narrow focus of the study had concentrated on
the Blossom Street area as a wider solution he hoped would take in
the Mount and Tadcaster Road;

e Encouraged the making of brave decisions to gain maximum benefit
for cyclists;

e Disputed the need to pursue an alternate cycle route to avoid the
Blossom Street junction as cyclist's would prefer to have a direct
through route at this point;

e Need to obtain a joined up approach.

Councillor Merrett confirmed his agreement with Mr Sydes comments. He
stated that this was a difficult issue to address and that a wider view should



Page 14

be taken. He confirmed that he spoke on behalf of the 3 Ward Members
and made points on the following issues:
e Queen Street crossing arrangements at Option 1a displaced the
pedestrian crossing away from the desire line;
e Options 1a and 1b delivered virtually nothing and even in some
cases disadvantages and were not value for money;
e Hoped for increased consultation in relation to any future proposals;
e Any partial closure of Micklegate Bar would require extensive
consultation with local businesses and users.

The Executive Member gave consideration to the following options:

Option 1 (as detailed in paragraphs 17-19 of the report)
Option 2 (as detailed in paragraphs 20-22 of the report)
Option 3 (as detailed in paragraphs 23-26 of the report)
Option 4 (as detailed in paragraphs 27-29 of the report)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member authorises the further
development of the following aspects of the Officer
report:

i) Options 1a and 1b;

ii) Arrangement to give westbound cyclists priority
access through Micklegate Bar (para. 43 of the
Officers report);

(i)  Provision of alternative quiet routes for cyclists to
avoid the Blossom Street junction including access
through the Station car park to Holgate Road (paras.
40,41 and 42 of the Officer report); "

(iv)  That representations be made to the Department of
Transport that, recognising York’s pioneering role as a
Cycling City, they agree to the trial introduction of an
advanced cycle green traffic light phase of 10-15
geconds at this junction (para. 46 of the Officer report);

(V) That the option of banning daytime loading within 30
metres of the Blossom Street junction be further
evaluated; >

(vi)  That the other proposals included in Options 2 — 4 and
which involve the reduction in the number of traffic
lanes, together with the proposals included in
paragraphs 38,39 and 44, and including a “do nothing”
option, be subject to public consultation through Your
City and other channels. The consultation results to be
reported to a future Executive Member Decision
Session. *



29.

Page 15

REASON: To enable officers to progress the scheme sufficiently
to be able to present an option to be taken forward to
detailed design for further consideration prior to

construction.
Action Required
1, 3. and 4. Officers to pursue these options. SS
2. Contact Dept of Transport regarding trial introduction of
advanced cycle green light phase. SS

CITY OF YORK LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 3

The Executive Member considered a report that outlined the development
of York’s Third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) to cover the period from 2011
onwards, and in particular outlined the proposals for consultation. The aim
of the consultation was to, firstly, identify issues and priorities for a long-
term (20-year) transport strategy and shorter term policies and
implementation plans required for LTP3 and, secondly, to generate support
and agreement for the strategy and range of policies and measures to be
included in LTP3.

The report also included a summary of the latest guidance for producing
LTPs and the other national, regional and local policies, strategies and
plans that would influence the production and content of LTP3.

It was reported that the only comment received since the publication of the
report had been from Councillor Gillies. He pointed out that although the
reports sentiments could not be argued with that there was a fine balance
between encouraging the points and lifestyles mentioned and acting as
‘Big Brother’.

Officers updated that there may be some delays in the October start date
mentioned in the Preparation Dates in Table 1, paragraph 41 of the report.

The Executive Member confirmed that this was the first step in updating
the Local Transport Plan and that it would not be until after the outcome of
the General Election that a clearer idea of available resources was known.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Member for City Strategy:

(i) Notes the content of the report, particularly Table 1
which outlines the proposed activities and timescales
for producing LTP3.

(i) Approves the process proposed in Table 1, subject to
the presentation of the consultation strategy to the
Executive Member for a decision at a future date, prior
to the commencement of consultations. ™

(i)  Approve the “LTP3 Draft Vision” as the initial founding
principle for consultations on LTP3, which may be



Page 16

subszequently amended as a result of the consultations
and ©

(iv)  Requests Officers to present the long-term transport
strategy to the Executive Member for a decision at a
future date, prior to the commencement of
consultations. *

REASONS: (i) To determine the process for producing LTP3 in
compliance with Government guidance.

(i) To enable the subsequent long-term transport vision
and consultation strategies to be presented to the
Executive Member for decision at a future date, prior
to the commencement of the initial consultation.

Action Required

1. Report back on consultation strategy prior to consultation. SS
2. Draft Vision to be used as the founding principle for
consultation. SS
3. Report back on long term transport strategy. SS

Clir Steve Galloway, Executive Member for City Strategy
[The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 5.45 pm].



Page 17 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Decision Session - Executive Member for City 20 October 2009
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

BECKFIELD LANE — EXTENSION OF CYCLE ROUTE

Summary

1.  Following the recent introduction of off-road cycle facilities on the east side of
Beckfield Lane between Boroughbridge Road and Ostman Road, this report looks
at extending these facilities. A scheme proposal is developed which seeks to
maximise the potential for promoting safe and sustainable travel to nearby schools,
shops, and other local facilities whilst aiming to minimise likely construction
difficulties and costs.

Recommendations

2.  That the Executive Member approves the amended (following consultation)
scheme shown in Annex E for construction.

Reason: To extend the existing cycle facilities in order to provide a complete cycle
route on Beckfield Lane whilst trying to address resident’'s comments and concerns
about the original proposals, where possible.

Background

3. A segregated shared use footway / cycle track has recently been introduced on the
east side of Beckfield Lane between Boroughbridge Road and Ostman Road. This
provides a link between Manor School and the on-road signed route on Ostman
Road / Danebury Drive giving access to many residential streets and the centre of
Acomb. At the EMAP meeting on 8 December 2008, when that scheme was
approved, officers were also asked to develop proposals for extending cycle
facilities further along Beckfield Lane. Providing a complete cycle route on
Beckfield Lane would be in accordance with the Local Transport Plan strategy of
developing York’s cycle network in order to help promote cycling as a sustainable
mode of transport.

4. Outline proposals to extend the off-road cycle track were discussed at the
Executive Member Decision Session on 7 July 2009. The report to that meeting
highlighted several practical difficulties in continuing the segregrated footway /



Page 18

cycle track down the east footway to Wetherby Road, and concluded that it would
be better to switch the cycle facilities to the west side via a crossing facility at a
suitable point. Consultation on previous schemes had highlighted the need for
improved pedestrian crossing facilities near the shops south of Ostman Road and
therefore, a toucan crossing in this area would serve both purposes. The Executive
Member authorised Officers to proceed with detailed design and public consultation
based on the outline proposals as shown in Annex A.

Proposed Cycle Facilities

Following more detailed design work, the scheme shown in Annex B was
developed for consultation. Key features include:-

» The widening and lengthening of the existing crossing refuge on Ostman Road,
to allow a cyclist to wait in the refuge area without overhanging the carriageway.
This would link into the recently installed cycle facilities.

» The existing footway widened to 3.8m with 1.8m allocated to the footway and
2.0m allocated to the cycle track.

= Cyclists positioned on the carriageway side of the footway.

= Short sections of unsegregated path are needed around pedestrian crossing
points and bus stops where the paths of pedestrians and cyclists have to cross.

= A toucan crossing adjacent to the shops south of Ostman Road. As the
installation of a toucan crossing would provide a safer controlled crossing point,
the pedestrian refuge just south of Ostman Road is no longer required and
would be removed.

=  Where visibility is adequate, crossing points at side roads will be set back to
allow a car to wait at the give way line without blocking the path of pedestrians
and cyclists. The crossing points will also be highlighted to drivers using a band
of coloured anti-skid surfacing across the carriageway.

= Just south of Knapton Lane, southbound cyclists will be directed across
Beckfield Lane over the existing speed table to rejoin the carriageway and then
proceed through the traffic calmed area towards the Wetherby Road junction.
This would be supported by markings and signs.

» Two sets of dropped kerbs for northbound cyclists to gain access to the start of
the proposed cycle track. One set would be provided on Wetherby Road before
its junction with Beckfield Lane, and the other at the start of Beckfield Lane just
after the roundabout. These would be supported by markings and signs to guide
cyclists off the carriageway.

Consultation Feedback

Public consultation on the package of proposals was carried out in August 2009.
This involved a letter and plan being sent to around 450 households and
businesses which would be most directly affected by the proposals. In addition, the
proposals were published on the Council website. A survey seeking the views of
potential users of the facility from outside the immediate area was sent to the 117
residents of Acomb and Westfield wards who indicated they would be willing to take
part in further studies following the Cycling City survey. Details were also sent to



10.

Page 19

relevant Councillors and various other interested parties for comment, such as the
emergency services, local schools, and road user groups. The feedback received is
summarised below, along with officer comments where appropriate.

Residents

Twenty-four responses were received from local residents; nine in support, twelve
against and three neither in support nor against. A petition against the scheme was
also submitted which was signed by 38 residents representing 22 households and
the residents of a retirement home. The front page of the petition is provided as
Annex C. The proposals were also published on the website but have generated
little feedback. One resident cycles on Beckfield Lane daily and supports the
proposals, and 2 residents (1 cyclist, 1 non-cyclist) were against the proposals. The
main issues from the consultation are discussed below along with officer
comments, where appropriate. Some additional minor comments and concerns are
summarised along with officer comments in Annex D.

The scheme is not justified, and the number of cyclists who would use the facility
does not warrant the removal of grass verge and added markings and signs.

Officer response

A traffic survey undertaken on Beckfield Lane just south of Ostman Road from 7am
to 7pm recorded 292 cycles on carriageway and 171 cycles on the existing
footpath. Representations have also been made expressing concern about cycling
on-road on Beckfield Lane, and appreciation of the existing cycle track north of
Ostman Road. Hence there is strong evidence that the proposed off-road cycle
facilities will be well used.

There are more dangerous roads for cyclists which should be treated first.

Officer response

There have been five accidents on the southern half of Beckfield Lane in the last
three years and one involved a cyclist, although this is not considered to indicate a
significant road safety problem. When setting each years cycling capital
programme, some schemes are targeted towards improving safety for cyclists but
other factors are also taken into account. Extending the Beckfield Lane cycle
scheme is included in this year’'s programme because it would contribute to the
city’s cycle network, encourage more cycling, and support safe routes to school.

There will be an increased risk of accidents between cyclists and vehicles leaving
driveways.

Officer response

The distance between the cycle track and the boundaries of adjacent properties will
vary between 2.5 to 4.5m. This distance should provide adequate visibility given
that vehicles should be moving slowly and drivers will be aware of the presence of
cyclists.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Page 20

There will be an increased risk of accidents between cyclists and pedestrians,
particularly older people.

Officer response

Many cyclists already choose to use the footway. Therefore the introduction of a
legitimate cycling facility which will provide a significantly wider path overall should
reduce the present potential for conflict between pedestrians and cyclists.

Cycle lanes should be provided on the carriageway.

Officer response

This was considered at the feasibility stage but rejected for practical reasons. The
carriageway width along most of the southern half of Beckfield Lane is around
6.8m. This is less than the width of most local distributor roads in York, which tend
to be 7.3m wide or greater. Given that the recommended minimum width for an on-
road cycle lane is 1.5m, and the minimum practical width for the adjacent traffic
lane is 2.8m to avoid frequent vehicle encroachment of the cycle lane, the overall
road width required would ideally be 8.6m. This means that Beckfield Lane is
significantly too narrow for cycle lanes to be considered. Widening the road by the
desired amount of 1.8m would result in the loss of most of the trees, and be
extremely expensive because of the need to divert utility pipes and cables which
run down the verge. Hence this is not a viable option.

Cyclists may be encouraged to cycle on the footway at locations where this type of
facility does not exist.

Officer response
Appropriate signs and markings would be provided to make it clear that this is a
specially provided cycle facility, so should not encourage cycling on other footways.

Cyclists will not want to stop and give way at every side road.

Officer response

There are four side roads on this section, but only one is considered to be quite
busy, which is Knapton Lane. Where possible, the crossing point would be set back
5m so one waiting car would not block the passage of a cyclist. Therefore, although
cyclists will be required to give way at each side road, they should not experience
any significant difficulties or delays. An alternative design to give cyclists priority
over vehicles at side roads has been ruled out as at some of the side roads there is
restricted visibility for vehicles turning left into the side road as drivers may not be
able to see a cyclist crossing.

A zebra crossing would be preferred to a toucan crossing because there would be
no audible signal, no waiting for pedestrians, and less delay to vehicles.

Officer response

A toucan crossing is a crossing facility for use by both pedestrians and cyclists and
is more appropriate where higher numbers of cyclists are expected. At a zebra
crossing, a cyclist is required to dismount and walk across to gain priority over



16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 21

vehicles, these rules are not well known which may result in confusion over who
has right of way. Whilst an audible signal is proposed for the benefit of people with
visual impairments, the volume would be turned down to a low level during the day,
and would be turned off at night. A rotating cone below the push button is also
used to give a tactile signal to visually impaired users, so the presence of an
audible signal is not essential.

Why does the cycle track have to switch sides?

Officer response

It is unfortunately not practical to continue the cycle track down the east footway to
the junction with Wetherby Road because of the position of a row of trees which
would have to be removed and a steep gradient on the verge south of the
Runswick Avenue junction. There would also be drainage problems near the
alleyway to Jute Road and poor visibility around Beckfield Place. In addition, there
is a larger potential catchment area who would have direct access to the route from
the west side. Therefore the west footway is considered more favourable for the
majority of the cycle facilities on this half of Beckfield Lane.

Cyclists would not be willing to cross at the toucan crossing and would continue
along the footway.

Officer response

Where cyclists begin or end their journey is a likely major factor in whether they
choose to cross and use the designated cycle facility. It is considered that only
cyclists going very short distances from the end of the cycle track would be
tempted to continue on the footway beyond the toucan crossing because it will
become much narrower and pedestrian activity will hinder their journey. Signing will
also be provided to encourage cyclists to cross at the toucan. The crossing will be
designed to be responsive to the prevailing traffic conditions, when there is very
little traffic it will only be a few seconds before the signals change to allow
pedestrians and cyclists to cross.

The household waste site entrance is an area of concern, both for cyclists on the
proposed off-road cycle track and road users in general.

Officer response

The household waste site is open for 18 hours per week in Summer and 12 hours
per week in Winter, although it does generate a lot of traffic when open. The plan
showed tactile paving and red surfacing in error but as the footway continues
across the access these are not required. It would be preferable to lay green
surfacing over the access to signify cyclists right of way. This change is shown in
Annex E.

A more formal pedestrian crossing should be provided on Beckfield Lane between
the junction of Knapton Lane and the shops near Runswick Avenue.

Officer response
Observations suggest that there are far fewer pedestrians crossing here than near
Ostman Road and it is therefore unlikely that a formal pedestrian crossing could be



20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 22

justified. However, pedestrian and traffic surveys have been commissioned to help
quantify existing pedestrian numbers and the difficulties they have in crossing the
road. The outcome of this more detailed assessment will be presented as an officer
update at the meeting.

Southbound cyclists should be able to leave the cycle track nearer the roundabout
as there is a lot of activity immediately south of Knapton Lane including a bus stop
and Sainsburys entrance to negotiate.

Officer response

Following a review of this element of the scheme a second set of dropped kerbs is
proposed which would be provided south of Fellbrook Avenue so a southbound
cyclist would be able to choose where they join the carriageway, this choice of
crossing point would assist cyclists going to the local shops, and those wishing to
avoid the area. This amendment is shown in Annex E.

Bus passengers using the shelter near Fellbrook Avenue will have to cross the
cycle track to reach a stopped bus.

Officer response

It is proposed to implement a shared area around the bus stop so neither side is
allocated to cyclists, although following a direct line they are more likely to use the
side closest to the kerb. Rotating the bus shelter and moving it towards the kerb
was considered so passengers did not have to cross the full width of the shared
area to reach the bus, but because of the close proximity to Fellbrook Avenue this
would cause visibility problems for drivers pulling out of the junction.

Comments in support of the proposals

Comments made in support of the proposals included:
representations from those with children attending a local school or who like to go
out for family bike rides.
The newly installed facility to the north of Ostman Road was praised by a
wheelchair user for its improved surface and crossing points.
Concern was expressed that the carriageway of Beckfield Lane is unpleasant to
cycle on.

Potential User Opinion Survey

The survey shown in Annex F was sent to the 117 residents in Acomb and
Westfield wards who had indicated that they would be willing to take part in further
studies following the Cycling City survey. 68 responses were received. 44 of these
residents cycle on Beckfield Lane, 26 of these have used the off-road path, and 33
said they would use the proposed section between Wetherby Road and Ostman
Road. In addition, 20 of the total respondents said that a complete cycle route
would encourage them to start cycling or cycle more. Overall, 49 respondents
thought the proposals were a very good or fairly good idea.



24,

25.

26.

Page 23

Member Views

Officers consulted with Ward Councillors Horton and Simpson-Laing, plus
Councillors D’Agorne, Gillies and Potter on the proposals. Their responses are
summarised below.

Ward Member Views

CliIr David Horton does not believe that the scheme represents value for money. He
thinks that whilst a cyclist may be safer off-road, having to stop and give way at
every side road is not desirable. He considers that there is potential for conflict with
vehicles pulling out of driveways.

Officer response
These issues have also been raised by local residents and have been discussed
above.

ClIr Tracey Simpson-Laing requested that her comments be included in full, which
are as follows:

‘Beckfield Lane does not have heavy usage or speeding during the day time and so
there is | feel no justification either for the already installed 'off road ' cycle path or
the proposed extension. In recent years a police road survey, undertaken between
10am and 2pm, bore this fact out. At all times possible, except where there are
known high speeds and heavy traffic - such as Clifton Bridge- cyclists should be
encouraged to cycle on the road as otherwise a culture of a 'false sense of security’
is created.

The fact that the proposed extension to the cycle path crosses the road will only
cause more incidents than are already being reported by residents as those using
the ‘path' will not swap sides but continue on the side they have started their
Journey on. | am sure that residents will ask of CYC insurances of enforcement, but
as we are clearly aware NYPF will not see this as a priority. Officers need to
address this issue before they progress any further with this scheme and with that
in mind it should be taken as a reason to reject the scheme.

Finally, there are many many dangerous sections of road in the City which need
work undertaking to increase cycling, Beckfield Lane is not one. Only by
undertaking such schemes will cycling increase, and it will not increase to and from
Manor School, believing that the cycle path extension would do so is | am afraid
very poor planning.’

Officer response
Many of these issues are similar to those raised by the residents and some
elements have been discussed above.

In addition, traffic surveys have shown 7747 vehicles using Beckfield Lane in a
typical 12 hour period from 7am to 7pm. Data obtained by the police in October
2008 does show a tendency towards speeding around 7 to 8am and 3 to 6pm.



27.

28.

29.

30.

Page 24

Following complaints by residents, Beckfield Lane is subject to police enforcement
targeting, under their speed complaint strategy.

As part of the Cycling Strategy included in LTP2 the DfT’s hierarchy of provision
was adopted which stated that on-road facilities would be investigated before off-
road alternatives, and the provision of cycle lanes on Beckfield Lane was
considered at length but ruled out in earlier reports.

Other cycling schemes in this years programme include Crichton Avenue, Fulford
Road, Lendal Hub station (subject to Members approval) and other minor
infrastructure works. Consultation on the options for Blossom Street will also begin
this year.

In the city-wide cycling questionnaire carried out in November last year twice as
many non-cyclists and lapsed cyclists stated that they would consider cycling if
there were more off-road facilities provided, rather than on-road cycle lanes.
Representations have also been made expressing concern about cycling on-road
on Beckfield Lane and counts show around a third of cyclists are using the footway
now. So, there is strong evidence that some cyclists prefer off-road facilities, which
would make a difference to which mode of transport they choose.

Other Member Views

Clir lan Gillies agrees with the Ward Councillors and does not support the
proposals.

ClIr Ruth Potter shares ClIr Horton’s views on the proposals, that the scheme does
not represent value for money, stopping at side roads is inconvenient for cyclists,
and there may be conflict at driveways.

Clir D’Agorne had not submitted any comments at the time of finalising this report.
Any comments received will be presented as an update at the meeting.

Emergency Services

The Police are generally supportive of the scheme and raise several points as
follows:

» There is a conflict point between northbound cyclists entering the cycle track at
the Wetherby Road roundabout and pedestrians crossing at the refuge.

Officer response

The design has been reviewed and because of this issue, it is considered
appropriate to omit this access point from the design. Any cyclists coming from this
section of Wetherby Road would have to join the cycle track on Beckfield Lane.
However, due to there being very few properties in this direction, there is not
considered to be a large number of cyclists affected. The amended design is shown
in Annex E.



31.

32.

33.

Page 25

» Vehicles turning right out of Knapton Lane would have to give way to
pedestrians and cyclists crossing Beckfield Lane on the speed table just south
of the junction. This may result in confusion over priority and potential conflict.

Officer response
Pedestrians already use the speed table to cross Beckfield Lane with no conflict
with vehicles being reported or observed to date.

» Bus passengers using the shelter near Fellbrook Avenue will have to cross the
cycle track to reach a stopped bus.

Officer response
This has been discussed in paragraph 21.

» On-road cycle lanes would narrow the carriageway width for vehicles and
therefore have a speed reducing effect.

Officer response

Widening the carriageway to provide cycle lanes has already been discussed at
length in previous reports, and has been ruled out. Cycle lanes are sometimes laid
on narrower carriageways, but only where no other alternatives exist, as vehicles
would frequently overrun the cycle lane and it may become ignored.

At the time of writing the report, no response had been received from the Fire and
Rescue Service or Ambulance Service.

Local Schools
The feedback received from the local schools is as follows:

York High support the proposals.

Manor CE — awaiting comments.

Carr Infants — awaiting comments.

Carr Juniors — awaiting comments.

Road User Groups

York Access Group support the proposals but would like to see more
consideration given to the provision of a formal crossing point south of Knapton
Lane. In addition, they would like further crossing improvements on Wetherby Road
at the roundabout

Officer comments

The request for a formal crossing south of Knapton Lane has been raised by
residents and is discussed in paragraph 19. Pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities

on Wetherby Road are outside of the scope of the current scheme and would need
to be considered as part of a future transport capital programme.



Page 26

34. York Cycle Campaign does not support the scheme for the following reasons:

e They refer to the hierarchy of provision in Local Transport Note 2/08 Cycling
Infrastructure Design (LTN 2/08) and suggest that off-road cycle tracks should
only be used if no other alternatives are available. They state that following local
cycle infrastructure guidelines, cycle lanes should be provided on-carriageway
without widening.

Officer response

A similar off-road cycle track has already been provided on Beckfield Lane north of
Ostman Road, but only after other options had been considered. Local guidelines
state that cycle lanes should be provided on sub-standard width carriageways only
where there are no other alternatives. The average carriageway width of Beckfield
Lane is 6.8m and to provide adequate lanes of 1.5m for cycles at both sides would
only leave traffic lanes of 1.9m in each direction. This would result in vehicles
entering the cycle lanes most of the time and is unlikely to have much benefit for
cyclists. Overall, an off-road cycle track is considered to be the most appropriate
facility, particularly as many of the cyclists in the area are children.

e According to LTN 2/08, the minimum recommended width for a two-way cycle
track is 3m, and at 2m the proposed facility is too narrow.

Officer response

As there are very few locations in York where these widths are achievable, local
guidelines suggest an absolute minimum width of 3m in total for the segregated
footway / cycle track facility. The proposals put forward feature 2m for the cycle
track and 1.8m for the footway, and as the route is unbounded on both sides, the
width is not considered to be too narrow for the number of cyclists expected. This
arrangement has been installed on the first section and is operating well. At times,
there are a high number of cyclists using the facility but as this is linked to schools it
is a predominantly tidal flow.

e Other issues raised by the York Cycle Campaign are cyclists would be in close
proximity to driveways increasing the risk of conflict with vehicles, cyclists may
be encouraged to cycle on the footway at locations where this type of facility
does not exist, and cyclists would be required to give way at side roads.

Officer response

These issues have been raised by residents and responded to in paragraphs 10,
13 and 14

Revised Scheme Proposals following Consultation

35. Several points were raised which could be addressed with beneficial modifications
to the scheme. These amendments are shown in Annex E and are as follows:

= At the entrance to the household waste site, the plan showed tactile paving and
red surfacing in error. As the footway continues over this access, tactile paving



36.

37.

Page 27

is not required, and as pedestrians and cyclists have right of way this would be
signified by green surfacing.

» Where cyclists cross and join the southbound carriageway, a second set of
dropped kerbs is proposed which would be provided south of Fellbrook Avenue
so a cyclist would be able to choose where they join the carriageway, this
choice of crossing point would assist cyclists going to the local shops, and those
wishing to avoid this busy area.

= It is considered appropriate to omit the access point to the off-road cycle track
on Wetherby Road to avoid any conflict with pedestrians crossing at the refuge
island. Any cyclists coming from west of the Wetherby Road roundabout would
have to join the cycle track on Beckfield Lane. However, due to there being very
few properties in this direction, there is not considered to be a large number of
cyclists affected.

Options on the Way Forward

Officers consider that the Executive Member has four options to consider:
Option One — authorise construction of the proposal shown in Annex B;

Option Two — approve an amended scheme (Annex E), plus any other changes to
the proposal that the Executive Member considers necessary, for construction;

Option Three — approve a scheme layout from Annex B or E but defer construction
work on the scheme at this time, and keep the scheme in reserve for consideration
at a later date for potential inclusion in future transport capital programmes.

Option Four — abandon the scheme completely.

Analysis of Options

Option One - Cycle facilities linking the new Manor School site to Beckfield Lane as
far south as Ostman Road have recently been constructed. The proposals
discussed in this report will complement those already in existence and provide
another phase which will fulfil the aim of having cycle facilities over the full length of
Beckfield Lane. These cycle facilities will serve destinations including local shops
and other businesses, and provide benefits for cyclists travelling beyond the area,
particularly to local schools. In addition, pedestrians will benefit from another
controlled crossing facility in an area with high demand.

Using the ‘Evaluation Tool' recently developed to assess and prioritise cycle
schemes, the proposed extension of cycle facilities on Beckfield Lane can be
compared to other schemes. Schemes are scored within a possible range of —30 to
+38. More information on how these scores are calculated can be found in the
report to this Decision Session entitled ‘Cycling Infrastructure within York —
Principles, Standards and Evaluation Tool’.



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Page 28

Scheme Total points
Beckfield Lane — Ostman Road to Wetherby Road proposals +12
Beckfield Lane — Boroughbridge Road to Ostman Road - +16
completed scheme
Crichton Avenue - proposals +21
Clifton Green — completed scheme +24
Moor Lane Bridge — completed scheme +26

Option Two - has the same benefits as Option One but also takes into
consideration many of the concerns expressed during the consultation to make the
scheme more attractive and usable.

Option Three — deferring the scheme to a later date will not address the issue of the
current off-road cycling on the section of Beckfield Lane with no current facilities
and may discourage some people from cycling this route especially school children.
Many parents have stated in the past that they would prefer their children to cycle
to school using off-road facilities as they perceive on-road lanes to be too
dangerous for children to use safely especially during the peak periods. Deferring
the scheme, however, may enable other higher-priority schemes to be progressed
such as those involving the orbital route or the major radial routes.

Option Four will not address the current issues on the southern end of Beckfield
Lane and may be seen as a barrier to cycling by potential cyclists.

Corporate Priorities
Completion of a cycle route would contribute to the following corporate priorities:

Sustainable City — Providing an off-road facility for cyclists would help encourage
cycling particularly for journeys to Manor School, but also for other residents who
may otherwise travel by car. This is also in line with objectives contained within the
Local Transport Plan 2006-11.

Safer City — The carriageway of Beckfield Lane is quite narrow and cyclists may get
squeezed by impatient car drivers, but an off-road route would prevent this from
happening. In addition, a controlled crossing facility would provide a safer place for
pedestrians and cyclists to cross the road.

Healthy City — Increased cycling as a result of any scheme will help improve the
health and lifestyle of people. Extra crossing facilities may also promote increased
walking particularly among more vulnerable pedestrians.



44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Page 29

Implications

This report has the following implications:

Financial

An allocation of £285k is included in the 2009/10 City Strategy Capital Programme
for implementation of a scheme. The current estimate is within that allocation. The
2009/10 programme is over-committed so progress on some schemes may need to
be slowed and delivery slipped into 2010/11. Details of any possible adjustments to
the capital programme would be presented to the Executive Member in the Monitor
2 report on 1% December 2009.

Human Resources

None.

Equalities

The proposed measures would benefit vulnerable road users such as pedestrians
and cyclists. In particular improved crossing facilities will benefit the young and the
elderly as well as the mobility and visually impaired.

Legal

City of York Council, as highway authority for the area, has powers under the
following Acts and associated Regulations to implement improvements to the
highway and any associated measures:

= The Highways Act 1980

» The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

» The Road Traffic Act 1988

Crime and Disorder

None.

Information Technology

None.

Land & Property

All the proposed works would be within the adopted highway.



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

Page 30

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the main risks linked to
this report are discussed below:-

Strategic
None.
Physical

If it is decided to implement the proposals, the main physical risk to achieving
implementation on time is thought to be the need to move or protect services in the
ground, where the layout of the highway is being altered. Close liaison with the
Utility companies would take place to identify and try to programme any necessary
works to fit the overall implementation timetable. In addition, work around the trees
may lengthen construction time to minimise the potential for any damage. Methods
of working would be devised in conjunction with the Council’s arboricultural officer.

Financial

The report contains initial estimates, as always upon more detailed investigation
there is a potential risk that scheme costs may increase. The need to move or
protect underground services poses the main area of financial uncertainty about the
overall cost of the scheme.

Organisation/Reputation

There is a risk of criticism from the public if a complete route on Beckfield Lane is
not pursued as discussed at the EMAP meetings of 8 September and 8 December
2008, and the Decision Session on 7 July 2009. Likewise, there is a risk of criticism
from consultees who are against the proposal.

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for all these risks has
been assessed at less than 16 (see table below). This means that at this point the
risks need only to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the
achievement of the objectives of this report.

Risk Category Impact Likelihood Score
Physical Medium Possible 9
Financial Medium Possible 9
Organisation/Reputation | Medium Possible 9




Page 31

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Louise Robinson Damon Copperthwaite

Engineer Assistant Director

Transport and Safety (City Development & Transport)

Engineering Consultancy

Tel: (01904) 553463 Report Approved v Date 2 October 2009

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no specialist implications.

Wards Affected: Acomb All I:l

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:

“‘Beckfield Lane — Pedestrian / Cyclist Improvements” — report to the meeting of the
Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel held on 8 December 2008.

“‘Beckfield Lane — Extension of cycle route“ — report to the Decision Session of the
Executive Member for City Strategy held on 7 July 2009.

Annexes

Annex A Beckfield Lane — Ostman Road to Wetherby Road — outline proposals for
an extension of pedestrian/cycle facilities and existing routes in the area —
discussed at Decision Session 7 July 2009.

Annex B Beckfield Lane — Ostman Road to Wetherby Road — proposed extension of

pedestrian/cycle facilities and toucan crossing.
Annex C Petition objecting to the proposals
Annex D Other issues raised by residents

Annex E Beckfield Lane — Ostman Road to Wetherby Road — proposed extension of
pedestrian/cycle facilities and toucan crossing with minor amendments.

Annex F Cycling survey sent to the residents of Acomb and Westfield who had
indicated they would be willing to take part in further studies following the
Cycling City survey.



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A

UPON THE ORDNANGE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE Drawn | Checked Dats Scale Drawing Number

w_&ﬁ.m HI.I OTAT =
PROBCUTION DR GV, PREGEEDNAR, Gl of Yo Do, i . Y00 2810 PH | LR | 01/06/2008 NTS DEC/09010532/01




Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B

Page 35

Speed table to be
extended further
into junction

w Bus shelter and other street
N fumiture to be moved back

mﬂ.Esﬁaa_
' V /

Beckfield Lane

.=, enueayyoouqied

z
Extract 1 : Links for Northbound cyclists to join cycletrack and shared area around bus stop. m VIEW TOWARDS OSTMAN ROAD
Givic amenty
site
Extract 1 E Extract 2
¢ Extract 4
A .
lnn, e M b | “» a————w —— 5 e e e r—— g . A | ‘

Pedestrian refuge
to be removed

Widen existing
footway to extend
N\ ———— shared area

Small tree to
be relocated

| Pa——
P $ — z
P Extend island to form

- cycle crossing point W
Extract 2 : Link for Southbound cyclists to M
join carriageway and typical side road Extract 3 : Shared area around bus stop and Extract 4 : Toucan crossing near Coop
junction layout. harrow verge supermarket.

Bg ciry or

OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. gzg _!E_.:i ooooooo

Beckfield Lane cycle route - Ostman Road to Wetherby Road e e S A L0 7S PESGRSR e OGO

PROCEEDINGS, City of York Council, Licance No. 100020818




Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37
Annex C

FETITION FROM BECKFIELD LANE RESIDENTS RE PROPOSED CYCLE TRACK

1|:".-‘E strongly object to the proposed cycle frack ouwside our homes, We do not believe that the
lejllud number ol cyclists (induding Manor Schaool pupils) who would be wsing the facility
metits Eilm_t.l::s.l.ructin:n of the: grass verges and the defacing of the paved areas. We also da nat
]_"'Eh"-?‘f'ﬂ ITis Etm:rmme_e Lo convert exsting palhways to epele tracks in residential arcas as there
18 & real danger of potential accidents caused by cars leaving driveways with limited sision or
cychists colliding with our many elderly residents.

Name & Address . ﬁi%““‘-”““(-“j- Mame & Address | Sigtﬁaﬁﬁfs} G
TEaw S Woeld | : TR |
| L VI ! .a-a-f;q 2 Fa il .

i'n:_-.u"r@'ﬁ. Cally? FIP|
Vi BECATIED & AR {/
Mol e,

i 1
\; Frisws Ay
i LD EH'-.'_-'ILF"uA_,:i e :' l

e S AT i i ?’:_:,::--'.'_J'

ool Yok ]
! e w

e _|!r_ ﬂ,a—l l‘. v ﬂrh";—'ﬂ =

22 BepFietc At | bz

0 ] o S = & Pererieny yeg |
. Se1TH i hendls s !

S o hint cer b e s -

Heary 2 Sie N _,-".:.'ad'r_f:,-é""..i"{::e..

'm.f.l[': f5oo i S8 e — _ :

IR0 ."3. i R AR ..-.?" : .r.. I:- ik r:"l K

L g _-'l'nI oo 'g ELo ‘rgff.’:\,lll-:}i@ i i .
(FEs =& iy | e -
. Bl Gt i 4 B S i 'ﬁzﬂﬁi‘”ﬂfifﬂ“‘ :
Vit | & iaes | |
;;Lr,uLa KL B FLEER - P g D& BowrTedd

A la g e fom do e 14 BRciiiset LA
"iﬂ—ﬁ-i"—_ 1L BECRSELS L AN L
_ ; : = RO

MR on-bgs |4 (et sty
e O L |
L b e, 158 I T .1 ilr:l F.?H f}'.“_-:,d:{-_&

Bl 42 Encp i 5 ff{ ~ & FiEsa praszh

fa AR o g bt _gégﬂ £79 ASE
| ABgisy el oo M CHPITAL |

Ly RECE LD

DocApfisr . Ve iy k8

AEREEN Feld i LV R

. 5 K .

s | % BECKE LD | |

e B K wsAieS || |
R A o g | ég BELKEIELD e ‘ |
L 'l‘""_t"‘i'g‘.‘:'fh ¥ g F

First page of a two page petition




Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

Annex D
Other Issues Raised by Residents

Any money would be better spent providing a layby to accommodate on-street
parking outside the shops which adds to congestion when the household waste
site is open.

Officer response

Funding allocated to this scheme would not be used for any proposals except
cycling improvements and public money is generally not used to benefit parking
outside private commercial premises. As the household waste site is only open
part of the time, remedial measures to reduce congestion are not considered
appropriate.

A cycle link could be provided from Muirfield Way through the park area.

Officer response

The park is managed by LCCS, but the footpath is adopted highway, so some
further investigation and consultation would be required, but a cycle link could
provide a short cut to around 90 properties. If the current proposals are approved,
we will investigate this matter further.

Knapton Lane would benefit from a small section of 20mph zone with a speed
table near its junction with Beckfield Lane to increase safety at this point.

Officer response

Although any reduction in vehicle speed is welcome, it is assumed that vehicles
on the approach to the junction are already slowing down, so any measures would
have limited effect on inbound traffic.

Is the bus shelter near Fellbrook Avenue needed?

Officer response

Two bus services use this bus stop, one is hourly, and the other is less frequent.
However, it is not unusual for new routes to start or for the frequency of existing
services to change. Therefore, removing a shelter would be to the detriment of
existing and future passengers and is not considered appropriate in this instance.

The cycle track access points are not needed because cyclist could enter the
cycle track using existing vehicular driveways.

Officer response
A dedicated cycle track access point is proposed because a cyclist using a
vehicular access could be faced with an oncoming vehicle.

Removing the verges will cause drainage problems.

Officer response
Drainage requirements would be considered carefully as part of the detailed
design.



Page 40

Construction could cause damage to the trees.

Officer response

We work closely with our arboricultural officer throughout the construction of all
schemes to minimise the potential for any damage to the trees, and follow
national guidance BS5837:2005 ‘Trees in relation to construction’, and National
Joint Utilities Guidelines (NJUG) 4.2.

The rumble effect of warning paving is often avoided by people with pushchairs as
it is unpleasant for the child occupant. In addition, on the cyclist side it can
become slippery when wet or icy.

Officer response

Ladder pattern warning paving is installed to assist people with visual impairments
and allow them to identify which side of a footway / cycle track is for pedestrians.
Its installation is in line with national guidance so cannot be a different design or
omitted.

The eastern footway should be improved as well for the benefit of pedestrians.

Officer response

The footway maintenance programme is decided annually following a survey of
every footway in the council area which identifies the areas in most need of
treatment. This year, Beckfield Lane did not fall into this category so is not in the
2009/10 programme. However, regular inspections would also pick up any defects
in need of repair which would be treated separately.



Page 41

Annex E

_Qnomoooamuo_a _

peoy Aqieyepm

4

2! |Speed table to be
Bus shelter and other street T |extended further
fumiture to be moved back m. into junction

>

]

g

o

—

% a % p— % ..% %

Beckfield Lane
A Cycle link to rejoin | 5 » —
Extract 1 : Link for zo_.._._cocaa cydlists to join cycletrack, southbound n<o__m$ to join carriageway 3
carriageway and shared area around bus stop. ® m VIEW TOWARDS OSTMAN ROAD
o
Extact1 [ | [ | Extract 2
_ Extract 4
»
‘QMOHQ ﬂ_mo e = J .qoﬂulo"ol ”l ﬂo”o"o i—.o““ “ h‘“o R — ”o”.o“o H.'. Ho ”o” - AR L ‘
7 st S S B | 8 ==
ik ema H
Pedestrian refuge
p——— to be removed
ma
be relocated Widen existing
footway to extend
) ——— shared area
] R
$ I &
P Extend island to form
- Qvﬁ_w Oqsw_:ﬂ point W
Extract 2 : Link for Southbound cyclists to M
join carriageway and typical side road Extract 3 : Shared area around bus stop and Extract 4 : Toucan crossing near Coop
junction layout. harrow verge supermarket. 2

Beckfield Lane cycle route - Ostman Road to Wetherby Road

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER
(OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED
REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL
PROCEEDINGS, City of York Council, Licance No. 100020818

ooooooo




Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43
Annex F

L

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Beckfield Lane, Acomb — Cycling Survey
About you and cycling (Please circle all that apply)

1 Do you cycle?
Yes — Daily/A few times a week/Once a week/Once a month/Less than once a month
No — Please go to Question 6

2 For what purposes do you cycle? For...
Commuting / Business / Leisure / Fitness / Shopping / Personal / Other.....................

Cycling on Beckfield Lane, Acomb

3 Do you cycle on Beckfield Lane?
Yes — Daily/A few times a week/Once a week/ Once a month/Less than once a month
No — Please go to Question 6

4 Do you use the new cycle path on Beckfield Lane (between Ostman Road and
Boroughbridge Road)?
Yes / No, | don’t cycle there / No, | cycle there, but use the carriageway

5 If implemented, would you use the proposed cycle path on Beckfield Lane between
Ostman Road and Wetherby Road (see attached plan)?
Yes / No, | wouldn’t cycle there / No, | would cycle there, but would use the carriageway

6 Would a complete off-road cycle route on Beckfield Lane encourage you to start cycling or
cycle more?
Yes / No / No — | have no reason to cycle in the Beckfield Lane area

7 Do you think the proposed cycle path on Beckfield Lane between Ostman Road and
Wetherby Road is a..? (see attached plan)
Very good idea/Fairly good idea/Neither good, nor bad idea/Fairly bad idea/Very bad idea

Thank you for your time in completing this survey. Please return it to us in the freepost envelope
provided by Friday 11™ September, 2009.

If you wish to be kept informed about progress on the proposals, please provide your details
below. These will be treated in the strictest confidence.
Name ... E-mail. ...



Page 44



Page 45 Agenda Item 5

Decision Session Executive Member 20" October 2009
for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Petition Concerning the Erection of Bollards and Chicanes to
Prevent Speeding Down Etty Avenue.

Summary

1. This report advises the Executive Member for City Strategy of the receipt of a
petition from residents of Etty Avenue. The petition requests that the council
take steps to tackle the speed of traffic on Etty Avenue with the erection of
bollards and chicanes.

Recommendations

2. The Executive Member is asked to agree to Officers offering residents a
Community Speed Indicator Device (SID) and the necessary training to
enable the community to monitor traffic speeds on Etty Avenue.

Reason - Engineering measures are not considered appropriate however
SID will enable speed to continue to be monitored and drivers will be made
aware of the speed at which they are travelling. This will help resolve
community issues as well as comply with the Speed Review process.

Background

3. The petition was received by the City of York Council on the 22 September
2008 and contained 80 signatures. A copy of the residents petition is
attached at Annex A.

4. The petition regards the request for bollards and chicanes to be installed on
Etty Avenue due to a problem with speeding traffic.

5. The issue that is raised in the petition is the following:

The petition requests that Bollards or Chicanes be installed to prevent
traffic speeding on Etty Avenue.

6. In the last three years there have been no recorded casualties on this stretch
of road relating to the issue raised in the petition. Looking back at records
there has only been one accident listed as slight. A child cycled out from



Page 46

behind a stationary Ice Cream van and into the path of a moped. This
account was verified by an independent witness.

7. Etty Avenue was traffic-calmed in early 1997 and was provided with speed
cushions, the Walmgate Neighbourhood forum funded this scheme.

Speed Review Process and Partnership Collaboration

8. As documented in the last Speed Review update (EMAP March 2009) there
has been on going work to join with other partners (North Yorkshire Fire
Service and Police) to improve and streamline the way we handle speeding
complaints and issues across the city.

9. The basis for this process is the existing Speed Review Criteria, documented
in Annex B, which has been broadened from simply considering engineering
remedies and now takes into consideration casualty reduction and community
concerns about the speed issues. As part of this work, the partners have
been exploring ways in which they can provide other options for speed
concerns, where the existing data led process results in a low score, meaning
that engineering interventions are not appropriate.

10. A simplified diagram of how the process works is included in Annex C.

11.The primar)é measures used to assess speed data should be the mean speed
and the 85™ percentile speed. (i.e the speed at or below which 85 cars out of
a 100 travel in free flow conditions).

12.All three agencies (CYC, North Yorkshire Fire Service and Police) are
actively involved in the mechanics and delivery of this process. Casualty
reduction the main priority for the council, because the key performance
indicator is reducing killed and seriously injured.

Analysis of Data

13.The speed limit for this road is 30mph. Between the 7" and the 14"
September 2009 a seven day speed survey was carried out to record speed
travelled and establish if speeding was an issue that affected this road.

14.The mean speed for traffic on Etty Avenue was recorded at 15mph, and the
85" percentile speed for traffic travelling on Etty Avenue was recorded at
18mph. The highest speed recorded was 30mph.

15.The road is therefore a category four road in the Speed Review process, with
speeds being recorded as low, as well as having a low casualty rate
regarding speeding traffic.

16.The issue appears to be one of perception rather an actual speeding against
the posted speed limit, as the highest speed recorded was 30mph and no
vehicles exceeded the speed limit. However the residents may still consider
the speeds to be inappropriate for the road.



Page 47

17. The traffic calming implemented in 1997 is sufficient to restrain the traffic

speed to speeds below 30mph.

Options

18.0Option 1, In response to the petition and subsequent data analysis on Etty

Avenue the following proposal should be offered to residents:

A Community Speed Indictor Device and the necessary training should be
offered to residents if they wish to monitor traffic speeds.

19. Option 2, No further action

Analysis Of Options

20.Option 1 looks at providing the concerned residents with an opportunity to

21.

use a Community Speed Indicator Device (SID). This would allow the
community the opportunity to address anti-social driving behaviour and
influence drivers style of driving through education.

The Community Speed Indicator Device (SID) is particularly beneficial when
tackling the casual speeder who may not have realised that they are driving
too fast or breaking the speed limit. The SID does not record and store the
data but does notify the driver of their speed and helps to make them more
aware of potential hazards in the area and the appropriate speed at which
they should be travelling. The community are more aware of the actual speed
of traffic travelling along the road as they will need to monitor the equipment
at all times it is used.

22.The agreed (at EMAP) Speed Review process is data led and ensures that

limited resources are targeted at locations where there are significant
casualty and or speed issues. This location does not fall within that category
and has not been put forward for additional signing or traffic calming
measures.

23.0ption 2, Not address community concerns, and the data does not suggest

targeted enforcement is appropriate.

Consultation

24.Councillor Pierce would like it to be known that Ward members are aware of

the incident involving a child and a moped and suggests that perhaps full-
width speed bump may be more effective than bollards and chicanes.

25.The Hull Road ward committee feels that a speed gun would also be an

ineffective way to combat speed on a long-term basis.

26.Councillor Pierce goes on to suggest that road signs should be erected

warning drivers of children screened by parked cars. And that the council



Page 48

should instigate a mix of physical measures and signing to prevent a repeat
of last year's incident.

27.Councillor Potter supports option for the community Speed Indicator Device
to be offered to residents of Etty Avenue.

28.Councillor D'Agorne feels that an inappropriate speed can still be an issue
below the maximum limit - using the phrase 'an issue of perception' implies
that it is fine to drive at a speed that is inappropriate, as long as it is below
30mph, and that the resident’s perception is at fault, not the driver behaviour
or the speed limit.

Corporate Priorities

29. The councils Corporate Strategy aims to increase the use of public and other
environmentally friendly modes of transport is relevant to this report. Fears of
being a causality are a real deterrent to more people walking and in particular
cycling. By implementing a robust programme of speed management
measures to reduce excessive speeding, which targets the minority of drivers
whose driving behaviour poses the greatest risk to others, overall safety can
be improved and an increase in active transport use achieved. The
recommendation therefore contributes to the sustainable city and safer city
objectives.

Risk Management

30.In line with risk management requirements, the risks have been evaluated as
low and require monitoring only.

Implications
¢ Financial — None, will be delivered from existing funds
¢ Human Resources (HR) — None
o Equalities — None
e Other —.None

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Kathryn MacKay Damon Copperthwaite
Road Safety Assistant Assistant Director (City Development & Transport)

Directorate of City Strategy
Report Approved v~ | Date 8 October 2009

Specialist Implications Officer None



Page 49

Wards Affected:
Hull Road

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

All relevant background papers must be listed here.

Annexes

All annexes to the report must be listed here.

Annex A — Petition handed to CYC from Etty Avenue Residents.

Annex B — Speed Review Criteria

Annex C — Simplified diagram of Speed Review Criteria



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

Annex A

| NS

Siagned pesation for Roll ards
=y

+ chichaane = .
Drop eerbS Sec et s S(Z"’%Q\J Had:lf(s
T o) sperd monsy === : o Taad \

N = e
lame. 1+ Sadress mrsw;?{:;@'h v
So === J__ﬁl?_e:,orb e Boy racer S




Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53

Annex B

FAIYEIVE=Y Y

Criteria_for assessing speed issues, as agreed at Meeting of
Executive Members for City Strateqy and Advisory Panel -

QOctober 2006:-

This established that, speeding issues should be assessed against certain
criteria:-

1. a.Injury accident record - based upon North Yorkshire Police data, for
the preceding three years, and prioritised on severity using the
standard categorisations of fatal, serious, or slight. Officers use a
points scoring system to rank sites as high or low. This is based on a
slight casualty receiving 1 point, with a fatal or serious casualty being
weighted at 4 points. A total points score of 6 or more is need for the
site to be given a “high” ranking.

b.Speed data - collected using automatic counting equipment and
conducted over a period of at least 24 hours.

2. The mean (average) speed recorded by the survey provides a good
overall indication of the speed environment, but it does not give a good
indication of how many drivers may be exceeding the legal speed limit
by a significant amount.

3. The 85" percentile speed helps to show this by indicating the speed
not exceeded by 85 % of the traffic surveyed, and hence is the level
exceeded by the other 15%. Based on national guidelines, the
threshold levels generally used by the Police for speed limit
enforcement purposes are worked out by the following formula:-

4. Threshold speed = speed limit + 10% + 2mph. For example in a 20
zone, the formula would look like:-

5. Speed limit + 10%+ 2mph = 20mph + 2 + 2mph = 24mph

6. The table below summarises the thresholds above which vehicle
speeds are regarded as “high” within the assessment framework

adopted by the Council:
. Threshold «° Threshold
Speed Limit (mean speeds) (85" percentile
speeds)
20 mph 20 mph 24 mph
30 mph 30 mph : 35 mph
40 mph 40 mph 46 mph
60 mph 60 mph 68 mph




7. s then categorised using a scale of 1 - 4, with 1
priority, as shown in the following table:

Page 54

being the highest

Category Speed | Casualties Priority Treatment
. . Very Speed management
1 High High High measures
: : Casualty reduction
2 Low High High measures
Speed management
measures, if funds
3 High Low Medium available or through
Ward Committee
Funding
4 Low Low Low None




Page 55

Annex C
MNINYIVEms\
| Safer York Partnership Speed Review Process ( Simplified )
Complaint received
by Police
on standard Form
Acknowledgement
Letter Sent
Review
last 36 months
accident data
Slight = 1 point
| KSI = 4 points
> 6 points 0 - 5 points
HIGH casualties LOW casualties
Speed Surveys Speed Surveys
by CYC by NYF & Rescue
Assess against speed criteria |
HIGH > Limit + 10% + 2 mph N
LOW < Limit + 10% + 2 mph
v
Categorise Road
I
v ' v v v
Category 4 Category 3 Category 2 Category 1
LOW Speed HIGH Speed LOW Speed HIGH Speed
LOW Casualties LOW Casualties HIGH Casualties HIGH Casualties
A i A A
LOW Priority MEDIUM Priority HIGH Priority VERY HIGH Priority
No Ward Committee Review ynder Engineering
further action funded LSS criteria measures
and/or... speed reduction and/or.... and/or....
measures
and/or.....
/ oo
v I | '
Education offered, carried out, or possible specifically targeted enforcement.
The intervention or level of intervention to be determined by the criteria.

Information
Letter Sent s




Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57 Agenda ltem 6

COUNCIL

Decision Session - Executive Member for City 20 October 2009
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Petition Concerning Speeding traffic at the Entrance to West Bank
Park From the Junction of New Lane and Hill Street.

Summary

1. This report advises the Executive Member for City Strategy of the receipt of a
petition from residents of New Lane and Hill Street. The petition requests that
the council take steps to tackle the speed of traffic on the junction of New
Lane and Hill Street opposite West Bank Park.

Recommendation

2. The Executive Member is asked to agree to Option One with Officers offering
residents a Community Speed Indicator Device (SID) and the necessary
training to enable residents to monitor traffic speeds in the New Lane and Hill
Street area.

Reason - Engineering measures are not considered appropriate however SID
will enable speed to continue to be monitored and drivers will be made aware
of the speed at which they are travelling. This will help resolve community
issues as well as comply with the Speed Review process.

Background

3. The petition was received by the City of York Council and contains 129
signatures. A excerpt of the resident’s petition is attached in Annex A.

4. The petition concerns the junction at New Lane and Hill Street, Holgate
opposite West Bank Park.

5. The issue that is raised in the petition is the following:
That the speed of traffic travelling at the entrance of West Bank Park
prevents children crossing safely to the park from the junction of New

Lane and Hill Street.

6. In the last three years there have been no recorded casualties on this stretch
of road relating to the issue raised in the petition.



Page 58

7. Records show that, there is only one recorded accident in the last 10 years,
and this involved a driver who was taken seriously ill at the wheel of his car.
No one was injured as a result of this crash.

Speed Review Process And Partnership Collaboration

8. As documented in the last Speed Review update (EMAP March 2009) there
has been on-going work to join with other partners (CYC, North Yorkshire
Fire Service, North Yorkshire Police) to improve and streamline the way we
handle speeding complaints and issues across the city.

9. The basis for this process is the existing Speed Review Criteria, documented
in Annex B, which has been broadened and now takes into consideration, not
just casualty reduction, but also community concerns about speed issues. As
part of this work, the partners have been exploring ways in which they can
provide other options for speed concerns, where the existing data led process
results in a low score, meaning that engineering interventions are not
appropriate.

10.The primar)é measures used to assess speed data should be the mean speed
and the 85™ percentile speed. (i.e the speed at or below which 85 cars out of
a 100 travel in free flow conditions).

11.All three agencies (CYC, North Yorkshire Fire Service and North Yorkshire
Police) are actively involved in the mechanics and delivery of this process.
Casualty reduction is the council's main priority, because the key
performance indicator is reducing the number of killed and seriously injured
on our roads.

12.1t should be added that parental responsibility is key and that the Council
offers proactive measures such as pedestrian training to primary schools in
York as part of the three identified strands of road safety — education,
engineering and enforcement.

Analysis of Data

13.The speed limit for this road is 30mph. Between the 24" June and the 1% July
2009 a seven-day speed survey was carried out to establish if speeding was
an issue that affected this road.

14.The mean speed for traffic travelling from Acomb Road towards New Lane
was recorded at 25mph, and the 85" percentile speed for traffic travelling
from Acomb Road towards New Lane was recorded at 32mph.

15.The mean speed for traffic travelling towards Acomb Road was recorded at
26mph, and the g5 percentile speed for traffic travelling towards Acomb
Road was recorded at 32 mph.

16.The road is therefore categorised as a category 4 road in the speed review
process, with speeds being recorded as low against the posted speed limit,



Page 59

as well as having a low casualty rate regarding speeding traffic. The issue
appears to be one of perception rather then actual speeding. However the
residents may still consider the speeds to be inappropriate for the road.

Options

17.In response to the petition and subsequent data analysis on New Lane and
Hill Street Junction, the following options could be offered to residents.

Option One

18.A Community Speed Indicator Device and the necessary training should be
offered to residents if they wish to monitor traffic speeds.

19.In addition to this the Police have already passed the data over to the
Neighbourhood Police teams who will use the data led evidence to target
speed enforcement on the road.

Option Two

20.No further action

Analysis Of Options

21.0Option One looks at giving the concerned residents an opportunity to use a
Community Speed Indicator Device (SID). This would allow the community
the opportunity to address anti-social driving behaviour and influence drivers
style of driving through education.

22.The Community Speed Indicator Device (SID) is particularly beneficial when
tackling the casual speeder who may not have realised that they are driving
too fast or breaking the speed limit. The SID does not record and store the
data but does notify the driver of their speed and helps to make them more
aware of potential hazards in the area and the appropriate speed at which
they should be travelling by flashing up their recorded speed and a happy or
sad face. The community are more aware of the actual speed of traffic
travelling along the road as they will need to monitor the equipment at all
times it is in use.

23.The Police use the data to identify specific times of day when traffic has been
recorded as speeding and then use this information to undertake
enforcement issues aimed at that particular time of day.

24.0Option Two looks at no further action being taken with regards to the
perception of speeding at the New Lane Hill Street Junction opposite West
Bank Park.

25.The speed review process does not look at reducing the speed limit on the
road instead it looks at reducing the speeds on the road against the posted
speed limit. A report considering how to take forward 20mph speed limits in



Page 60

York will be presented to the Executive Member Decision Session in
November.

Consultation

26.The Holgate Councillors wish it to be known that they reject option two, as
they believe that doing nothing does not respect the concerns of the
petitioners. They support option one, that the Community Speed Device (SID)
Indicator should be offered to the residents of Hill Street and New Lane with
the suggestion that a review be carried out in the near future to establish
whether the action taken is responding to residents concerns over speeding
at the New Lane and Hill Street Junction.

27.Councillor D’Agorne has suggested that this road is an ideal candidate for a
20 mph limit.

Corporate Priorities

28.The councils Corporate Strategy aim of increasing the use of public and
other environmentally friendly modes of transport is relevant to this report.
Fears of being a casualty are a real deterrent to more people walking and in
particular cycling. By implementing a robust programme of speed
management measures to reduce excessive speeding, which targets the
minority of drivers whose driving behaviour poses the greatest risk to others,
overall safety can be improved and an increase in active transport use
achieved. The recommendations in this report therefore contribute to the
Safer City and Sustainable City priorities.

Risk Management

29.1n line with risk management requirements, the risks have been evaluated as
low and require monitoring only.

Implications
e Financial — None, will be delivered from existing funds
e Human Resources (HR) — None
e Equalities — None
e Other — None

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Kathryn MacKay Damon Copperthwaite
Road Safety Assistant Assistant Director (City Development & Transport)

Tel No. (565)1387 Directorate of City Strategy



Page 61

Report Approved v | Date 08 October 2009

Specialist Implications Officer

Wards Affected: Holgate Ward All I:l

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

All relevant background papers must be listed here.

Annexes
All annexes to the report must be listed here.

Annex A — Petition handed to CYC from New Lane/ Hill Street Junction (Holgate)
Residents.

Annex B — Speed Review Criteria



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

ANNEX A

Tackle Speed
‘on New Lane

We the undersigned ,call on
the council to take steps to
tackle the speed of traffic at
the entrance to West Bank
Park in order to improve the
safety of children crossing
to the park from the junction
of New Lane and Hill Street.




Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

ANNEX B

Talh IR TSV o

Criteria_for_assessing speed issues, as agreed at Meeting of

Executive Members for City Strateqy and Advisory Panel -
October 2006:- '

This established that, speeding issues should be assessed against certain
criteria:-

1. a.Injury accident record - based upon North Yorkshire Police data, for
the preceding three years, and prioritised on severity using the
standard categorisations of fatal, serious, or slight. Officers use a
points scoring system to rank sites as high or low. This is based on a
slight casualty receiving 1 point, with a fatal or serious casualty being
weighted at 4 points. A total points score of 6 or more is need for the
site to be given a “high” ranking.

b.Speed data - collected using automatic counting equipment and
conducted over a period of at least 24 hours.

2. The mean (average) speed recorded by the survey provides a good
overall indication of the speed environment, but it does not give a good
indication of how many drivers may be exceeding the legal speed limit
by a significant amount.

3. The 85" percentile speed helps to show this by indicating the speed
not exceeded by 85 % of the traffic surveyed, and hence is the level
exceeded by the other 15%. Based on national guidelines, the
threshold levels generally used by the Police for speed limit
enforcement purposes are worked out by the following formula:-

4. Threshold speed = speed limit + 10% + 2mph. For example in a 20
zone, the formula would look like:-

5. Speed limit + 10%+ 2mph = 20mph + 2 + 2mph = 24mph

6. The table below summarises the threshoids above which vehicle
speeds are regarded as “high” within the assessment framework

adopted by the Council:
. Threshold < Threshold
Speed Limit (mean speeds) (85" percentile
speeds)
20 mph 20 mph 24 mph
30 mph 30 mph : 35 mph
40 mph 40 mph 46 mph
60 mph 60 mph 68 mph




7. s then categorised using a scale of 1 - 4, with 1
priority, as shown in the following table:

Page 66

being the highest

Category Speed | Casualties Priority Treatment
. . Very Speed management
1 High High High measures
. . Casualty reduction
2 Low High High measures
Speed management
measures, if funds
3 High Low Medium available or through
Ward Committee
Funding
4 Low Low Low None




Page 67 Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL

Decision Session — 20 October 2009
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

VEHICLE ACTIVATED SIGNS (VAS) POLICY

Summary

This report contains suggested policy guidelines for the use of VAS and options
for monitoring VAS installations to assess their effectiveness.

Recommendations

That the Executive Member notes the content of the report and approves the
following:-

a. Local Transport Plan(LTP) funding will only be used where the 85%ile
speed equals or exceeds the signed limit by 10%+2mph (i.e. 35mph in a
30mph limit, and 46mph in a 40mph limit). This would be consistent with the
speed enforcement thresholds employed by the police.

Reason: To ensure a consistent approach and targeted use of LTP
resources.

b. Where the LTP funding criteria is not met, a Ward Committee or Parish
Council may still wish to fund the installation of a VAS. In this situation, it is
recommended that a threshold of 85%ile speeds being 10% above the
speed limit should be adopted (i.e.33mph in a 30mph limit and 44mph in a
40mph limit).

Reason: To make sure VAS are used in appropriate areas.

c. That monitoring of traffic speeds at VAS sites is carried out at approximately
3 months after implementation to gauge initial performance, and then again
at around 3 years (or earlier if considered appropriate), along with a review
of accident records, to assess the long term effectiveness of the sign.

Reason: To ensure appropriate data is available to enable an informed
decision to be made about whether a VAS should be retained (and replaced
when required), or redeployed somewhere else.

d. That the outcomes of this monitoring process and officer recommendations
be reported to the Executive Member in respect of LTP funded VAS, and
Ward Members in respect of Ward Committee funded VAS, for decisions to
be made on the retention or possible re-deployment of the VAS.



Page 68

Reason: To ensure that matters relating to VAS deployment are considered
by the appropriate body.

Background

Vehicle activated signs (VAS), are a relatively recent addition to the range of
road side signs that are authorised by the Department for Transport (DfT). They
display a message when they are approached by a vehicle exceeding the
speed limit or going too fast for the type of road, for instance at a hazard such
as a bend. For example, a ‘warning sign’ can be displayed to advise of a
specific hazard ahead, such as a bend or crossroads, or the ‘speed limit’ sign to
remind motorists of the prevailing limit. In addition a displayed traffic sign may
be accompanied by the message ‘SLOW DOWN'.

The DT in Traffic Advisory Leaflet 1/03 state that VAS should be considered
only where there is an accident problem associated with inappropriate speed
that has not been satisfactorily remedied by standard signing.

The introduction of VAS in York has been discussed in a number of previous
“Six Monthly Review of Speeding Issues” reports, which were considered by
the Executive Member for City Strategy and Advisory Panel (EMAP). At the
meeting of EMAP on 30 October 2006 it was decided that the use of VAS in
York should not be restricted only to those locations where there is a casualty
record.

As a result of decisions made at these meetings there are currently 50 VAS in
York, all relating to speed limits (7 in 20mph speed limits, 38 in 30mph and 5 in
40mph limits). Of these, 16 have been funded by Ward Committees. So far, no
hazard warning VAS have been introduced in York.

A general assessment of the performance of these VAS signs was reported to
EMAP in March 2009. This showed that the effectiveness of VAS tends to
reduce with time as drivers become familiar with them. Therefore EMAP
requested this report to review the criteria for installation of new VAS signs,
monitoring procedures, and what to do if they become ineffective.

Proposals

General Application of VAS

To avoid a proliferation of their use and a dilution of their effect on drivers, it is
recommended that the CYC policy should be to only use VAS (for speed
management or hazard warning purposes) where there is data led evidence
that one would be beneficial, and after other low cost solutions have been fully
considered.

Speed Management VAS

Requests for speed management VAS will normally be evaluated through the
Speed Review process. As part of this a speed survey will be carried out to give
evidence of whether a VAS is justified.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 69

To warrant Local Transport Plan (LTP) funding it is recommended that a VAS
should only be considered where the 85%ile speed equals or exceeds the
signed limit by 10%+2mph (i.e. 35mph in a 30mph limit, and 46mph in a 40mph
limit). This would be consistent with the speed enforcement thresholds
employed by the police.

Where this LTP funding criteria is not met, a Ward Committee or Parish Council
may still wish to fund the installation of a VAS. In this situation, it is
recommended that a threshold of 85%ile speeds being 10% above the speed
limit should be adopted (i.e.33mph in a 30mph limit and 44mph in a 40mph
limit).

VAS are usually set up to trigger at a speed level 10% above the signed limit.
This allows for a degree of inaccuracy in the speedometers of vehicles and
thereby avoids complaints about the sign being displayed when a driver thinks
they are travelling within the speed limit. Therefore, providing a VAS where the
85%ile speed is lower than this level would result in only a small number of
drivers seeing the “Slow Down” message.

Hazard Warning VAS

The potential use of hazard warning VAS will normally be assessed through the
Local Safety Scheme or Danger Reduction Scheme evaluation processes. As
part of this process the following sources of data will be looked at; police injury
accident records, evidence of damage only collisions, speed and flow data, and
any anecdotal information available.

Monitoring

The monitoring of VAS installations is considered important to ensure that they
are achieving the desired outcomes. This presents different challenges
depending on the main purpose of the VAS.

For hazard warning VAS the effectiveness can quite easily be assessed by
looking at accident savings achieved after a 3 year period. This information is
easily accessible via the police records, which are held on a computer
database. If accident numbers do not reduce, this may point to the need to give
serious consideration to other ways of tackling the problem.

In contrast, the effectiveness of speed management VAS can only accurately
be assessed by carrying out detailed speed surveys, which are quite expensive
to undertake and analyse (a typical speed survey costs around £100, plus
some staff time for subsequent analysis and reporting). In all cases speed
surveys need to be carried out as part of the initial VAS assessment process,
and these will form the base “before” data. However, the resource implications
of any “after” monitoring regime need to be carefully considered, bearing in
mind that there are already 50 such sites and more are likely to be introduced
in the future. Some options for levels of monitoring are outlined below:-

Level One —no “ after” monitoring

This would avoid all “after” survey costs, but would not provide any reliable
means of assessing if the VAS is effective, either in the short or long term. This



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 70

could be a particular problem if the VAS breaks down at some point in the
future and is beyond economical repair (although current VAS do come with a 5
year warranty). A decision would then have to be taken whether to invest in a
new VAS or abandon the site. Without further survey data it would be difficult to
make an objective decision on this. Therefore this option could not be
recommended.

Level Two — just some short term after monitoring

About 3 months following installation an “after” speed survey could be carried
out (a 24 hour seven day survey is suggested). This would enable a check to
be made that the sign is having a positive impact on traffic speeds, after drivers
have had a reasonable amount of time to get used to it being there. If the
results were not positive, then other actions need to be considered at an early
date. However this option would not allow any longer term changes on driver
behaviour to be tracked, and again this could be a problem when a decision
has to be made about replacing the sign at some point in the future.

Level Three —short term and long term after monitoring

In addition to a three month “after” survey to assess the short term
effectiveness of the VAS, this option proposes that another survey should
routinely be carried out after the sign has been operating for 3 years to assess
the long term impact of the sign. This would enable an informed decision to be
made about whether the sign should be retained (and replaced when required),
or possibly be redeployed elsewhere.

Level three monitoring would clearly be the most expensive option (2x £100 for
the surveys, plus staff time for analysis and reporting), but the gathering and
assessment of good quality data at 3 months and 3 years after the sign is
installed is considered very important towards ensuring that VAS remain an
effective measure. Hence this option is recommended.

Evaluation and Decision Making

If the proposed monitoring regime for VAS is formally adopted, officers would
evaluate the data gathered at both the 3 month and 3 year intervals. If any
issues arise from either the short term or long term monitoring (i.e. either
speeds or accidents numbers return to their “before” levels), the matter would
be reported to the appropriate decision making body, as outlined below.

Where a VAS has been funded through the Local Transport Plan, the matter
would be referred to the Executive Member for City Strategy via a brief
evaluation report prepared by officers. In the scenario where a sign has ceased
to have a positive effect (i.e. no reduction in accidents or the number of drivers
exceeding the trigger speed of the VAS) a recommendation is likely to be made
on re-deploying the sign at another site already identified as likely to benefit
from this sign being used there.

Where a sign has been funded by the Ward Committee the matter would be
referred to the Ward Councillors, again via a brief evaluation report prepared
by officers. In the scenario where a sign has ceased to have a positive effect, a
recommendation is likely to be made that the Ward Committee consider re-



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 71

deploying the sign at another site within the same Ward. If a suitable alternative
site could not be identified within that Ward, consideration would be given to
locating it elsewhere.

Consultation

Officers consulted with Councillors D’Agorne, Gillies and Potter as leaders of
the main political parties on the draft proposals. The Police were also
consulted. Their responses are summarised below.

Councillor D’Agorne supports Level Three and states that funding for this
would need to be considered as part of the budget for the whole programme.

Councillor Gillies is of the opinion that the more of these signs that appear the
less effect on speeding they have. He feels that the adding of software to the
VAS to record speeds etc, would be useful in order that concentration on the
most frequently triggered signs can be enforced by further measures.

Officer comment. The sign manufacturer has indicated that it will soon be
possible to purchase an add on feature which will enable a VAS sign to record
traffic survey data. This is likely to be priced at about £1200, which is
approximately 50% of the current cost of a VAS. This would be a significant
extra cost for each sign installation, and the benefits would need to be carefully
compared to the current practice of just doing surveys as and when needed.

Councillor Potter supports Level Three as the only sensible course to get any
proper evaluation of the use of VAS and their long term need in any particular
place.

The Police view is that the proposals will accomplish very little and do not
support them. They consider that VAS should only be used as a casualty
reduction tool when there is an accident problem associated with inappropriate
speed that has not been satisfactorily remedied by other measures.

Officer comment. VAS is being used as a speed management tool and not
just for casualty reduction. Whilst this goes against DfT guidelines it was
considered by EMAP in October 2006 and the decision was made that the use
of VAS in York should not be restricted only to those locations where there is a
casualty record.

Options

The basic options are to accept the proposals set out in this report, amend
them or reject them.

Analysis of Options

It is considered important to have a policy in place covering the provision of
VAS in the city, to ensure a consistent approach to implementation and to avoid
a proliferation of such signs, which would diminish their effectiveness. The
proposals put forward offer a structured but flexible approach to VAS and
should help to improve road safety.



Page 72

33.The leaders of the political groups have indicated support to the proposals
with a strong preference for Level Three monitoring to be adopted as the
norm.

34.The police have expressed a view that when VAS are used in inappropriate
locations they are ineffective, and they should be considered when there is
an accident problem associated with inappropriate speed. However, as a
result of the EMAP decision taken in October 2006, many VAS are now
used in York as part of speed management and danger reduction schemes
rather than pure casualty reduction schemes. The proposed monitoring and
evaluation process should ensure that any ineffective signs are identified
and options for re-deployment considered.

35.1f the recommendations are rejected then there will be no means of
assessing VAS requests or whether the existing ones are justified.

Corporate Priorities

36.VAS have the potential to provide safer roads and therefore contribute to
the corporate priorities aimed at making York a Safer City.

Implications
This report has the following implications:
Financial

37.The cost of monitoring a typical VAS site at 3 months and 3 years will be
around £200 per site for the actual speed surveys, plus an amount of staff
time for follow up analysis and reporting. This will vary depending on what
the monitoring reveals, but for estimating purposes an average staff time
cost of around £300 would seem reasonable. This gives a total estimated
cost of around £500 for future monitoring of a VAS.

38.1t is anticipated that only a modest number of new LTP funded signs will be
introduced year on year. Therefore the costs of monitoring should not be a
significant problem to accommodate within future Capital Programmes
under the budgets allocated for speed management or road safety work.
Similarly, future Capital Programme funding would also be appropriate if the
monitoring process leads to a recommendation that an LTP funded VAS
would be better re-deployed elsewhere, or confirms that one is working well
and should be renewed if breaks down (the VAS currently used in York
have the benefit of a 5-year comprehensive warranty).

39.Where a new VAS is funded by a Ward Committee, a sum of around £500
to cover monitoring will need to clearly identified by the Ward Committee as
a future commitment within its budget process. Furthermore, any
subsequent costs involved in re-locating a VAS, or replacing a defective one
which is outside its 5-year warranty period will need to be met by the Ward
Committee.



Page 73

Human Resources
40.None.
Equalities
41.None

Legal

42.City of York Council, as highway authority for the area, has powers to place
VAS on the highway. VAS comply with the Traffic Signs and General
Directions 2002.

Crime and Disorder
43.None.

Information Technology
44.None.

Land & Property
45.None.

Risk Management

46.In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the main risks
linked to this report are discussed below:-

Strategic
47.Risks of the signs being placed in inappropriate places.
Financial

48.The report contains details of costs of monitoring (£500 per site) which will
need to be included within LTP or Ward Committee allocations for new VAS.
There is a possibility of this being exceeded, but it is only considered a low
risk.

49.Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score of all risks has
been assessed as less than 16. This means that at this point the risks need
only to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement
of the objectives of this report.

Risk Category | Impact Likelihood | Score

Strategic Medium (3) | Possible (3) | 9

Financial Low (2) Possible (3) | 6




Page 74

Contact Details:

Authors Chief Officer Responsible for the report
Mike Durkin & John Damon Copperthwaite

Goldsbrough Assistant Director

Transport and Safety (City Development & Transport)

Engineering Consultancy
Tel: (01904) 553459 / 553464 Report Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
There are no specialist implications.

Wards Affected

\/

Date 30 September 2009

Al

For further information please contact the authors of the report.

Background Papers:

“Speed Management” — report presented to EMAP on 30 October 2006



Page 75 Agenda Item 8

Decision Session - 20 October 2009
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy
Street Furniture Removal

Summary

1. This report seeks approval for an annual budget from the Capital Programme to
reduce the amount of street furniture on the highway network and for new
highway schemes to go through a street furniture audit during the design stage.

Recommendations

2. That Option C below be approved and that the Network Management Traffic
Team be charged with the task of being the lead team implementing the
proposals.

3. That a basic set of guidelines be compiled showing more sensitive methods of
signing for distribution to other teams / organisations carrying out work on the
highway.

4. That an annual review report be produced outlining the progress made and
areas where further improvements may be feasible.
Reason: To reduce the:
- amount of street clutter along the city’s highway network;
- maintenance burden created by traffic signs and other street furniture;
- energy consumption and associated cost of illuminated signs;
and to improve:

- the ability of those with visual impairment difficulties to negotiate their
way along the footway

- the visual aspect of the street scene;
Background

5. There are somewhere in the region of 15,000 traffic signs on York’s highway
network. This number is increasing year on year as each new highway scheme
is implemented and / or new regulations come into force. However, signs that
have been in place for many years are rarely re-evaluated for their need
although there may have been changes in signing regulations relating to their
use or the road network.

6. Two years ago funding was made available to reduce the amount of street
clutter in the city centre and this project was very successful in removing a
couple of hundred signs, poles and bollards from central area. However, this
project was not able to tackle all of the problems and there continues to be an
ongoing increase in signing across the city from a number of sources and there



Page 76

are no funds set aside each year for the removal of old redundant signs and
poles.

The removal of long established signs that are no longer required has
additional benefits to the city in that they are:

. No longer subject to vandalism / damage requiring maintenance.
. If the signs are illuminated there are reduced power usage cost benefits.
. The street scene will be less cluttered.

o There will be fewer items that could cause problems for the blind and
partially sighted.

In addition to traffic signs there are many more thousands of item of street
furniture, such as bollards, guardrails, etc that have not been quantified at this
stage some of which may no longer be achieving what they were originally
intended to.

The Pilot Project

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A pilot scheme was carried out to try to resolve the issues referred to above.
The starting point was to simply remove one old sign and / or pole for each new
sign and / or pole put up for projects being carried out within Traffic
Management.

The Acomb conservation area was chosen for the pilot scheme. Within this
area there were:

53 non-illuminated signs;

17 illuminated signs; and

30 poles (many of signs were mounted on lamp posts)

The action taken after reviewing the signs in place was as follows:
30 non-illuminated signs removed (56%)

2 illuminated signs removed (12%)

14 poles removed (47%)

These figures were higher than initially expected and may not be typical across
the city’s area.

Of the 70 signs 13 were the old redundant “At any time” type signs for double
yellow lines and out of the remaining 53 signs there were 7 (or 12%) in need of
some maintenance / renewal, which if reported as damaged would normally be
attended to and returned to a satisfactory condition. The cost of maintaining
signs would vary depending on what action was required (from simply turning
the sign to face the correct direction to a full renewal). Assuming an average
cost of £75 per sign repair the cost of maintaining these 7 signs would amount
to £525. However, 4 of the 7 damaged signs have been removed as part of this
project, hence based on the assumed average cost of £75 per sign repair the
maintenance burden has been cut by £300. In addition, the annual energy cost
saving due to the removal of the 2 illuminated signs is estimated at £45.

Because of the number of signs and poles taken out there will be a reduction in
the ongoing maintenance and energy costs (fewer signs in place to be
damaged and / or require power) it is likely that the cost of carrying out these
works will be recouped within 2 to 3 years.



Page 77

14. Whilst the cost savings within the pilot are relatively modest, if replicated across
the city the potential ongoing savings would be many thousands of pounds per
year.

15. The un-measurable benefits from this pilot scheme are:

- the removal of pieces of street furniture that may have caused some difficulty
for those with a visual / mobility impairment;

- enhancing the street scene

16. More details of the work carried out are in the background document “Acomb
Conservation Area Traffic Sign Reduction Pilot Project”.

Proposals

17. The proposals based on the pilot scheme is that the current level of signing and
associated street furniture, such as poles, is effectively “capped” at the existing
level on street. There are 3 key areas of traffic / highway related work that can
be targeted to achieve this outcome.

. Establish a budget to fund the removal of redundant street furniture,
combine two or more items to one location and in key sensitive areas
replace with a higher quality less intrusive piece of equipment.

Annex A shows the type of sign that should be replaced (outside the
Minster) along with a less visually intrusive mounting unit. The cost of this
type of sign assembly is around £500 more than a standard sign
assembly.

Based on the above information it suggested that a budget of £10,000 be
set aside for improvements to be made the city’s street furniture.

. Produce a basic set of guidelines showing more sensitive methods of
signing for distribution to other teams / organisations carrying out work on
the highway. In addition, establish a street furniture audit process for new
highway schemes during the design process.

) Because the cost of removing a sign is often less than the cost of
maintaining a sign there are clear benefits to reducing the burden on the
maintenance budget. Hence the need to establish a rapid response to
queries on the continued need for signs that have suffered damage or
some other mishap. Further work on this area to establish a framework for
decision making for officers is needed.

18. It is hoped that this 3-pronged approach to tackling the situation will raise the
general awareness of excessive street furniture amongst those who contribute
most to the increase.

19. The removal of redundant street furniture could be tackled by area, route or on
an ad hoc basis, however it is suggested that in the main, priority should initially
be given to the historic core, conservation areas and the main routes taken by
visitors into the city.

20. Additional reductions in street clutter can be achieved through reviewing
existing Traffic Regulation Orders. It is proposed that this should be tackled on
an ad hoc basis when they are identified during other investigations and
proposals be brought to Officer in Consultation meetings when appropriate as
part of the regular review of requests for traffic restrictions.



Page 78

21. ltis further suggested that an annual summary report be prepared to advise the
Executive Member on improvements made to the street scene.

Consultation

22. No consultation is required to remove traffic signs that do not relate to a traffic
regulation order.

Options

23. The options available are:

A. To note the report and take no further action at this time. This is not the
recommended option because it does not tackle the issue of street clutter.

B. To gather additional information for consideration before deciding whether to
proceed with the proposals put forward or a revised set of proposals based on
the additional information. This is not the recommended option because the
proposals put forward are considered to be merely a starting point that can be
amended as and when desired or changing circumstances arise.

C. To implement the proposals outlined above. This is the recommended option.
Corporate Strategy

24. The proposals above contribute to the Sustainable City, Inclusive City (with
regards to those with visual and mobility difficulties) and Effective Organisation
aims of the Corporate Strategy 2009 / 2012.

Implications

25.
Legal There are no legal implications.
Financial There are no financial implications

Human Resources There are no HR implications
Crime and Disorder | There are no Crime and Disorder implications

Sustainability There are no sustainability implications
Equalities There are no equalities implications
Property There are no property implications

Risk Management

26. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there are no risks
associated with the recommendations in this report.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the Report:
Alistair Briggs Damon Copperthwaite
Traffic Engineer Assistant Director City Strategy

Tel No. (55)1368
Report Approved Date Date 18/9/2009

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes
Annex A — Example of type of sign that could be replaced



Page 79

Annex A

Example Referred to in Paragraph 18 of the Report

The No motor vehicle sign is
required by the traffic regulation
order that prevent the use of
the road in front of the Minster
by cars and motorcycles.
Although the bollards do
effectively prevent use of the
road by cars and larger
vehicles, without the sign in
place it would be quite legal for
powered two wheel vehicles to
use this route.

The Pedestrian zone ends sign
on the reverse of the above
sign can be removed.

Sign assemblies such as this
come in two sizes to allow the
correct regulation signs at 450
and 600mm diameter. The
height can be varied according
to site circumstances and the
finish is normally either black or
stainless steel. A lighting unit
can also be mounted in the
pavement if necessary.




Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81 Agenda ltem 9

a,

Decision Session — Executive Member for City 20 October 2009
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements — Outline Design

Summary

1.  This report sets out options for the outline design for the proposed
improvements to the A19/A1237 roundabout to reduce delays at this location.
The report also identifies the estimated cost, programme and consultation
proposals to enable the scheme to be delivered in 2010/11.

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is recommended to:

e Approve the further development of the outline layout of the upgraded
roundabout as indicated in Option B to address the road safety audit
requirements and meet the concerns of local residents and users of the
highway in the area,

e Approve the proposed public consultation strategy on the outline layouts as
detailed in the consultation section,

e Approve the progression of the detailed design of the proposal incorporating
amendments to address the comments raised during the public consultation
period and to allow a further report to the Executive Member to be submitted
early in 2010 prior to tendering the scheme.

e Authorise the removal of the minimum amount of vegetation from the
environmental bund at an appropriate period in the year, in advance of the
main contract if necessary, to allow the works to proceed without affecting
nesting birds.

Reason: To progress this upgrade scheme in accordance with the Local
Transport Plan to increase the capacity of the roundabout and reduce journey
times in the area.

Background

Overview

3. The Executive Member approved the delivery of improvements to the
A19/A1237 roundabout using the additional funding from the Regional Funding
Allocation at the 21 July 2009 City Strategy Decision Session.



Page 82

The A19/A1237 roundabout was originally constructed in the late 1980s with
the remainder of the A1237 outer ring road. A major upgrade increasing the
size of the roundabout and adding the Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride access and
subway was completed in 2001. Daily traffic numbers approaching the
roundabout from the south west have increased by approximately 8% since
2002 to nearly 17,000 with maximum am and pm peak hour flows increased to
approximately 1300 vehicles per hour. Morning flows have increased by
approximately 10% whilst afternoon and evening flows have increased by
nearly 30% since 2002.

The section of the ring road over the river Ouse is the busiest link of the entire
route with a two way flow of 33,000 vehicles per day (am peak hour 2,600, pm
peak 2,500). Delays at the A19/A1237 roundabout are exacerbated by the high
crossing/joining movements from the A19 from the north and south. There are
substantial delays on all main arms of the roundabout with the delays on the
A1237 eastbound in the am peak and westbound in the pm peak particularly
severe. In the evening peak westbound tail backs over the bridge from the A59
and Millfield Lane roundabout direction extend as far as the A19 preventing the
free flow of traffic leaving the A19 roundabout.

The level of queuing on the Outer Ring Road encourages travellers to use
alternative routes through the adjacent residential areas to avoid delays at the
A19/A1237 roundabout. Traffic modelling predicts that the level of delays at the
roundabout and number of trips through adjacent areas will increase in future
years.

The following tables indicate the projected level of queuing and journey times
from adjacent roundabouts on the A1237 and points a few hundred metres
from the roundabout on the A19. Note: the 2026 projections assume that the
developments proposed to meet the Regional Spatial Strategy allocations have
progressed (inc. York Northwest), schemes included in the Access York Phase
1 project (3 P&R sites and A59 roundabout upgrade) have been implemented
and the York Business Park roundabout has been upgraded.

Maximum Queue Lengths (Metres)
AM PM
2009 2026 2009 2026
A19 North 440 890 60 120
A1237 West 420 1,240 330 320
A19 South 250 410 360 230
A1237 East 480 1,290 930 1,300
Average Journey Times (Minutes)
AM PM
2009 | 2026 2009 2026
A19 North to South | 1.7 3.7 0.5 0.7
A19 South to North | 1.2 1.8 1.5 0.8
A1237 East to West | 3.5 8.3 5.2 14.0
A1237 West to East | 1.8 4.5 1.7 1.5




10.

11.

Page 83

The projections suggest that delays will increase substantially on most arms of
the roundabout with the already congested A1237 approaches being the most
severely affected. Average pm east to west A1237 journey times across the
roundabout are projected to increase from the current 5 minutes to nearly 15
minutes in 2026 (3.5 minutes to 8.3 minutes in am peak). West to east journey
times on the A1237 are projected to more than double from 1.8 minutes to 4.5
minutes in the am peak.

A number of design options for the roundabout upgrade were reviewed in the
Outer Ring Road (ORR) study in 2007. This work indicated that a grade
separated (‘fly over’) option with dualling would result in the least delays in the
area but it would represent poor value for money as the roundabout alone
would cost in the region of £17m with the provision of dual carriageway
approaches including new bridges over the river Ouse and East Coast Main
Line costing substantially more. Similar substantial upgrades to the adjacent
roundabouts would need to be undertaken to prevent these being overloaded.
The environmental impact of a grade separated junction at this location would
be substantial with the additional car trips likely to be generated by the
improvement.

The ORR study identified that the best value for money, in terms of journey
time reductions against the cost of improvements, was provided by maximising
the capacity of the existing roundabout with the provision of additional
approach and exit lanes. However the full benefit of the improvements will only
be realised once the capacity of all of the roundabouts on the ring road has
been increased. In particular the full benefit of the improvements at the A19 will
not be realised until the A59 roundabout is upgraded currently programmed to
be delivered in 2011/12 as part of the Access York Phase 1 project.

The most effective layout for the roundabout was determined and refined using
a VISSIM micro simulation package of a section of the ring road from the
Wetherby Road through to Clifton Moor. The modelling of the proposed
changes to the roundabout suggest that significant improvements to journey
times can be achieved. The layout which was modelled in detail is indicated in
Annex A. The modelling assumes that Access York Phase 1 has been
delivered in 2011. A check without the A59 roundabout upgraded was also
undertaken. The 2011 modelling includes all of the committed development in
the city (i.e. planning consent granted but not yet delivered)

2011 Maximum Queue Lengths (Metres)

AM PM

Without A19 | With A19 Without A19 | With A19
Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade

A19 North 620 100 100 70
A1237 West 1150 70 250 80
A19 South 490 60 180 50

A1237 East 970 60 1,270 120




12.

13.

14.

Page 84

2011 Journey Times (Minutes)
AM PM
Without A19 | With  A19 | Without A19 | With  A19
Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
A19 North to
South 2.2 0.5 0.5 0.5
A19 South to
North 2.0 0.5 0.8 0.5
A1237 East to
West 4.8 1.3 9.8 1.7
A1237 West to
East 4.0 1.2 1.5 1.2

With the proposed scheme in place in 2011 and the A59 roundabout upgraded
journey times and queue lengths are projected to be substantially reduced. In
particular the eastbound queue length on the A1237 is projected to be reduced
from 1,270m (i.e. to Clifton Moor roundabout) to 120m and the corresponding
journey time reduced by 7 minutes.

The current and proposed layout was modelled again with projected 2026
traffic flows. The modelling was progressed on the assumption that the A59
and Millfield Lane roundabouts had been upgraded by 2026.

2026 Maximum Queue Lengths (Metres)

AM PM

Without A19 | With  A19 | Without A19 | With  A19
Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
A19 North 890 470 120 60
A1237 West 1,240 100 320 80
A19 South 410 90 230 510
A1237 East 1,290 80 1,300 1,040

2026 Journey Times (Minutes)

AM PM
Without A19 | With  A19 | Without A19 | With  A19
Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
A19 North to
South 3.7 1.3 0.7 0.5
A19 South to
North 1.8 0.5 0.8 1.0
A1237 East to
West 8.3 1.5 14.0 4.7
A1237 West to
East 4.5 1.3 1.5 1.2

The modelling indicates that the upgrade will provide queue and journey time
reductions compared to the situation without the upgrade even with the
substantial increases in traffic projected by 2026. With the Regional Spatial
Strategy proposed development levels (inc. York Northwest) in place queue



15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 85

lengths and journey times are reduced substantially in the am peak but the
impact on the pm peak traffic queues is less marked as the volume of traffic
again starts to exceed the capacity of the roundabout. Journey times in the
area in 2026 are projected to be lower than 2009 for all arms with queue
lengths similar to those in 2009 for the A19 South and A1237 East. An option
to provide signals on the A1237 West approach has been investigated to
reduce the am peak queues on the A19 North. However this has been
excluded from the proposed scheme as the queue lengths are still lower than
the existing levels and the upgrade could be introduced at a later date if
required.

The current number of vehicles which enter the roundabout is approximately
4,000 in the am peak and 3,850 in the pm peak. In 2026 with the measures in
place the number entering the roundabout will have increased by
approximately 16%. The number of vehicles flowing through the A1237 arms of
the roundabout will have increased by between 5% and 40% with the largest
increases being on the most congested arms.

The base design proposal was adjusted through the modelling process to
determine the most appropriate entry lane arrangement and the length of the
two and three lane sections. Sensitivity tests have also been undertaken on the
proposal to determine the effect of the upgrading of all of the roundabouts on
the ring road as proposed in the Access York Phase 2 project. This scheme
will enable more traffic to flow to the A19 roundabout putting additional
pressure on the junction. It is projected that all of the arms of the roundabout
will be able to accommodate the additional traffic although pm queue lengths
on the A1237 East approach will increase back to current levels.

With the proposed improvement in place it is projected that there will be a
redistribution of trips in the Rawcliffe and Clifton Moor areas as the Outer Ring
Road will offer more of a time advantage over the roads within the urban area.
An additional 400 eastbound and westbound trips, some of which would have
been through the adjacent urban area, are projected to use the A19 to Clifton
Moor section of the ring road with the upgrade in place in 2026.

Summary

e The existing roundabout is currently operating over capacity at peak times
with extensive queuing on all arms leading travellers to use alternative
routes through residential areas.

e Existing queue lengths and long journey times in the A19/A1237
roundabout area are projected to increase substantially over the next 15
years.

e A grade separated (‘fly over’) option could remove delays in the area but
would be unaffordable, represent poor value for money, rely on similar
substantial upgrades to adjacent roundabouts, increase the number of car
trips in the area and have significant environmental impact.

e |t is anticipated that the proposed upgrade will reduce queue lengths and
journey times in the area substantially but the full benefit will only be
achieved when adjacent roundabouts are upgraded.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 86

Outline Design

The outline designs for the roundabout improvements have been prepared by
the Council’s framework consultant Halcrow to:

e Deliver the maximum level of improvement to the A19 ORR
roundabout to reduce delays for all users within the available budget
(opening year of 2011 and design year of 2026 to be modelled).

e Be delivered by March 2011 at latest.

e Be progressed within the current Highway Boundary

e Provide safe routes for non-motorised users

The modelling results indicate that the upgraded roundabout will provide
significant journey time savings for travellers on the A1237 (am and pm) in the
opening year. Journey time savings will be less pronounced on the A19 but still
significant where there are existing queues. With the increased traffic from
developments in the city up to 2026 it is projected that the traffic queues on the
A1237 eastbound approach and A19 northbound approach are likely to
increase back up to current levels. The proposed approach and exit lane layout
at the roundabout is considered to be the maximum that can be
accommodated with the existing roundabout diameter giving the maximum
capacity possible. Further capacity improvements at the roundabout could be
delivered if grade separation was introduced but this would only be beneficial if
the remainder of the ring road was upgraded to a similar level. Queuing on
specific arms could be reduced with the introduction of traffic signals but there
would be consequential increases on other arms.

The delivery of the A19 improvements will assist in enabling the full potential of
the proposed A59 roundabout improvements, planned as part of the Access
York project, to be realised.

The Outer Ring Road is a barrier to pedestrians and cyclists seeking to travel
north and south on the A19 and the roundabout itself deters cyclists from
travelling on the A1237. A subway was incorporated into the roundabout
improvements in 2001 to reduce severance of the adjacent communities. In
addition surface level crossing positions were provided with the upgrade. The
majority of crossing movements use the subway with the surface level
movements very low — A pedestrian/cycling survey is being undertaken to
determine the numbers who cross at this location.

To keep the proposed works within the public highway and reduce need for
amendments to the subway alterations to the environmental bund on the south
side of the A1237, east of the A19, will be required. The disruption to the
existing vegetation and bunding can be minimised by the provision of retaining
structure (or similar support) at the toe of the embankment but at a higher cost.
Noise calculations will be undertaken to determine the effect on adjacent
properties and design appropriate mitigation measures where necessary. It is
anticipated that the construction period will be at a time of the year when the
removal of trees and other vegetation will not impact on the bird nesting
season. However it may be necessary to undertake advance site clearance
works to minimize the impact on the overall programme if there is anticipated
to be significant slippage in delivery.



24.

25.

26.

27.

Page 87

Alterations to the exit lanes of the roundabout towards the West will have an
effect on the operation of the existing layby. The westbound layby may need to
be closed to minimize the risk to drivers who are merging into the single
carriageway section at this location. Options for the provision of an alternative
parking area are being investigated however the merging traffic and bridge
approach embankments severely restricts the number of possible sites
adjacent to the side of the carriageway.

There have been a total of 40 personal injury accidents within the study area
during the last five years (March 2004 to February 2009). One accident
resulted in a fatality, 4 led to serious injury and the remaining 35 were
classified as slight. The proportion of accidents that occurred during the hours
of darkness is consistent with national statistics, as is the proportion that
occurred when the road surface was wet. 9 of the 40 accidents involved
motorcycles, 2 involved pedal cycles and there were no pedestrian accidents.

The main accident cluster is situated on the A1237 westbound approach to the
roundabout, with a total of 14 accidents recorded in the last five years. Of
these 14 accidents, 2 were serious and 12 were slight. 8 accidents were rear
end shunts (57.1%), 3 were due to overtaking manoeuvres, 2 were due to
failure to give way to traffic on the circulatory carriageway and 1 was due to
loss of control. Of these 14 accidents, 5 involved a motorcycle (35.7%).

Options

A number of options have been investigated with varying approach and exit
lane layouts to address the capacity and safety concerns. It is planned to
progress the detailed design based upon either (or a combination) of the
following two options, which are considered to have very similar traffic flow
capacity. The proposed layouts are provided in Annexes 1 & 2. The actual lane
markings indicating right turns may need to be adjusted to meet national
standards.

A19
North

A1237 (East
& West)

A19
South

Pedestrian/Cycling
Facilities

Option A

3 Lane
Entry, 1
Lane Exit

3 Lane Entry,
2 Lane Exit

2 Lane
Entry, 1
Lane Exit

A1237 crossing
movements via subway.
Improvements to A19
crossing at riverside
Farm

Option B

3 Lane
Entry, 1
Lane Exit

3 Lane Entry,
2 Lane Exit

2 Lane
Entry, 1
Lane Exit

Additional pedestrian
crossing islands
provided on the A1237
West and A19 North
Improvements to A19
crossing at riverside
Farm

28. A stage 1 Road Safety Audit has been undertaken on both of the proposals
which has highlighted a number of issues which need to be addressed during

the detailed design stage including:

Merge arrangements,




29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 88

Exit lane widths

Lane widths on circulatory carriageway

Circulatory lane markings

Right Turn arrow road markings

Roundabout entry markings

Lane destination markings on A19 southbound approach
Length of additional lanes on A1237 approaches

Affect of Layby closure

At grade crossing facilities

Layout of Riverside farm crossing improvements

The key difference between the two options presented is the provision of
additional crossing points on the A1237 West and A19 North arms. There are
number of benefits of providing the islands across the three lane section as
they would tend to slow traffic down approaching the roundabout and increase
segregation between traffic lanes. However they would not improve the
crossing of the twin exit lanes where traffic will be accelerating away from the
roundabout before merging. In Option A all pedestrians and cyclists would be
encouraged to make use of the existing cycle and pedestrian subway to cross
the A1237 and to use the existing crossings of the A19 (north and south of the
roundabout) enhanced at the Riverside Farm to allow safer crossing at that
location. The pedestrian/cyclist crossing movements at this location are low but
the inclusion of the surface level crossings will assist cyclists travelling on the
A1237 and provide an alternative crossing method for people to use if the
subway is not available.

Programme

The aim of the project is to deliver the improvements by the end of 2010. The
following milestones are envisaged.

Activity Programme

Outline Design July - October 2009
Consultation November - December 2009
Detailed Design December 2009 - February 2010
Tender Process March — July 2010

Construction September — November 2010

It is anticipated that the majority of the works could be undertaken whilst
maintaining all existing traffic lanes (speed restrictions and lane narrowing may
be required) although some of the work, such as resurfacing, may need to be
undertaken at night to minimize traffic disruption.

Estimated Costs

The estimated costs of the options have been prepared which include an
allowance for contingencies, design, supervision, service diversions, traffic
management and risk. The cost estimates also include an allowance for the
resurfacing of the entire roundabout which is subject to further investigation
before confirmation:



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 89

Option Cost Estimate
£000s

Option A 1,250

Option B 1,400

Member Views

Officers consulted with Skelton, Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward Councillors
Waudby, Moore and Watt, plus Councillors D’Agorne, Gillies and Potter on the
proposals. Their responses are summarised below.

Ward Member Views
Councillor Watt has the following comments:

e It would be disappointing if the Westbound Lay-by were removed - it is
a popular parking place for people wanting access to the Ings for
recreation.

¢ A major bottle-neck is caused by the island on the A19 at the end of
Manor Lane - can this not be altered to permit 2 lanes Northbound?

Councillor Waudby has the following comments:

e Preference for Option A.

e Concerned about the effect on the existing footpath/cycle path over
the bridge, particularly in relation to the number of young people going
from Rawcliffe to Manor School.

Councillor Moore has the following comments:

e Opposes the closure of the westbound layby

e Raises concerns about the maintenance of the environmental bunds.

¢ Raises concerns about the need for enforcement of traffic regulations
at the roundabout

¢ Raises design issues relating to the possibility of introducing traffic
signals and alterations to the lane designation on the A19 northbound
approach.

¢ Raises the issue of the capacity of the A59 roundabout restricting
flows in the A19 roundabout area.

Other Member Views
Councillor D’Agorne raised concerns about the provision of cycling and
pedestrian facilities.

Councillor Gillies has the following comments

e Supports Option B on the basis that traffic turning left from the A1237
eastbound approach would be dispersed more quickly.

e Concerned about the possible closure of the westbound layby

¢ Raises concerns about traffic speeds and cyclists using the Skelton
cycle route.



39.

40.

41.

42.

43.
44,

45.

46.

47.

Page 90

Councillor Potter has the following comments

e Supports option B owing to the provision of the additional cycling and
pedestrian crossing facilities. Appropriate safety information for people
using the crossings to be provided.

e Concerned about the possible closure of the westbound layby and
suggests that an alternative parking area with access to the river bank
should be provided if the layby is closed.

Response to Member Views

The majority of the comments have been addressed in the main part of the
report. Other items are addressed in the following paragraphs.

The traffic island close to the end of Manor Lane provides a dual function of a
pedestrian/cycling crossing and protection to the right turn movement into
Manor Lane. Alterations would require significant widening of the road into the
south verge to allow the facility to be maintained.

Cycling movements over Ouse Bridge will continue to be possible from the A19
area throughout the construction works and in the permanent layout.

Maintenance of the environmental bunds will remain with the Council.

It is proposed to provide a CCTV camera at the roundabout to enable traffic
movements in the area to be monitored and allow improved management of
the network.

It is considered unlikely that signalising the roundabout would provide
additional capacity unless the roundabout was substantially increased in size
to allow the provision of storage capacity in the circulatory area.

The lane designations will be designed to minimise overall queuing however it
may not be possible to allocate lanes to suit all conditions due to variations in
the turning movements during different times of the day and week. Lane
designations may be amended throughout the life of the roundabout to
accommodate changes to the turning movements which may occur in future
years.

Consultation

Following the decision on the delivery of the scheme it is proposed to consult
travellers and residents in the area affected by the project using the following
methodologies

e an exhibition through the day at the Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride site on
one day in Nov/Dec

e a special evening ward committee meeting in Nov/Dec

¢ Road signs directing existing users of the roundabout and pedestrian
facilities to a website providing further details and an opportunity to
comment.



48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

Page 91

In addition, to ensure those people most directly affected by the works have
the opportunity to raise concerns, the residents and businesses in the area
shown on the drawing in Annex 3 will be directly contacted for their views. This
will include Skelton and Rawcliffe Parish Councils, the residents and
businesses in the village of Skelton, Eccles Close, Harewood Close,
Kensington Road, South side of Manor Road (Shipton Rd to Manor Park
Road), Shipton Rd (Manor Lane to Howard Drive) Riverside Farm, Ings House
and Ings Cottages.

Corporate Priorities

The improvements to the capacity of the A19 roundabout will contribute to the
following corporate priorities:

Thriving City — Additional traffic capacity will reduce journey times in the area
enabling trips to the adjacent business and retail areas to be undertaken more
efficiently. The upgrading of the capacity of the Outer Ring Road is one of the
key strategies within the council’s Local Transport Plan.

Sustainable City — The improved capacity will contribute to enabling the
delivery of developments on the brownfield sites in York Northwest.

Safer City — The projected reduction in traffic travelling along adjacent roads is
anticipated to reduce the level of accident risk in residential areas.

Implications
The following implications have been reviewed.

« Financial In July 2009 the Executive Member approved the use of a
proportion of the £2,777k additional funding from the Regional Funding
Allocation, which is due to be received over the two year period (2009/10
to 2010/11), to fund the A19 improvements. In addition £350k was also
allocated to the Access York Phase 2 project and preliminary design of the
Haxby Station scheme leaving £2,427k for the delivery of an upgrade
scheme at the A19 roundabout. The maximum cost estimate for the A19
scheme based upon the outline design for Option B is approximately
£1,400k. Therefore, subject to revised cost estimates based upon the
detailed design, it is anticipated that approximately £1,000k of funding from
the Regional Funding Allocation would be available to support other
projects in the Integrated Transport Capital Programme. Further reports
will be presented to the Executive Member providing details of the
proposed use of this funding.

« Human Resources (HR) — There are no Human Resource implications.
« Equalities — There are no equalities implications

o Legal — There are no legal implications

« Crime and Disorder — There are no crime and disorder implications

« Information Technology (IT) — There are no IT implications

« Property — There are no property implications

o Other — There are no other implications



Page 92

Risk Management

54. A full risk register for the delivery of the project has been prepared and
mitigation measures applied where necessary. In compliance with the
Council’'s risk management strategy measured in terms of impact and
likelihood, the risk score has been assessed at less than 16. This means that
at this point the risks need only to be monitored as they do not provide a real
threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tony Clarke Damon Copperthwaite

Capital Programme Manager  Assistant Director City Development and
City Strategy Transport

Tel No. 55 1641

Report Approved v Date 8 October 2009

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Financial:

Patrick Looker

Finance Manager

City Strategy

Tel No. 01904 551633

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session 21 July 2009: Regional
Funding Allocation Proposal

Annexes

Annex 1: Option A - A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements

Annex 2: Option B - A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements with Additional
Pedestrian Crossing Islands

Annex 3: A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements: Proposed Detailed Consultation
Area.



Layby Closure required

DRAFT

Page 93

_ Proposed road markings

Proposed kerb line

NOTES:

Layout as Option One but includes longer third lane at each
approach (output of VISSIM 2026 model)

Widening on 3 arms, no widening to circulatory carriageway
required

Existing Pedestrian crossing near Riverside Farm to be improved

KEY CONSTRAINTS:

Statutory Undertakers’ apparatus

Pedestrian and cyclist facilities

Land availability within the highway boundary and existing features

Existing drainage capacity

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey ® material by Halcrow on behalf of The City of York Council
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, ©Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence Number: 1000 20818

Client

=]

CITY OF

YORK

couUNECIL

Halcrow Group Limited
Riverside, Dunedin House, Teesdale Business Park
Stockton-On-Tees, TS17 6BJ

Tel. +44 (0) 1642 632800 Fax. +44 (0) 1642632801
www.halcrow.com

falcrow

brawing  A1237/A19 ROUNDABOUT IMPROVEMENTS | Drawing No. Revision
TACYCB/810/010/A
OPTION A
Drawing Scale: As shown Plot Scale:
Drawn by: R. Allen Date: 25/09/09
Checked by: |. Maclean Date: 25/09/09 CAD Filename:
Authorised by: I. Maclean Date: 25/09/09




Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



— | \\
AN
®
X
ANN
~L

/é/ Layby Closure required

DRAFT

Page 95

Proposed kerb line

Proposed road markings

NOTES:

Additional refuges are provided to facilitate crossing three lanes
of traffic by cyclists and pedestrians.

The existing islands will also need to be widened (except for
A1237 East, as subway is provided for crossing here.)

All arms are affected, no widening to circulatory carriageway
required

Existing Pedestrian crossing near Riverside Farm to be improved

KEY CONSTRAINTS:

Statutory Undertakers’ apparatus
Pedestrian and cyclist facilities
Land availability within the highway boundary and existing features

Existing drainage capacity

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey ® material by Halcrow on behalf of The City of York Council
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, ©Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence Number: 1000 20818

Client

22

€CITY OF

YORK

Halcrow Group Limited
Riverside, Dunedin House, Teesdale Business Park
Stockton-On-Tees, TS17 6BJ

Tel. +44 (0) 1642 632800 Fax. +44 (0) 1642632801
www.halcrow.com

CoOUNCIL

falcrow

Drawing  A1237/A19 ROUNDABOUT IMPROVEMENTS | Prawing No. Revision
TACYCB/810/010/B
OPTION B
Drawing Scale: As shown Plot Scale:
Drawn by: R. Allen Date:  25/09/09
Checked by: |. Maclean Date:  25/09/09 CAD Filename:
Authorised by: |. Maclean Date:  25/09/09




Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

\ s
S CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

York City Council

A19/A1237 R/B Upgrade Proposed Detailed Consultation Area s
:I\‘\H\Q \-! LA |y IFII"!.I.I:P;.I-II ..-:,' |I'| '-!L Iﬁlll u

T W | hy X 11
iy Y ) 3. CH i Pigntation _ A=
Y - - L, = r'ark__l;n'u-f‘-:.:'l IIJ Erm _—‘u'\l'nl
Jllnllr_, \Q-L‘\; L\\J i: ; | . T '\,:" .‘_-::.- - —_— \I'IIII
' St ¢ i N aa e
'|. saHurns Bro 4/ %, ,;f_'"‘\éj Glebe Fm -|I_ :F"-,'n,
I| ) ' Y A Cemy \ [ P .
on Maoor el @ MP Lﬁ‘} b\
\ "ard Witihinton Ward,
T Lndg::ll 94 "
B W 3 =
~5 5§t Catherinns B -,I-E_.e(fﬁr-nnhn
) Wigginton -H'.I'-I Fm
oy Cott 4 ol
\ e ".I' VA

L b -1. R
- i s
' s

Rawcliffe Moore,
=

, £ . |
Rl Al r UI\_F.:-'. g .
M /,;{?r' L:‘QMP\-F;,} [ '-:"-\ \
(Al e e
W .,:‘-'q-:"\:f'l:l-“{-"_‘:_." i :; H A
JL Wi = \
=t B ST
.- A ‘R I‘.J

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majestys Stationery
Office Crown copyright 2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. York City
Council Licence number: 100020818 2009.



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99 Agenda ltem 10

v s
S CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

s,

Decision Session — Executive Member for 20™ October 2009
City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

CRICHTON AVENUE: PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS FOR
CYCLISTS

Summary

This report discusses the outcome of detailed design work and public
consultation on proposals to improve conditions for cycling along Crichton
Avenue.

Recommendation

The Executive Member is requested to approve the scheme shown in Annex C
for implementation.

Reason: Officers consider that the scheme will provide significant improvements
for cyclists using Crichton Avenue, support the Council’s aspiration of
providing an Orbital Cycle Route, and contribute to the aims of the
Council as a Cycling City.

Background

In March 2009 the Executive Member for City Strategy and Advisory Panel
(EMAP) considered preliminary proposals to improve conditions for cycling
along Crichton Avenue, which would support the Council’'s aspiration of
providing an orbital route and contribute to the aims of the Council as a Cycling
City. The outline scheme shown in Annex A was approved in principle, and
Officers were asked to develop the proposals further through detailed design
work and public consultation, with a view to implementing a scheme within the
2009/10 financial year. The outcome of this work is presented below.

Detailed Proposals

The subsequent detailed design work led to a number of amendments being
proposed to address specific problems or improve the scheme, and the revised
scheme layout is shown in Annex B. The key differences between the outline
and detailed scheme layouts are described below:

e Toucan crossing moved away from the Wigginton Road junction to a
position west of the railway bridge



Page 100

Traffic modelling has shown that introducing a Toucan crossing phase at the
Wigginton Road signals would generate significant extra delays and queue
lengths. This could include the possibility of traffic regularly tailing back to the
railway level-crossing on Wigginton Road, and would make it more difficult to
achieve the Council’s longer term ambitions of improving the junction for the
benefit of bus services and to relieve some of the current congestion. To
address this, it is now proposed to locate the Toucan to the west side of the
bridge. The position chosen is influenced by visibility requirements and the
difficulties of installing signal equipment on the bridge deck. An advantage of
the proposed position is that it links well with the pedestrian desire line created
by the embankment steps. To help manage queuing traffic between the new
Toucan and the Wigginton Road junction, their signal control units would be
linked.

o Reduced road widening between Burton Stone Lane and Kingsway North

Officers originally envisaged that it would be necessary to widen both sides of
Crichton Avenue to enable on-road cycle lanes to be introduced between
Burton Stone Lane and Kingsway North. However, it is now proposed to widen
mainly on the southern side only, by approximately 1.5 metres. This has the
advantages of requiring fewer service diversions, reduced construction costs
and less disruption for local residents. The proposed carriageway widening
should provide enough road space for 1.5 metre wide cycle lanes in both
directions, and traffic lanes at 2.7 metres wide. In addition, this will allow the
existing lay-by near to local amenities to be retained.

e On-road cycle lanes at the Kingsway North roundabout, rather than
providing off-road paths around it

Officers now consider that it would be premature to introduce off-road paths
around the roundabout until a more detailed study of the next stage of the
Orbital Route is undertaken (linking Crichton Avenue and Clifton Green via
Kingsway North and part of Water Lane). Although this may result in some off-
road paths being proposed at the Kingsway North roundabout, there will still be
a need to do something to assist cyclists who choose to stay on-road.
Therefore, proposals for the roundabout carriageway have been investigated
further, and are now included in the Crichton Avenue scheme. The proposals
for the roundabout comprise circulatory cycle lanes, green anti-skid surfacing,
lane designator arrows, a painted narrowing of the circulatory carriageway
(around the central island) and warning signs. The use of such cycle lanes that
forewarn motorists of a cyclist's intended path have been used at other
roundabouts in York (for example, at Heworth Green) and have been shown to
reduce the number of collisions involving cyclists.

o Retain the existing Pelican crossing at the western end of Crichton Avenue,
rather than convert to a Toucan

As a consequence of not providing off-road cycle facilities around the Kingsway
North roundabout as part of the current proposals, it is also considered
unnecessary to convert the existing Pelican to a Toucan crossing at this time.

e Burton Stone Lane right turn facility and extended shared use on south side
of Crichton Avenue



10.

11.

12.

Page 101

The consultation plan layout required cyclists turning right from Burton Stone
Lane to do so with the rest of the traffic before being able to access the off-road
path along the northern side of Crichton Avenue. Cyclists wanting to access the
Foss Islands cycle route would then need to cross Crichton Avenue again using
the proposed Toucan facility. This was not ideal, and it was thought likely that
many cyclists would choose to use the southern footway instead. Therefore, the
design was altered to provide a facility for cyclists to turn right from Burton
Stone Lane to directly access an extended shared path along the south side of
Crichton Avenue, which would provide a much more direct link with the Foss
Islands Cycle Route.

Other more minor amendments and additions to the scheme not shown on the
plan, but worth highlighting, include the following:

e Street lighting located in the verges and footway near the bridge would be
moved to the rear of the proposed shared-use path in order to maximise
usable space. Investigations revealed that the existing columns are near
the end of their design life and would not survive the move to the rear of
path. Hence, new columns will be provided.

e The road widening on the southern side of Crichton Avenue would require
the removal of three young trees located in the existing verge. These trees
were planted within the last few years to improve the street-scene and deter
parking on the verge. Although the removal of these trees is regrettable,
there is not thought to be a practical alternative approach. If approved, the
proposal would provide at least three new trees in the vicinity of the post
office in compensation.

e Highway Maintenance have identified the carriageway of Crichton Avenue
as a high priority for resurfacing, and have agreed to bring it forward into
their 09/10 Programme to enable it to be coordinated with the cycle scheme.
The extents of resurfacing are between the Kingsway roundabout and a
point just to the east of Intake Avenue. This will help produce a better
overall scheme, avoid abortive costs, and reduce disruption to residents in
the long term.

Consultation

The proposals shown in Annex B formed the basis of an extensive consultation
exercise involving relevant Councillors, local residents/businesses, the
emergency services, and other interested parties such as road user groups and
utility companies. Their responses are sumarised below:

Councillors

Councillor | Response

Douglas Wants to wait to hear public views before forming an opinion.

King No comments received to date.

Scott Wants to wait to hear public views before forming an opinion.

Potter Would like to make no comment at this stage.

D’Agorne Supports the scheme overall. Raised some additional
comments/suggestions and sought further information.
Confirmed support for the use of 1.5m wide cycle lanes.

Gilles Nothing further to add to previous consultations.




13.

14.

Page 102

Residents

Consultation leaflets were delivered to a total of 149 households, from which 6
responses were received. The residents are generally supportive, but with
some reservations and specific concerns. The main issues raised by residents
are summarised below along with Officer comments.

Concerns about the loss of on-street parking

e Where will all the vans and cars park if the proposals are implemented?

e Parked vehicles in the cycle lane may force cyclists back onto the footpath
(the advisory status of the cycle lanes could lead to people parking in
them).

e Some suggest that this could be addressed by providing dropped
kerbs/vehicle crossings for residents.

Officer response: Parking surveys carried out at various times of the day show
that there is only a low level of on-street parking along Crichton Avenue. This
mainly takes place on the south side between Wiberforce Avenue and Crombie
Avenue, and on the north side between Ashton Avenue and Crombie Avenue.
At any one time a maximum of seven parked vehicles were observed during the
surveys, with the highest levels generally being in the evenings. This suggests
that the parking is mainly by local residents and their visitors. This parking also
tends to be close to properties that do not have any off-street parking facilities.

Despite the low number of vehicles involved, any obstruction to the free
passage of cyclists along the proposed cycle lanes would be undesirable.
Therefore ways of addressing this problem have been considered. The most
obvious solution would be to introduce “no waiting at any time” parking
restrictions, which would force residents and visitors to park in adjacent side
streets. This would cause them inconvenience, concern over the security of
their vehicle, and could lead to additional parking problems elsewhere.
Therefore there is likely to be strong local opposition to such a proposal, which
would probably be viewed as disproportionate for the scale of the problem.

A better approach is thought to be looking at ways of maximising the potential
for residents of Crichton Avenue and their visitors to park off-road. For example,
the provision of vehicle crossings, hard-standing areas or possibly an extension
to the shop lay-by may be beneficial for residents who do not currently have off-
street parking. These could be provided at a relatively small cost within the
context of the overall scheme, provided that there are no significant costs
associated with moving underground services. Each potential case would need
to be discussed with the resident concerned, and judged on its own merits in
terms of likely costs and benefits to the overall scheme.

Officers consider that this approach could remove the majority of the on-street
parking that currently takes place. Any residual parking should be at a very low
level and is unlikely to cause significant problems for cyclists. Of course, the
option of introducing parking restrictions would remain available if parking did
prove to be a bigger problem than anticipated.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 103

Loss of the bus lay-by near Ashton Avenue (north side)

e Concern that this will remove a place for the bus to stop, causing traffic
delays.

Officer response: This bus stop lay-by experiences some short stay parking by
people visiting the shops on the opposite side of the road. This means that
buses often have to pull up outside the lay-by in the traffic lane, but this does
not cause any significant problems. Indeed, it is now widely recognised that
when buses do use lay-bys, that they can experience difficulties pulling back
out again and experience unnecessary delays. For these reasons, the loss of
this lay-by is not considered to present any significant problems for bus
operations or traffic movements, and no concerns have been raised by any of
the bus companies consulted.

The cycle scheme is expensive

e The money should be prioritised for spending on improving the road surface
for residents instead.

Officer response: Highway Maintenance have identified Crichton Avenue as a
priority for resurfacing in the near future. In view of the planned cycle scheme, it
has been agreed in principle to seek to bring the resurfacing work forward into
the current financial year. This would enable both schemes to be delivered
simultaneously, thereby producing a better overall scheme, saving money, and
avoiding abortive work in the future. A report on this matter will be taken to the
Decision Session — Executive Member for Neighbourhoods on 17" November
2009.

Recently planted trees

e Concern that in the long term they will damage underground utilities.

Officer response: These trees are due to be removed and will be replaced with
new trees, to be planted in more suitable locations to avoid any potential
problems regarding underground services in the future.

Time restricted cycle lanes

e These have been suggested to allow off-peak parking for residents.

Officer response: Part-time cycle lanes are not thought to be a practical idea.
Given the strategic importance of the Orbital Cycle Route, and local trip
generators such as Nestle and York Hospital which open at night, it is
considered essential that the cycle lanes are available for cyclists to use at all
times.

New Toucan crossing

e Better visibility would be afforded if located on the brow of the bridge.
e Why is this facility needed for cyclists?
e Why not just provide a Zebra crossing instead?



20.

21.

Page 104

e Concerns raised about increasing congestion at peak times as a result of
introducing a crossing, given that traffic queuing for the Toucan could tail
back through the Burton Stone Lane junction.

Officer response: Although the brow of the bridge would provide optimum
visibility, there are problems in locating a crossing at this location. The erection
of signal poles on the bridge would puncture the underground waterproof
membranes that were installed as part of the bridge deck refurbishment about
five years ago. This, in conjunction with the necessary railway closures during
construction, would make the bridge deck location an expensive option. In its
currently proposed position, we are able to achieve sufficient visibility in both
directions to comply with current guidance.

Cyclists will benefit from this provision in a number of ways. Eastbound cyclists
would have a safe means of crossing the road, and be able to continue their
journey off-road, along the shared use path to access the Foss Islands Cycle
Route. In addition, westbound cyclists wanting to turn right into either Intake
Lane or Burton Stone Lane would be able to safely cross the road using the
Toucan, and continue their journey off-road, along the shared use path.

A Toucan crossing is specifically designed for use by both pedestrians and
cyclists and is appropriate where high numbers of cyclists are expected. At a
zebra crossing, a cyclist is legally required to dismount and walk across to gain
priority over vehicles. However, these rules are not well known, and can lead to
confusion for drivers over who has right of way. In contrast, a Toucan crossing
allows cyclists to ride across, and also provides a red and green cycle signal on
the nearside push button unit to indicate when it is safe to cross. Another
important safety advantage that a Toucan crossing would have over a Zebra at
this location is that the associated traffic signals would be seen earlier by a
driver coming over the bridge than a pedestrian or cyclist seeking to cross at a
Zebra facility.

In addition, Officers propose to integrate the Toucan within the Wigginton Road
traffic signals by providing an electrical linking cable, which would help to
manage queuing traffic towards Wigginton Road. This could not be achieved if
a Zebra crossing was introduced instead.

Right turn access to Intake Avenue

e How will cyclists move safely from the marked cycle lane (on south side of
Crichton Avenue) into the middle of the road to make a right turn into Intake
Avenue, when motorists won’t expect cyclists to leave the cycle lane?

Officer response: It is accepted that this manoeuvre would be difficult if made
on-road. However, cyclists wanting to access Intake Avenue will be able to do
so by using the proposed Toucan crossing and the off-road facilities on the
northern side of Crichton Avenue.

Other Interested Parties

Cyclists’ Touring Club (CTC)



22.

23.

Page 105

o feel that the proposals are discontinuous;

e cyclists belong on the carriageway, and that shared facilities should be a
last resort;

e conflict between cycles and pedestrians(mostly on downhill sections);

e alongside cycling facilities, suggest that chicanes or 20mph Ilimit is
desirable;

e larger ASL at Wigginton Road junction and a dedicated right turn or signal
aspect for cyclists accessing the Foss Islands route (which would eliminate
the need for a Toucan crossing near the bridge);

e removal of centre lines along much of the route where carriageway width
has enabled cycle lanes to be provided;

e Route 65 signing will be required at the Toucan crossing;

e as westbound motorists will gather speed as they descend from the railway
bridge to the proposed Toucan — physical traffic calming measures (i.e.
rumble strips as a minimum) may be useful in reducing traffic speed.

Officer response: The proposals have been developed with a view to providing
a solution that suits the existing road layout, but also the patterns of current
cycle demand. The existing carriageway width is not sufficient to provide
advisory cycle lanes without widening, but widening the road would be of
significant expense over the bridge, notwithstanding the potential for requiring
underground service diversions. Hence, the proposed solution for Crichton
Avenue comprises mainly on-road, but also off-road facilities. The proposed off-
road facilities match the patterns of cyclists wanting to use the southern side of
Crichton Avenue (currently illegal use of the footway) in order to access the
Foss Islands Cycle Route, which will form a continuance of the Orbital Cycle
Route. By removing the grassed verge areas, a sufficiently wide shared use
facility can be introduced.

The measures are considered to be continuous, given that there is no break in
provision. It must also be noted that Officers do not consider traffic calming (in
the form of chicanes or otherwise) or a 20mph speed limit to be necessary or
appropriate on Crichton Avenue at the present time. As mentioned previously in
Para. 5, cyclist signals at the Wigginton Road junction would create problems.
Removal of the centreline as suggested has been considered, but under the
circumstances deemed inappropriate, given the volume of traffic (including
public transport) using the route. Cycle route signing will be provided at the
Toucan, but rumble strips are not considered appropriate, given the noise that
passing vehicles would create in this residential area (despite the fact that they
are not considered necessary because the proposed location achieves
sufficient visibility in both directions to comply with current guidance).

Police — general concerns regarding the proposed Toucan crossing and the
cycling interface with Burton Stone Lane.

Officer response: See above Paragraphs 19 and 20.

York Access Group — Apart from dropped kerbs and tactile paving, there
appears to be no provision for those with special needs, including the users of
mobility scooters (particularly in the proposed areas of shared use). Audible
bleeps on controlled pedestrian crossings should be in operation at all times of



24.

25.

26.

Page 106

the day. ‘Nearside’ push buttons can be masked from view by others waiting to
Cross.

Officer response: The appropriate tactile paving surfaces will be used to
indicate areas of shared use to blind and partially sighted pedestrians. Those
riding mobility scooters are legally able to use shared use facilities (as long as
they do not exceed 4mph). Audible bleeps should not be required at all times,
given that rotating cones will be provided underneath the push button units,
hence they will be operational between 8am and 8pm only. To avoid the
masking of nearside push buttons, Officers propose to provide an additional red
man/green man signal at a higher level to address the concern about the
masking of the lower level signal.

Cycling City Major Infrastructure Implementation Group — It was felt that the
proposal to introduce peripheral cycle lanes circulating the roundabout could be
enhanced by the addition of a strip of hatch road markings positioned adjacent
to the central island. This would have the effect of further narrowing the
circulating traffic lane.

Officer response: The suggestion was welcomed, given that this was likely to
have a traffic calming influence on circulating traffic. Officers considered that
this would enhance the scheme in promoting lower circulating traffic speeds,
and instil further caution on the part of a circulating motorist to look out for
cyclists on the roundabout, particularly when making their exit manoeuvre.

Utilities — The most significant problem identified through discussions with the
utility companies and by digging trial holes concerns a BT fibre optic cable. This
would be affected by the proposed road widening on the north side of Crichton
Avenue between the Kingsway roundabout and Ashton Avenue. BT estimate
that it could cost £60k to alter this cable to accommodate the proposed cycle
scheme.

Northern Electric Distribution Limited (NEDL) have identified several areas
associated with carriageway widening that will require some sections of their
equipment to be diverted and/or protected as part of the works. It is estimated
that these will cost around £50k in total.

There remains a possibility of encountering unexpected apparatus during
construction, and some contingency funding has been allocated to allow for
this.

Officer response: Given the very high cost of locally altering BT’s fibre optic
cable, consideration has been given to modifying the scheme in this area. The
most appropriate way to deal with this problem would be to leave the existing
kerb line in position and create a short length of off-road shared use facility.
More details of this proposed scheme amendment are given below (see
paragraph 27). In contrast, the necessary work to divert and/or protect NEDL
equipment is more widespread throughout the scheme, and cannot be avoided
by small scale alterations to the proposed scheme layout. Therefore, this will be
undertaken as part of the works.

Network Rail — are concerned that the existing parapet walls on the bridge over
the railway track, at an existing height of 1.17 metres (which is the lowest point



27.

Page 107

at the central point), are lower than the standard height of 1.5 metres that they
would generally like to see next to a footway or cycle track.

Officer response: Officers have carried out a risk assessment and concluded
that the existing height of the parapet walls, coupled with their significant width
(600mm), means that there is an extremely low risk of any cyclists or
pedestrians falling over them and onto the railway line. Furthermore, Officers
are not aware of any incident in the past where a pedestrian, or a cyclist riding
on the footway, has fallen over these parapet walls. Therefore, Officers do not
consider it necessary to increase their height as part of this scheme.

Proposed Scheme Amendments following Consultation

As a result of feedback received through the public consultation exercise, a
small number of further scheme amendments are considered necessary. The
latest scheme proposals are shown in Annex C (all the key changes appear on
plan 2 of 2). The key amendments are summarised below:

e Due to problems with underground BT (fibre optic) equipment, the widening
of the road between the Kingsway roundabout and Ashton Avenue would
be costly, and therefore, an off-road shared facility is proposed. This would
involve the construction of an off-road cycle ramp to take cyclist directly
from the roundabout onto a shared-use path adjacent to the existing
Pelican crossing. Cyclists would ride a short distance through this area and
then down a ramp to rejoin carriageway level a few metres before the
junction of Ashton Avenue. Here an advisory cycle lane with green
surfacing would establish priority for cyclists past the side road. This is
considered to be the most cost effective solution, mainly because this does
not require extensive kerb line amendments, but also because the existing
Pelican crossing configuration could remain unchanged.

e Where appropriate, Officers would seek to discuss the provision of vehicle
crossings and hard-standings with residents, with a view to facilitating off-
street parking and thereby reducing the likelihood of the cycle lanes being
obstructed. This may also include an extension to the southern end of the
lay-by near the shops, subject to further investigation and cost. The
appropriate sections of properties likely to be affected is identified within
Annex C. Individual vehicle crossings and hard-standings are likely to cost
on average £1,750 each, and we anticipate that there may be as many as
16 properties requiring further investigation, but this will be largely dictated
by the garden space available. It should be noted that as part of the
proposed widening for the carriageway on the southern side of Crichton
Avenue, existing vehicle crossings will need to be amended to suit the
revised footway profile.

e A strip of hatch road markings positioned adjacent to the central island of
the Kingsway roundabout. This would enhance the scheme in promoting
lower circulatory speeds, and instil further caution on the part of circulating
motorists to be aware of cyclists on the roundabout.



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 108

Options
The options for the Executive Member to consider are as follows:

Option 1 — Support the scheme consulted on (as shown in Annex B);

Option 2 — Support the amended scheme following consultation (which is
shown in Annex C), along with any other changes Members
consider necessary;

Option 3 — Reject the proposed scheme.

Analysis

The proposals have been amended in order to address the problems identified
during the detailed design process, together with the issues raised from
feedback through the consultation process. Justification for these amendments
has been explained in the paragraphs above, and have been developed in
order to ensure that the facilities provided will be attractive for users, fit well into
the existing location and recognise the needs of local residents and businesses.
In addition, the amended proposals seek to provide value for money, and
reduce overall costs. It also is hoped that carriageway surfacing and street
lighting maintenance works can be coordinated to produce a better overall
scheme, avoid abortive costs, and reduce disruption to local residents in the
long term.

Using the ‘Evaluation Tool' recently developed to assess and prioritise cycle
schemes, the proposed cycle facilities on Crichton Avenue can be compared to
other schemes. Schemes are scored within a possible range of -30 to +38.
More information on how these scores are calculated can be found in the report
to this Decision Session entitled ‘Cycling Infrastructure within York - Principles,
Standards and Evaluation Tool'.

Scheme Total points
Beckfield Lane - Ostman Road to Wetherby Road proposals +12
Beckfield Lane - Boroughbridge Road to Ostman Road - completed +16
section

Crichton Avenue - proposals +21
Clifton Green - completed scheme +24
Moor Lane Bridge - completed scheme +26

Option 1 would not adequately address the issues identified through the
consultation feedback. There would also be a financial difficulty linked to
progressing this scheme due to the requirement to relocate the BT fibre optic
cable. Option 3 would not address the requirement to provide cycle facilities in
this area in order to deliver this section of the Orbital Cycle Route.

Therefore, Option 2 is recommended for implementation.

Corporate Priorities

The scheme would contribute to the following Corporate Priorities:




34.

35.

36.

37.

Page 109

o Making York a Sustainable City, by increasing the use of public transport
and other environmentally friendly modes of transport;

o Making York a Healthy City by improving the health and lifestyles of the
people who live in York, in particular among groups whose levels of health
are the poorest;

o Making York a Healthy City, given that the proposed scheme will
encourage more cycling and walking, which will have a beneficial effect for
peoples’ health;

° Helping to make the City of York Council an effective organisation by
combining a cycling infrastructure scheme with a carriageway resurfacing
scheme to avoid abortive costs, staff time and minimise disruption to local
residents and traffic.

Implications
Financial/Programme Implications

The likely cost of implementing the proposals for Crichton Avenue is estimated
to be £575k, as shown in the table below:

Scheme Element Estimated Cost
(£000)

Highway Construction Costs 370.0

Traffic Signals Equipment 30.0

Street Lighting 16.0

CDM Regulation (Health & Safety) Costs 8.0

Known Utilities Works (NEDL) 50.0

Contingencies (to cover things like the 35.0

provision of off-street parking facilities, and

dealing with unexpected problems with

underground services)

Professional Fees 66.0

Running Total 575.0

The Transport Capital Programme for 2009/10 has allocated a budget of £575k
for these proposals. The scheme has a high priority given its strategic
importance to the overall cycling network and is intended for implementation by
the end of March 2010.

The construction of shared-use paths will require the movement of some of the
existing street lamps. Therefore, it is proposed that new lighting columns are
proposed for the full length of Crichton Avenue. An agreement in principle is in
place for this to be on a part-funded basis between Highway Maintenance and
the proposed scheme’s budget, effectively requiring the scheme to pay for 16 of
the requisite 23 columns.

The construction of up to 16 vehicle crossings and hard-standing areas may be
required, at a cost of £1,750 each (meaning a potential total cost of £28,000).
However, while this has been allowed for within the contingency element of the



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

Page 110

scheme estimate, it is unlikely that all the properties would require these
facilities to be provided.

The carriageway resurfacing operation is to be delivered as part of the
proposed scheme, but would be financed from the Highway Maintenance
Programme.

There are no Human Resources implications.
Equalities

There are no Equalities implications.

Legal

There are no Legal implications.

Crime and Disorder

There are no Crime and Disorder implications.
Information Technology (IT)

There are no Information Technology implications.
Property

There are no Property implications.

Risk Management

Risk Category Impact Likelihood Score

Organisation/Reputation Medium (3) | Possible (3) 3x3=9

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the main risk that
has been identified in this report is the potential damage to the Council’s image
and reputation if improvements for cycling along Crichton Avenue are not
delivered, especially since this forms part of the strategically important Orbital
Cycle Route. At this point the risk only needs to be monitored, as there do not
appear to be any clear threats to the achievement of the objectives of this
report.

Contact Details:

Author Chief Officer Responsible for the report
Jon Pickles Damon Copperthwaite

Senior Engineer Assistant Director of City Strategy

(Transport & Safety)

Tel No: (01904) 553462 Report Approved | yes | Date 30" September 09

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no specialist officer implications.



Page 111

Wards Affected: Clifton All I:l

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:
“Crichton Avenue: Proposed Improvements for Cyclists” — a report to the

meeting of the Executive Member for City Strategy and Advisory Panel on 16
March 2009.

Annexes:

Annex A: Plan showing “Proposals presented to EMAP on 16 March 2009”

Annex B: Plan showing “Proposed Improvement for Cyclists, submitted for
Public Consultation on 7 August 2009”

Annex C: Plan showing “Proposed Improvements for Cyclists - Amended
proposals following public consultation”



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



EASTERN SECTION LEGEND
Shared Use:

Pedestrians and cyclists
éebrot Cf‘OE‘;jSIng to - 1.5m on-—road cycle lane
e retaine
_ |T| Proposed Toucan
Z crossing
-~
[
Z
=2
v Shared, off—road
5 facility on uphill
§ section Road widened to provide
a 1.5m wide on—road
cycle lane and access Proposed
to the advanced stop Toucan
oo line; shared facility to
AKE AVENUE the rear.

€| | obed

Road widened on both
sides to provide two CRICHT, a
1.5m wide on—road N AVENyE é
cycle lanes E
zZ
[}
Pedestrian 2
refuge W
Road widened to
provide a 1.5m wide Sh‘!r_ed’ off—rogd
on—road cycle lane; fof:|l|ty on L-JphI” and
footway to the rear bridge sections
Link to Foss
Islands route
via buildout
e A P CRICHTON AVENUE CYCLE ROUTE SCHEME:
évé% YORK (== Eastern Section Proposals
oA Femo0 (Proposals presented to EMAP on 16th March 2009)|DEC/08010331

(2 Jo 1) v xeuuy




Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



WESTERN SECTION LEGEND

Shared Use:
Pedestrians and cyclists

- 1.5m on—road cycle lane

m 2.5m off—road cycle track

IT| Proposed Toucan
crossing

Zebra crossing to
be upgraded to a
Toucan crossing

gssa
I
<
§ Y
> QD
N «Q
& ()
g -
—
(62
Roundabout to be traversed
via @ number of shared use
dropped crossings
£ Road widened on both
g sides to provide two 1.5m >
;f“ wide on—road cycle lanes g
g @
& X
N
s S “= CRICHTON AVENUE CYCLE ROUTE SCHEME: o
évé% YORK T —-l— Western Section Proposals =h
bae  Femoe (Proposals presented at EMAP on 16th March 2009) |DEC/08010331 \N/




Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



§ ‘ Ramp up to footway level — Proposed toucan crossing
i e
PMWMJ[ Ramp down to carriageway level |—Muum

{3
5 Propoeed oo

Right tum facility for cyclists
g — [ ]

@ Ramp down to carriageway level 'Feeder’ lane fo
advanced stop line KEY
\ Proposed Kerb
. \ Crichton Avenue o Retalned kerb
§ [ Rosd
“ I Footpath
Shared use areas [ | Existing shared use path
% Pro d [ | Proposed Shared use path
E kerb crossing point [ ] Tactile crossing paving
5 [ ] Grass verge
n 5 [ | Anti-skid surfacing
E I Red coloured surface
3 Cycle ramp
Green coloured surface
N 2 Extsting Foss Isiands Path (cycle lanes & advance stop lines)
\ §
BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING . Drawn Date Scale
AvA . SRK HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. GROWN Crichton Avenue, PH 4/08/2009 | 1: 500 @ A3
e roR wrsoes crown cormanT Ao iETo | Proposed Improvements for Cyclists Checkad Drawing Number
Counol, Licence No. 100020618 (Submitted for public consultation 7 August 2009) MM DEC/08010331/1

/1| abed

(230 1) g xeuuy



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



oLl Lale o) W

.m
ORDNANCE ** See page 1 for KEY **
WITH THE PERMSSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF Crichton A r— s s
LV \ e W |Srme o i | =TO1ON FVONUS, _ PH | 4/08/2009 |1:500 @ A3
wreaices crownicommarTapvizoTo | Proposed Improvements for Cyclists Checked Drawing Namber
Councl, Licencs No. 100020818 (Submitted for public consultation on 7 August 2009) MM DEC/08010331/2

(2 Jo 2) g xeuuy

61 | abed



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121

L/1€€01080/03A NN (uoneynsuoo olgnd Buimoyjoy sjesodoid papuswy) 81.80Z 000} "ON 99U89IT “OUNoD
OA J0 AND ‘SONIAITIOOU TIAID HO NOILNDISOYd
B OL1 av31 AVIN ANV LHOIHAJOO NMOYO STONIYANI 1eNn0s 2 nsuo)
JaquinN Bumesa pP498U9 S]S| _O\AO 10} w#C®E®>O._Q w UmwOQ old NOILONAOHdTY QISIHOHLAVNN “LHOINAIOD v_ﬂgm Aoupiinsuos o ﬂ ﬂ
eV D 00571 | 60060/0€ | Hd | , Juew puepens st T -
31803 31eq umelg 9NUBAY UOJYdLD

ONIddVIA ASAYNS FONVYNQYO JHL NOdN a3svd

(saul| doys @ouenpe g saue| 8|0A9)
soeuns painojoo usass [ ]

dwel 8jok) I

aoens painojoo pay [
Buepns ppis-puy [
obienssein [ ]

Buined Buissolo snoe ] _H_

ured esn paseys Aem-omj pesodoid [ |
yred asn paseys Aem-om Bunsixg _H_

uyedioo [N
peoy [ ]

gy pauleloy
qJey pasodoid

Annex C (1 of 2)

A

yied spue|s| sso4 bunsix3

juiod Buissouo giay
paddoup pasodo.id

seale asn paieys

anuUaAy UOIYoLD

aul| dojs psoueApe
0) aue| Japss4,

|[oA3] Aemabellied 0} umop duwey

aul Aem|iey ybnologqieds 03 oA

eale asn paleys 1_

\

-

$S900B 9040 10}
qJey paddoup pasodoid

ss1j0A0 1oy Ajioey uiny Juybry

|oA8] Aemabellied o) umop dwey

aueT] 2uo)s uoung

CuTt

aNUBAY UOIYOLD

Buissolo ueonoy pesodoid —

- W
9

anuaAy el @ W

@

[ons] Aemjooy 0} dn dwey _ m

sujewsal
Buissoio
eiqaz
Bunsix3a
//

peoy

apIs sy}
uo pauspIm /m
N




Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



2/1€€01080/030A NN (uoneynsuoo oljgnd Buimojjoy siesodoid PEPUBWYY) | L0 1 ko “sonaTaams S ﬂw%hmuwﬂmw
Joquin Bupmeiq ) SISI10AD) 10} syuswanoldw] pasododd | O ol B ey | NGA T ey ﬂ ﬂ
m”< @ oom N —\ OOON\QO\OW Il NMOYD 301440 AYINOILVLS S.ALSArYIN ¥3H e iLd »

‘an C®>< u OH_.SO_._ O 40 Y3TIOHLNOD IHL 40 NOISSINGTd FHL HLIM

9|ess aleqg umelq ONIddVYIN ASAYNS FJONVYNAYO IHL NOdN a3sve

0

+« AT Jo} | obed sag ,,

7

Annex C (2 of 2)

Page 123

\

Ly () W

& @

I 6e

4

1

[=—— pajebisanul aq 0y sbu

"aul| quay pesodold

WoJy 8pIS SIY}) UO Ulewal 0} auljqiey bunsixg

08 [ &

[4] 4 9 8y

9 8 0¢ [ 3 9% 8 | OF

1540

nogepunos punose
pajebliseaul aq 0} uoisus}xa saue| 8]9Ad |esaydusd
= = Ag-Aey/sbuissolo sjoiyan MBN

& o Iy

paulejal aq 0} Buisso.o
ueoljad Buisixg

Wc?_ un ow ww‘:_mwo._o u_m_:m> meN —1

[9A8] peo. 0}

ORI I o | oo | W | W umop dwey

O anuaAy alquiol) ajsoddo
0} JN0gepuUNOJ WoJ} ‘apIs SIY} Uo
pauspim peoy "aul| giay paesodold




Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125 Agenda ltem 11

YORK

3 COUNCIL
X&

Decision Session - 20™ October 2009
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Cycling Infrastructure within York — Standards, Evaluation
Tool, and Cost/Benefit Matrix

Summary

1. This report considers the design of future cycling infrastructure for the
City of York and presents a set of standards to be adopted. In addition,
it also considers a tool by which a direct comparison of cycling schemes
and their relative benefits can be made.

Recommendations
2.  The Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended:

I. To approve the Standards and Principles for designing cycling
infrastructure within York.

il To approve a cycling scheme Evaluation Tool and note a
Cost/Benefit Matrix for expenditure on cycling infrastructure
schemes.

Reason: To provide a uniformed approach to designing new cycling
infrastructure within York so that consistency can be achieved
throughout the network of cycle routes and to provide a mechanism to
assess, justify, and prioritise future cycle scheme work programmes.

Background

Designing Cycling Infrastructure

3. In previous years, cycling infrastructure schemes have been designed
and implemented on a piecemeal basis and have not all been
implemented to the same standards. Inconsistencies in many areas,
including quality, widths, signage, user priorities, surfacing etc, have all
been experienced when using different departments, external
consultants or contractors to design or build facilities.

4.  With Cycling City status, York has an extensive programme of planned
infrastructure works and it was felt that a document would be
advantageous which was aimed at Engineers/Planners, and which set
out consistent standards, principles and guidance for designing cycling
infrastructure for York. The intention is that every facility which is



Page 126

designed and subsequently built will be of the same ‘York Standard’,
providing consistency throughout the network. This document entitled
‘Standards and Principles for Designing Cycling Infrastructure’ is
attached as Annex A.

Extensive guidance already exists, issued by the Department for
Transport (DfT) [Local Transport Note 2/08 — ‘Cycle Infrastructure
Design’ — Oct 2008], and by Cycling England (Design Checklist &
Guidance), and many of their recommendations are mirrored in the York
Standards. Where the York Standards differ is that they are more
concise than the DfT guidance and will act as a quick condensed
reference, with some specifications altered necessarily to fit the
uniqueness of York.

It is widely acknowledged that shared-use paths are particular points of
conflict between pedestrians and cyclists generally and in York. Officers
have investigated ways of addressing this problem but have been
unable to develop a solution other than that offered by the DfT, without
causing potential hazards for pedestrians, and/or causing additional
confusion. In trying to resolve the situation advice has been sought from
DfT, Cycling England and CYC legal services. Cycling England advised
that where the width of a shared use path is insufficient to provide full
segregation and has therefore been provided as a shared use space it is
preferable to leave the area undelineated to put the onus on users to
take extra care and consideration, as there would be insufficient space
for the users to interact safely within the delineated area. Advice is that
DfT regulations/guidance should be followed to avoid any possible
challenge in the future.

For example, DfT guidelines do not stipulate when and where
segregation should be used over unsegregation. However it is stated
that: “Almost all off-road routes for cyclists are used by pedestrians, and
the potential for user conflict needs careful consideration. Where there
is potential for conflict, separating user flows is an option but if room is
limited, this may not be making best use of the width available.” In
addition, concerning such areas, where pedestrian and cyclist
movements are likely to conflict (i.e. pedestrian crossings or bus stops),
DfT guidance states the following: “If the footway and cycle track on the
approach are segregated, segregation should stop short of the waiting
area (which should be shared use).” For this situation, the advice
received from DfT; Cycling England; and the council’'s Legal Services
department were all in agreement.

Evaluating Cycle Schemes

There has been a desire to develop a ‘cycling model’ which would
predict the anticipated increase in cyclists using a facility once built,
based on cost of facility. On investigation, and after discussions with
other local authorities and consultants, it has been concluded that there
is no such model in existence (although there is wide recognition that
one would be useful).

An extensive list of desired infrastructure works over a limited amount of
time and with a limited budget means that some prioritisation and



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Page 127

justification of schemes must be undertaken. A simple tool has been
designed by which to compare the relative benefits of one scheme
against those of another, and give each a score. In this way it is
intended that a database of indices for schemes past and present can
be established, against which future schemes can be assessed. The
Evaluation Tool is attached as Annex B.

With thorough before and after monitoring of new cycling facilities in
York it may be possible, in the future, to build up an evidence base
which would then give sufficient confidence to prioritise cycling in certain
circumstances and give an estimate for the anticipated increase in
cyclists (but not currently at this time).

A report commissioned by Cycling England and reported to them by
SQW Consulting in December 2008, included a matrix which showed
the number of additional cyclists which were needed in order to justify a
given spend on a cycling infrastructure project. Several variables gave
estimated annual monetary values for each additional cyclist (cycling
regularly for one year) including: health benefits; value of loss of life;
NHS savings; productivity gains; pollution; congestion; and ambience.

Calculation is possible of the economic benefit of each cyclist, therefore
it is also possible to use these combined values to show the number of
new cyclists required to ensure that an investment will at least break-
even over the full life of the cycle facility (assumed to be 30 years).
Because facilities are varied in type and location, the matrix also gave
values for four different types: urban on-road; urban off-road, rural on-
road; and rural off-road cycle facilities. These results can be read within
Annex C.

Using the matrix, and with thorough before and after monitoring of new
cycle facilities (to give actual numbers for increased cyclist usage), we
can estimate whether a scheme has been “good value for money”.
However it should be noted that this is difficult to quantify initially, as
usage tends to build up steadily from an initial boost, and therefore year-
on-year growth in cyclist numbers is not usually uniform.

We can also, in time, develop this element into a ‘value for money’ factor
to be included within the evaluation tool.

Consultation

Extensive consultation has been undertaken to develop the Cycling
Design Standards including the following meetings:-

= 27" May 2009  Major Infrastructure Implementation Group,
Cycling City York Programme.

= 19" June 2009 Internal (City Strategy) Workshop — participation
from Transport Planning; Engineering
Consultancy; Network Management; and
Highways Maintenance.

= 29" June 2009 Internal (City Strategy) Workshop — participation
from Transport Planning; Engineering



Page 128

Consultancy; Network Management, and
Highways Maintenance.

= 28" July 2009  Officer in Consultation with Executive Member —
Director of City Strategy

16. In addition, a wide range of internal and external stakeholders have
been consulted and additional comments have been received (and
incorporated into the document where possible) from the following:-

John Grimshaw CBE, Special Adviser to Cycling England
‘Cycling Champion’ Member

York Cycle Campaign

Halcrow Consultancy

Transport Initiatives Consultancy

Corporate Strategy

17. Adopting the Standards and Principles for designing cycling
infrastructure, as well as approving the cycling scheme Evaluation Tool,
will contribute to the delivery of the Corporate Strategy, specifically
through the following themes and commitments:

= Sustainable City
“The Council is committed to improve the quality of the local
environment and the condition of York’s streets and public spaces.”

“The Council is committed to transform York into a ‘Cycle City’ by
investing our successful £3.7 million bid in cycling infrastructure,
increasing cycling opportunities and improving cycle availability to
all’.

= Safer City
By providing consistency throughout the highways network, this will

improve safety for all users.

= Healthy City
Investing in quality and consistent cycling infrastructure will

encourage more people to choose this mode of transport and
improve general health and wellbeing.

= Effective Organisation
Through being able to justify and prioritise cycling infrastructure
schemes, the Council will be able to make the most efficient use of
Cycling City and Local Transport Plan funding.

Implications
18. This report has the following implications:
= Financial

There are no financial implications at present. However, if the
Evaluation Tool were not approved, schemes may not consequently



19.

20.

Page 129

achieve their maximum potential in terms of “value for money” for
effectively increasing the number of people cycling.

= Human Resources
There are no HR implications at present.

= Equalities

Providing consistent and improved cycling infrastructure throughout
the city removes some of the barriers to — and encourages a modal
shift to — cycling, where people may have been discouraged from
doing so in the past. In addition, many of the standards advocate
the minimisation of street clutter which would improve the street
environment for pedestrians and particularly for blind and partially
sighted people, as well as those with luggage or wheelchairs.

= Legal
There are no legal implications at present, other than those

prescribed by DfT’s Traffic Signs Regulations and General
Directions.

= Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications at present.

= |nformation Technology
There are no IT implications at present.

= Property
There are no property implications at present.

= Sustainability
Adoption of the Design Standards will encourage a modal shift to

more sustainable means of transport.

= QOther
As a ‘Cycling City’, York needs to be seen actively improving
provision for cyclists and using government funding to improve
cycling infrastructure where it is likely to have the biggest effect on
increasing cycling numbers. Any hesitance on this matter could
damage York’s reputation as a Cycling City.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main
risk that has been identified in this report could lead to the inability to
meet the council’s objectives (Strategic).

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for the
recommendation is less than 16 and thus at this point the risks need
only to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the
achievement of the objectives of this report.



Page 130

Non Ruling Group Spokespersons' comments

21. As City of York Council’s Cycling Champion, Clir A. D’Agorne, Green
Party, has already contributed to the development of the Design
Standards and had no further comments on these. Regarding the
cost/benefit of schemes, he suspected that returns in terms of increased
use for a given investment would be variable according to a great many
things such as major trip generators; residential areas served; degree of
promotion; and even age profile in the local population. High profile
local promotion of new cycling facilities would be money well spent from
the Cycling City Programme.

22. ClIr I. Gillies, on behalf of the Conservative Group, commented that
there was a need for secure and covered parking for cyclists within the
city centre, in addition to the proposed Lendal Hub Station, to reduce the
number of bicycles being locked illegally against lamp posts and railings.
He believed that current parking should be removed from pedestrian
areas and relocated to other sites, in addition to using areas of car
parks. The loss of revenue from these car parking spaces could be
compensated out of the Cycling City budget.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Richard Holland Damon Copperthwaite

Transport Planner — Strategy Assistant Director (City Development & Transport)
Tel No. 01904 551401 Directorate of City Strategy

Report Approved | v Date 7 October 2009

Specialist Implications Officer(s): None

Wards Affected: All v

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers

Report: “Cycling within York — Infrastructure Standards; Benefits Index;
Cost/Benefit Matrix”, to meeting of Officer in Consultation with Executive
Member — Director of City Strategy (28 July 2009)

DfT Local Transport Note 2/08: “Cycle Infrastructure Design” (October 2008)

Report: “Guidance on Sustainable Development’, to City of York Council
Scrutiny Management Committee (October 2006)

Annexes

Annex A Standards & Principles for Designing Cycling Infrastructure
Annex B Cycling Scheme Evaluation Tool
Annex C Cost/Benefit Matrix for Cycling Infrastructure



Page 131 Annex A

e
’44‘

| S
Ny CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

.

City of York Council
Standards & Principles for
Designing Cycling Infrastructure

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Foreword

This document sets out the standards and principles which are to be used when
designing infrastructure for cycling within York and create a consistent approach.

Most of the recommendations are taken from DfT Standards and/or Cycling England
Guidance, but with some specifics adapted necessarily to fit the uniqueness of the
City of York, and also taking into account recommendations made to the Scrutiny
Management Committee by an Ad-Hoc Scrutiny Sub-Committee on 23 October 2006
regarding guidance on sustainable development. Furthermore, this document has
purposely been kept concise so as to act as a quick reference, as opposed to a
detailed parameter guide, as comprehensive design information is already available
(listed in the bibliography) and particularly the DfT Local Transport Note 2/08 — Cycle
Infrastructure Design (Oct 2008).

It would not be possible to incorporate every possible scenario or situation within this
document as the permutations are endless, but most of the generic
problems/solutions which occur when designing cycling infrastructure will be covered.
This document should be used as a general guide (“rule of thumb”) and reference,
but in some circumstances, solutions may have to be sought from outside the
Design. This is of particular note in conservation areas (many parts of York), where
‘identikit’ solutions are not always appropriate.

1.2 Tips

The three key points to stress to Engineers when designing useful cycling
infrastructure are:-

1. Always think from a cyclist’s viewpoint.
(e.g. What would really help you on your journey at this point? What would
severely deter you? Also what are the Pedestrian movements?

2. Be realistic.
(e.g. Is a sign really going to be adhered to? Is it a waste of money?)

3. Use your common sense.
(e.g. More often than not, any provision for cyclists is better than none!)

When considering designing infrastructure for cycles, reference should be made to
the DfT’s Hierarchy of Users and Hierarchy of Provision, but needs to be considered
alongside the environment within which it is going to be built (i.e. traffic speeds;
congestion; conservation area; pedestrian numbers; likely type of user; etc).
Measures for cyclists (and pedestrians) should offer positive provision which reduces
delay or diversion and improves safety:-



Page 132

Congested and becomes
unsuitable for cycling on

I the carriageway
SEGREGATED

CYCLE
FACILITY

Highest Priority

Cycle lanes and tracks can be considered
PedeStrlanS and d|Sab|ed peOp|e 8 but are not normally beneficial in 20mph zones
Cyclists

Public transport users

SHARED
ROAD | SEGREGATED

Total 2 Way Vehicle Flow (1000 veh/day or 100 veh/hr)

X X 6 >~ CYCLE
Motorcyclists and taxis : ~ FACILITY
Commercial and business vehicles \ AN
CYCLE
Car borne Shoppers .. 3 SHARED LANE \ Reduction of motor vehicle
g Car borne commuters and visitors ROAD \ \ speeds should be considered
2
N
L t Priorit 1 SHARED \— g — STGREGATED "
owes riority ROAD “ CYCLE FACILITY
10 20 30 40 60 70
Speed V 85% (mph)
Hierarchy of Users Hierarchy of Provision

2.0 ON-ROAD PROVISION
2.1 Introduction

Many children and non-confident adult cyclists prefer to use off-road routes as they
are separated fully from traffic and are perceived as safer. However, most of the
time, the most direct routes for cyclists are those incorporating existing highways,
and certainly in York, cycle lanes in the carriageway can benefit most cyclists,
although on occasions, poorly designed lanes have made conditions worse or more
hazardous. On-road provision also means that the cyclist has priority over vehicles
emerging from side-roads, requiring the cyclist to slow down or stop less frequently
than most off-road provision. In addition, cycle provision on-road is relatively
inexpensive compared to off-road provision and we can usually achieve better value
for money this way.

Contrary to most motorists beliefs, there is no legal obligation for cyclists to use cycle
lanes (or any other type of cycle infrastructure provision), although the benefits of
using ‘good’ cycle lanes, for most, outweigh the negatives. The intention is that a
cycle lane will create a comfort zone around a cyclist, often assisting them in difficult
or congested situations and raising driver awareness of cyclists.

However, overly narrow cycle lanes potentially reduce the level of separation
between vehicles and cyclists by encouraging cyclists to stay closer to the kerb, and
if a lane is too narrow to comfortably ride within it, the purpose of the facility is lost.

2.2 Basics

» The following minimum clearances should be observed where possible, and
increased where there is opportunity.
Note:- As a general guide, these figures should be added to the 1.00 m ‘dynamic
envelope’ of a cyclist, to give minimum widths of a one-way facility where there
are fixed objects:



Page 133

Object Distance from wheel to object (metres)
Kerbs under 50 mm 0.25m

Kerbs over 50 mm 0.50 m

Sign posts, lamps columns,etc 0.75m

Continuous features — i.e. walls, railings, | 1.00 m

bridge parapets, etc

23

Cycle Lane Widths

The standard in York is to provide cycle lanes of 1.5 metres width on most roads.
Note:- Although some advice recommends cycle lanes which are of larger width
(i.e. 2.0 metres), general consensus in York is that small cars and motorcycles
may use the lane to queue-jump traffic, so 1.5 metres should be observed in
most situations.

If plenty of space is available, consideration should be given to the cycle lane
remaining at 1.5 metres wide, and introducing a buffer-zone (of perhaps 0.5
metres) between the cycle lane and the kerb edge.

Note:- This buffer then provides space so that the cycle lane does not “hug the
kerb” and allows cyclists to avoid gutter objects and litter.

In some cases, where very large scale cycle flows are anticipated or at contra-
flow situations, cycle lanes should be 2.0 metres wide, allowing cyclists to
pass/overtake each other.

Note:- Contra-flow cycle lanes are required to be mandatory (unbroken white
line) with a ban on all parking/loading. They require very clear and prominent
markings, including arrows.

To provide continuity of a cycle lane (and for a short distance only — at the
Planner/Engineer’s discretion), cycle lanes can narrow to 1.2 metres wide if
necessary, but only at potential pinch points and this should always be an
exception, rather than the rule.

Note:- Every attempt must be made to set back any kerbside street furniture
along this stretch of the cycle lane. This may then reduce the hazard of a cyclist
hitting an object with the edge of their handlebars when cycling close to the kerb
and also gives the illusion of more space.

An alternative, for roads with less traffic, is for the cycle lane to continue at
standard width, with the all-purpose lane narrowed to substandard for the short
distance. (The minimum width for an all-purpose traffic lane within York is 2.8
metres wide [exceptions do occur — see section 2.10].)

Note:- This can work satisfactorily as traffic is discouraged to cross into the
advisory cycle lane, but can legally do so if necessary (i.e. two HGVs passing).

If there is not enough room to provide an advisory 1.2 metre cycle lane, or the
squeeze-point is over a longer distance, please consult Transport Planning Unit
(in consultation with Network Management) for their views on whether, as an
exception, a narrower lane would be possible, or whether it may be best to avoid
a cycle lane altogether. Where the latter occurs, line markings for the cycle lane




Page 134

should merely discontinue for the length of the squeeze-point, and resume when
the carriageway returns to normal width.

Note:- Some evidence shows that overtaking motorists refer to the lane markings
and not the cyclist — meaning some may pass too close if the lane is any
narrower. This might be the case on roads with fairly free-flowing traffic. (For
narrow roads with traffic which is regularly stationary/queuing, please see section
2.10)

» Where space is restricted, consideration should be made to widen the
carriageway and incorporate cycle lanes by removing part of the footway.
Note:- This should be done in circumstances where the footway already has very
ample width and any narrowing of the footway will not have any adverse effects
on pedestrian movements.

24 Mandatory / Advisory Cycle Lanes

» Research shows that up to a third of motorists do not understand that their
vehicles are not permitted to enter, or park within, a mandatory cycle lane
(unbroken white line). However, nearly all motorists are aware of the meaning of
double yellow lines. It is also apparent that York has many relatively narrow
highways where encroachment by motor vehicles (and particularly buses / FTR)
into a cycle lane may be unavoidable. Therefore, most cycle lanes installed
within York will be advisory (white dashed line) on routes with full parking
prohibition (double yellow lines).

Note:- Mandatory cycle lanes may be appropriate in some areas where it is felt
necessary (and where on-road parking by vehicles is very unlikely — i.e. the outer
ring-road), although time constraints should be considered as a TRO is required.

25 Diverting Around Parking Bays

» Where there are a number of parking bays, the cycle lane should be routed

around the bays with a 1.0 metre buffer zone between cycle lane and parked cars
to allow for door openings. As a minimum, a buffer zone of 0.5 metres should be
used, although this may be influenced by the depth of the parking bay.
Note:- Where there is a real danger from parked cars or little room to incorporate
the facilities, consideration could possibly be made to divert the cycle lane onto
the footway (if wide enough to incorporate segregated use) for a short distance
before returning to on-carriageway. Also note though that a buffer zone between
cycle track and parking would still be required (doors opening etc) and on-road
provision is nearly always the preferable solution.




2.6

2.7

>

2.8

>

Page 135

Coloured Surfacing

Anti-skid, coloured surfacing to highlight “cycle accessibility” (in York this is
always “FERN GREEN” — RAL 6025 [& Hot-Applied]) will only be used to
emphasize the presence of a cycle lane in certain hazardous circumstances to
draw motorists’ attention to the potential presence of cyclists.

Consideration should be made to the aesthetics of the scheme and the sensitivity
of the area in which it is being used, as sporadic use of coloured surfacing looks
unsightly and it may be better to link some ‘patches’ together (although this may
be expensive).

Fern Green surfacing should be used sparingly, but is necessary in the following
situations:-

At lead-in lanes and advanced stop lines (particularly for non-nearside lanes);
Cycle lanes crossing the mouths of side-roads or alongside parking bays;
Central and right-turn cycleffilter lanes, as well as contra-flow cycle lanes;

At some junctions, particularly where there are exempted cycle movements;
Through zig-zag markings at zebra and pelican crossings and at bus stop
markings (no lining - surfacing only);

Possibly used for 2-way cycle lanes;

Other locations where cyclists may be put at greater risk, e.g. short cycle
lanes through pinch points.

Anti-skid, RED coloured surfacing should only be used to highlight a potential
danger for cyclists and should typically only be used for crossings of side-roads
etc where the cyclist does NOT have priority.

Note:- As a ‘rule of thumb’, Fern Green surfacing should be used where a cyclist
has priority or an advantage over other traffic. Red surfacing should be used
where a cyclist does not have priority (or if no one user has priority over another).

Termination of Cycle Route

Where cycle lanes end abruptly on the carriageway, i.e. without any further
provision for cyclists, the use of “End of Cycle Route” or “Cyclists Dismount”
signs / painted-markings are to be wholly discouraged. If deemed absolutely
necessary, only the use of ‘End’ (painted at the termination of a cycle lane) will be
acceptable.

Note:- In nearly all cases the cycle lane markings should simply discontinue,
reintroducing cyclists into the main traffic lane.

Side Roads

Cycle lanes will be continuous passing the mouths of (minor) side roads. A
combination of coloured surface, cycle symbols (diagram 1057 of the DfT’s TSM)
— orientated in cyclist direction of travel, occasional arrows (see below), and
continuation of lining should be used on the junction itself.

For larger side roads, two symbols should be used - one at the centre of the
traffic lane leaving the side road (an arrow in cyclist direction of travel should also
be used here to indicate cyclists crossing from one direction in front of waiting
vehicles — where it is deemed necessary), and one at the centre of the traffic lane
which enters the side road (no arrow required here).



Page 136

» For small side roads, the symbol should be placed centrally to the side road
‘mouth’. Usually, an arrow is not required.

Cycle lane passing side road (diag.1057 Diagram 1057.
is wrongly positioned and should be centrally
positioned to the mouth of this minor side road).

» Cycle symbol markings on the ground (diag.1057) must be placed at the start of

any substantial cycle lane and feature at every break (i.e. at a side road — see
above), as well as at suitable intervals (at discretion of Engineers).
Note:- On any long uninterrupted length of cycle lane, to reduce road markings,
diag.1057 can be used sparingly, but would advise symbols approximately every
100-200 metres depending on how prominent these need to be to other road
users.

» The use of upright signs (diag.967) to denote an on-road cycle lane should be
used sparingly, if at all. York is trying to reduce street-clutter, and with the
symbols and any coloured-surfacing on the ground to highlight the facility to road
users, these signs serve little purpose. They should be used sparingly around
the city, so that where they are used, they are that much more noticed.

Note:- If decided that a sign is required in a location, every attempt should be
made to attaching it to existing posts/columns.

Diagram 967.



2.9
>

Page 137

Roundabouts

Continental-style roundabouts (also known as compact roundabouts) have tighter
geometry than the typical UK roundabout and are more cycle-friendly as
motorists are unlikely to attempt to overtake cyclists on the circulatory
carriageway due to its limited width. An overrun apron around the central island
can offer a tighter geometry for cars by increasing the island’s effective diameter,
while still allowing larger vehicles to use the junction. To be most effective, it
should be slightly raised and/or textured.

Note:- Many studies show there is a higher risk of cyclist injury accidents at
roundabouts compared with other junctions. Large, unsignalled, multilane
roundabouts are generally the most hazardous and intimidating for cyclists.

Where feasible, roundabouts should be designed for lower vehicle speeds to
allow cyclists to take up a position in the centre of the circulatory carriageway,
where motorists are most likely to see them. Entry and exit lanes that are aligned
to be more radial than tangential to the circulating carriageway help reduce
vehicle speeds by creating greater deflection. Single lane entries and exits
ensure that sight-lines are not obscured by other vehicles.

Note:- The innovative roundabout at Heworth Green (the ‘magic roundabout’)
should be emulated where many cycle routes meet at a common roundabout.
These should feature wide cycle lanes, a reduced circulatory carriageway width,
tight geometry, and a smaller outside diameter than conventional roundabouts.
The lanes only position a cyclist close to the perimeter when he or she intends
leaving at the next exit — otherwise, the cyclist is positioned away from the
perimeter.

210 Cycle By-Passes

>

Cycle by-passes will be introduced at traffic-calmed areas, particularly at any
build-outs, central refuges or chicanes where there would be a danger that the
cyclist would get forced out into the main carriageway.

Note:- A minimum of 1.0 metre width should be observed for the by-pass.
Consideration also needs to be given to issues such as drainage, sweeping and
preventing blockage by parked vehicles.

Example of cycle by-pass at a build-out.



Page 138

211 Where Widths are Restricted / Shared Space (Vehicles & Cyclists)

>

On single carriageways, where physical space is restricted and there is not
enough room to incorporate cycle lanes, nor any off-road alternative, careful
consideration should be given to removing the centre line. This has a proven
speed-reducing feature as well as re-allocating road space in favour of the cyclist
and is best suited to “quiet” locations where there are relatively few HGVs and
general traffic flows are reasonably low.

Note:- This technique is suitable for roads wide enough to accommodate two 1.5
metre cycle lanes and a central general traffic lane of at least 3.5 metres (i.e. an
overall carriageway width of at least 6.5 metres).

Removal of the centre-line and incorporation of cycle lanes.

212 ** ONLY IN EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES **:-

@
0.0

Where situations exist where carriageways are narrow, traffic flows are much
greater and there are likely to be periods of stationary queuing traffic (i.e.
Gillygate; Lendal Bridge etc), options are extremely limited. Something needs to
be done to guide traffic away from the kerb edges and towards the centre line, so
that cyclists can then ‘undertake’ queuing traffic. Careful discussions should
always be undertaken with Transport Planning Unit (in consultation with Network
Management) to agree an acceptable solution.

Note:- DfT do not have any recommendations on this situation, other than the
use of diag.967 to highlight a recommended cycling route, on-carriageway.

Because of this lack of guidance from DfT, and with York having a number of
locations where there is a physical lack of space (i.e. overall carriageway widths
of less than 7 metres, and no room to convert footway) and often in conservation
areas within the heart of York, a special case could be made (only in exceptional
circumstances) to install advisory cycle lanes to 1.0 metre width. It is accepted
that traffic lanes would be significantly reduced in width (but to an absolute
minimum of 2.0 metres wide). As the cycle lanes are only advisory, any vehicles,
but particularly HGVs and buses, are legally allowed to enter them and it is
accepted that situations will arise when vehicles straddle both the traffic and
cycle lanes.

Note:- 1.0 metre wide cycle lanes are well below the York standard width (for
installing new cycle lanes), but in exceptional circumstances, and for the purpose
of allowing cyclists to pass queuing traffic, these could be justified. Please note



0
0'0

Page 139

that this option should never be considered as a solution unless all other options
have been explored in full.

In the situation above, as well as the use of lining, the cycle symbol (diag.1057)
should be used more regularly than on normal width cycle lanes (approximately
every 25 — 50 metres), to alert other road users that the facility is a cycle lane and
to encourage them to stay out of it.

Note:- Advisory on-carriageway cycle route signs (diag.967), although normally
discouraged from use, may be used in these situations, but only if deemed
absolutely necessary and should only be placed at the beginning of the on-road
facility and after any major break in the route (i.e. after a crossroads where the
facility continues straight ahead). Again, these should be fixed to existing
posts/columns if possible.

2.13 Traffic Calmed Areas

>

>

3.0
3.1

If a flat-top speed-table is to be installed, a gentle gradient transition should be
used, featuring no overtly sharp angles.
Note:- This could be done with the use of preformed sinusoidal profile ramps.

e 8y, -
B

The gentler gradient of a preformed sinusoidal profile ramp.

Where road humps or speed cushions are used, a gap of at least 1.0 metre width
needs to provided between kerb-edge and the hump/cushion.

ADVANCED STOP LINES (‘ASLs’)

Description

Of all the cycle-specific measures, ASLs are among the most beneficial. However,
they must be large and prominent enough to be effective so that motorists do not
encroach into the waiting area, as is regularly observed.

Importantly, ASLs have little or no negative impact on traffic congestion or capacity,
even where a vehicle lane is at saturation flow. However, in some cases the
installation of ASLs at a junction may result in a need to make minor changes to the
signal timings, mainly for the benefit of cyclists clearing larger junctions, but in most
circumstances setting back all the stop lines for other traffic by an appropriate
amount to incorporate any ASL will not require a longer inter-green period or any
other signal timing changes.



Page 140

An example of a standard-width ASL within York.

3.2

Specifications

ASLs must only be used at signalised junctions and must be adequately deep
enough for cyclists to make the desired movements and assume a prominent
position in the road. These will normally be between 4 and 5 metres deep.

Note:- Deeper ASLs are possible where a very large number of cyclists are
expected through the junction.

Fern Green coloured surfacing for the waiting area and the lead-in lanes should
be used on all ASLs as this can help to make them more conspicuous to
motorists who may otherwise encroach upon them.

Note:- This is particularly the case with non-nearside lead-in lanes, where cycling
between two lanes of vehicular traffic poses an extra hazard.

ASLs should extend across all the traffic lane(s). Part-width ASLs do currently
exist within York, but they are not covered by TSRGD (Traffic Signs Regulations
and General Directions) and future part-width ASLs should be avoided or
individually authorised internally.

Note:- A better solution would be to simply set back the stop-line and signals an
extra few metres (so that a full-width ASL can be incorporated).

Lead-in lanes are expected for all ASLs and should be of sufficient length as to
bypass traffic queuing at the signalised junction. The aim should be for the
facility to extend back up the road as far as possible, with all options explored to
incorporate the lead-in lane (i.e. road widening; traffic-lane width reduction; etc).

For cycle lanes/feeder lanes into advanced stop line arrangements, a width of 1.5
metres is advisable, although 1.2 metres would be acceptable if outbound from a
pinch-point. (1.0 metre width would be an absolute minimum if coming from a
situation such as in para 2.10, or at a small feeder stub).

Where there is multiple traffic/filter lanes for vehicles to use, and especially at
filter-light arrangements (i.e. Blossom Street crossroads), the use of diag.1057
and arrows on the ASL should be used to indicate the safest position for cyclists
to take up where they will not be obstructing filtering traffic movements.

Approval from DfT is currently being sought for the use of advance cyclist signal

lights, for cyclists to be given several seconds ‘head-start’ over other traffic at
some junctions where there is a real danger of cyclist/motorist conflict.

-10 -



Page 141

4.0 OFF-ROAD PROVISION
41 Introduction

In general, off-road cycle routes in urban areas tend to be the most desired
(particularly by non-confident cyclists) however, these are usually the least feasible of
options. In practice it is usually more convenient (and cheaper) to cater for urban
cyclists on-road if this is practicable. However, off-road provision should be
considered first, especially in some cases where there is real or perceived safety
issues, or if taking advantage of direct routes (across the Strays for example). This
can become apparent when consideration is made of the purpose of a route (i.e. A
Safer Route to School might incorporate mainly off-road facilities).

Off-road routes are often created by converting existing footways/footpaths and
almost invariably need to be designed to accommodate pedestrians too. Such
provision varies considerably from a shared-use pavement alongside an urban road,
to countryside leisure routes such as those on converted former railway lines.
Overall design will depend very much on how each route is used.

A large problem is that urban off-road routes may be frequently interrupted by side
roads. Cycle crossings of side roads can be difficult to get right and they are often
points of conflict between cyclists and motorists. Frequent road crossings, tight
corner radii, the presence of other users and restricted width or forward visibility all
affect the speed with which cyclists can travel and the effort required. Cyclists tend
not to favour cycle routes that frequently require them to adjust their speed or stop.

4.2 Basics

Where there is opportunity to incorporate a separate cycle track from a footway,
this should normally be observed. A separate, one-directional cycle-only track
should be at least 1.5 metres wide. A two-directional cycle-only track should be
2.0 metres wide as a minimum and wider where possible, depending on
anticipated usage.

» For all shared-use paths, construction should be using an appropriate sealed
surface, and cambered to fall to either side of the centre so that water can run-off
to either side and avoids pooling on the path.

» In most cases however, shared-use paths are likely to be the most appropriate.

4.3 Segregation -vs- Unsegregation

» It is widely acknowledged that shared-use paths are points of conflict between
pedestrians and cyclists who use them.
Note:- Officers have investigated ways of addressing this problem but have been
unable to ascertain a solution other than that offered by the DfT, without causing
potential hazards for pedestrians, and/or causing confusion. Furthermore, advice
from legal services has specified that to ensure the council is not left liable in the
event of an accident, DfT regulations should be followed implicitly.

» DfT guidelines do not stipulate when and where segregation should be used over
unsegregation. However it is stated that: “Almost all off-road routes for cyclists
are used by pedestrians, and the potential for user conflict needs careful
consideration. Where there is potential for conflict, separating user flows is an

-11 -



Page 142

option but if room is limited, this may not be making best use of the width
available.”

» However, concerning areas where pedestrian and cyclist movements are likely to
conflict, such as at pedestrian crossings or at bus stops, DfT guidance states the
following: “If the footway and cycle track on the approach are segregated,
segregation should stop short of the waiting area (which should be shared use).”

44 Segregated provision

To avoid potential conflict with pedestrians, shared use provision incorporating
segregation should be considered in places where there are likely to be high
flows of both cyclists and pedestrians.

Note:- Cyclists are normally located nearest to the carriageway.

» A vertical change in level clearly demarcates the areas for the different users and

is particularly beneficial for those with mobility or visual impairments.
(Pedestrians are accustomed to the concept that ‘up equals safe’.)
Note:- A level change in these circumstances of 50mm is advisable, using a kerb
with a chamfered edge and ideally of a contrasting colour (to make more visible
where the level change occurs). Drainage and future sweeping needs careful
consideration at these points.

» A raised white line (diag.1049.1) should be used in other situations (if level
change cannot be provided or is deemed too expensive to implement), and is the
“norm” for segregated provision.

An example of a segregated facility within York. (Note that the Pedestrian symbol shown above is
no longer used by CYC on new infrastructure).

» Different surfacing (i.e. textures / paving / coloured material) can also be used,
particular in sensitive conservation areas, and which help to keep different users
on their side of the facility.

» The optimum width for segregated provision (for two-way cycles and pedestrians)

should be between 4.0 and 4.5 metres (2.0 metres for pedestrians and between
2.0 and 2.5 metres for cyclists — allowing bicycles to pass each other with ease).

-12 -



Page 143

Note:- The minimum width for a segregated provision (for two-way cycles and
pedestrians) is 3.0 metres.

To provide continuity, (and for a very short distance only), segregated cycle lanes
for one-way cycles and pedestrians can narrow to 2.4 metres wide if necessary
(1.2 metres each for cyclists and pedestrians).

Note:- In these situations it is likely that pedestrians may encroach onto the
cycle-part of the facility.

Minimum clearances (as set out at the beginning of this document) should also
be observed and if necessary added to the path width.

Note:- If the facility is immediately adjacent to a 40mph (plus) carriageway, it is
recommended to provide a 0.5 metre ‘buffer’ strip.

Signs (diag.957) should be used sparingly (to reduce street-clutter) but may be
required at each end of the section, or after any substantial break (such as after a
major junction).

Note:- Setting of these signs on bollards, set to one side of the facility, is
preferable to erecting a taller, more prominent metal post.

Frequent use of the cycle symbol (diag.1057) painted on the path should be used
to illustrate which side of the segregator is for which user.
Note:- Ensure these are painted “the right way around”.

Diagram 957.

Tactile paving is important on paths where there are likely to be high flows of both
pedestrians and cyclists, and particularly benefit the blind and partially sighted.
The ribbed (tramline/ladder) surface is used to indicate the start of a shared-use
route where cyclists and pedestrians are segregated from each other.

Unsegregated Provision

The provision of a shared-use path which is unsegregated should be considered
in circumstances where there are lower pedestrian/cycle flows and less potential
conflicts between the two users (such as in a rural area), or where there is limited
width available.

Widths for such paths should be at least 3.0 metres.

As a minimum, such paths can potentially go as narrow as 2.0 metres wide, but
only in very quiet locations or in exceptional circumstances.

Signs (diag.956) should be placed at each end of the section, and after any
substantial break (such as crossing side roads).

- 13-



4.6
>

Page 144

Note:- Again, avoid erecting too many signs and set them onto bollards if
possible.

Diagram 956.

Where Off-Road Paths Cross ‘Main’ Roads

Generally speaking, where traffic flows (two-way) are judged to be high, a signal
controlled (toucan) crossing is required.

Where traffic flows are still high but the provision of a toucan crossing appears
excessive, consideration should be given to providing a zebra crossing at this
point. It is not unlawful for cyclists to cycle across zebra crossings but, unlike
pedestrians, they do not have priority over traffic. However in most cases,
vehicles will naturally give way to someone waiting at a zebra, whether stood
waiting, or on a bike waiting.

Note:- Suggestions are that a minimum width of 4.0 metres be adopted where
cyclists share zebra crossings with pedestrians. To appease the DfT in this case,
the use of Cyclists Dismount signs (normally discouraged) can be used at the
crossing if felt necessary.

Where traffic flows (two way) are still judged to be substantial but not as high, an
un-controlled crossing can be considered (even on dual-carriageways), with
cyclists giving way to general traffic. A central island/refuge may need to be
provided, and is advisable on (busy) roads with 3 or more traffic lanes to cross so
that the crossing can be made in two movements. The central island/refuge
should be a minimum of 2.0 metres depth and a minimum of 2.0 metres wide (but
much wider and longer if can be accommodated). Warning signs (diag.950)
should be provided on the road approaching the crossing and consideration
should be made to the use of coloured surfacing (or keep-clear markings) on the
carriageway where the crossing actually is so that queuing traffic does not
obstruct the crossing.

Note:- Use of diag.1057 on the crossing itself is also advisable.

O

Diagram 950.

- 14 -



Page 145

» For crossings such as these, where cyclists do not have priority, the use of Red
coloured surfacing should be used.

An example of the use of coloured surfacing and cycle symbols to highlight a crossing point.

» All crossing points and transitions between surfaces (i.e. cycle path onto road)
should be completely flush to the carriageway if at all possible, and with sufficient
drainage.

» There is also an option to use ‘Elephants Footprints’ (WBM 294) on crossings
such as these in order to define the cycle route across the carriageway and add
extra emphasis to the crossing (although the footprints have no legal meaning).
Note:- These should be used where it is deemed necessary to make the
crossing as prominent to other road users as possible. In some historical
quarters or conservation areas, these might not always be appropriate.

WBM 294 — Elephants Footprints. An example of a cycle crossing using

(400x400mm, spaced 400mm apart) elephant footprints and coloured surfacing
(although in York, for a non-priority crossing,
the surface would be red)

4.7 Where Off-Road Paths Cross ‘Minor’ Roads

» Where traffic flows and speeds are judged to be low (i.e. quiet residential streets),
or the route crosses the entrances to private driveways, consideration should be
made (where appropriate) into providing a priority crossing over the minor road

-15 -



Page 146

with vehicles giving way to cyclists. As standard, this must incorporate a raised
crossing (i.e. flat-topped speed table) using coloured surfacing, to highlight the
priority crossing.

Note:- Giveway markings for motorists should be on the road and good
intervisibility between vehicles on the main road and cyclists on the track is
essential to enable drivers wishing to enter the side road to judge the speed and
positioning of cyclists. Drivers on the main road should be able to see the
crossing and cycle track approaches well in advance of the junction.

» For crossings such as these, where cyclists do have priority, Fern Green
coloured surfacing should be used.

Coloured surface z 1058.1

refemed hers / * Corduroy pavin

cycle track = = \ oy paving
crosses road " | faral Flat topped road bump

956 /
Naote:
It may be necassary to
W rastrict parking on the
v approaches 1o ensun

there is adequate
602 visibility

A standard design of a cycling priority crossing over a minor road

4.8 Adjacent-to-Road Cycle Paths

» Where adjacent-to-road cycle routes meet a side road, initial consideration
should always be given to reintroducing cyclists onto the main road in advance of
a junction. Cyclists then pass the junction (with priority) on the carriageway, then
rejoin the cycle track.

Reintroduction of the cycle path onto the carriageway, prior to a side road.

- 16 -



Page 147

» Where this is not possible, the second consideration should be to ‘bend out’ the
track. In these circumstances, the track approaches are deflected away from the
main carriageway to create a gap of one/two car lengths between the main road
and the crossing (i.e. 5.0+ metres). Whether this is done at a priority or a non-
priority cycling crossing point, this arrangement allows drivers turning into the
side road extra time to notice the crossing and provides somewhere for them to
potentially stop for crossing cyclists without obstructing traffic on the main road
and also allows a vehicle waiting to exit the side road to do so without blocking
the crossing point.

Note:- Again, a raised crossing (for cyclist priority crossings), coloured surfacing,
keep-clear markings, or potentially elephants footprints should also be
implemented.

An example of a ‘bend-out’. Note the use of coloured surfacing to highlight the crossing, although
somewhat excessive use of guard-rails.

» Crossings can be modified to mitigate hazards to cyclists and pedestrians.
Possible modifications include localised carriageway narrowing with tight kerb
radii.

» Where cyclists travelling along a busy carriageway need to turn right to join a
cycle track on the opposite side, it may be appropriate to get them to a central
refuge via a ‘jug-handle’ turning on the nearside.

Note:- Doing this gives cyclists a safe waiting area away from moving traffic and
provides good visibility for crossing the carriageway.

» Where a right turn is still required, but it is not possible to provide a turning such
as above, cycle refuges (with coloured surfacing) should be implemented within
the centre of the carriageway for those cyclists wishing to turn right.

5.0 MISCELLANEOUS
5.1 Road Closures & Turning Restrictions

» Where possible, cyclists should always be exempt from road closures and turning
restrictions, if safe to do so.

-17 -



Page 148

A cyclist exemption from a road closure, using a road hump.

» A short section of road closure or a one-way ‘plug’ (false one-way street) can be
used on low speed/flow roads instead of a full contraflow cycle lane and are
sometimes preferable as they do not require changes to parking restrictions.
Note:- Road Users must be alerted to the movements of cyclists in both
directions on the road.

An example of a simple one-way ‘plug’ (in Cambridge).

5.2 Transition between carriageway and cycle path etc

It is important that a cyclists safety and comfort is considered at these transitional
points. An upstand crossed at a narrow angle can be hazardous and therefore all
transitions between surfaces should always be completely flush, ideally omitting
kerbs altogether to provide a continuous surface.

Note:- If omitting kerbs is not possible, square edged / inverted kerbs should be
used. Drainage provision should always be considered to avoid pooling (and ice
in the winter).

- 18 -



Page 149

A smooth transition from road to path

» Where a dropped kerb at the carriageway is required, this should be wide enough
to accommodate cyclists turning at a reasonable speed, with a 4.0 metre
minimum radius be assumed when assessing entry angles (for turning cyclists).

5.3 Cycle Signs

» Every attempt should be made to mount any necessary signs to existing
posts/columns. All  post-mounted  signs relating to  cyclists
(directional/warning/informative) should be fixed in a way to prevent rotation
(square posts are best for this or the use of anti-rotational clips on standard
poles).

54 Cycle Barriers

» Barriers should not be used unless necessary. Most barriers erected will be to
prevent access to a route for motorcyclists (i.e. ‘A’ and ‘K’ barriers), but not
impede the way for cyclists and pedestrians. Of course, should barriers be
justified, different situations require different types of barrier, so for example a
downhill approach to a bridge/underpass may require a chicane to be erected to
slow down fast-travelling cyclists for safety reasons. TPU to advise.

» Cattle grids can be hazardous to cyclists and CYC Engineering Consultancy are
currently developing a solution to this issue. (Advice to follow at a later date.)

5.5 Cycle Parking

» The “norm” is for Sheffield Stands, placed a minimum of 1.0 metre apart from
each other, and placed at least 0.6 metres from any wall, parking spaces or road
edge.

» Wherever possible, stands should be sited in a position which is overlooked or

covered by CCTV, close to a buildings entrance and should be clearly
signposted.

-19 -



Page 150

Maintenance

» All facilities for cyclists should be designed with future maintenance needs in

mind. Sweeping and drainage are of particular need for consideration.

Advance Green Signals for Cyclists

» Work is currently underway to seek approval from the DfT for the trialing of pre-

signal arrangements for cyclists at certain hazardous junctions. Some safety
issues arise from cyclists and motorists making conflicting turning manoeuvres
and it is strongly felt that this could be mitigated by introducing advance green
signals for cyclists (as are standard at junctions in the Netherlands, Denmark and
Germany). This would allow cyclists extra time to get a ‘head-start’ from the ASL,
ahead of other traffic, whose respective signal would turn green several seconds

after the cyclist signal.

6.0 BIBLIOGRAPHY

DfT — Local Transport Note 2/08 — Cycle Infrastructure Design — Oct 2008
http://www.dft.qov.uk/pgr/roads/tpm/Itnotes/Itn208.pdf

Cycling England — Design Checklist & Guidance — Nov 2007

http://www.dft.gov.uk/cyclingengland/engineering-planning/design-checklist/

Nottinghamshire County Council — Cycling Design Guide — Oct 2006

http://www.nottinghamshire.gov.uk/home/traffic and travel/traffictravel-
cycling/cyclingdesignquide.htm

City of York Council Scrutiny Management Committee — Guidance on Sustainable
Development — Oct 2006

http://democracy.york.qov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=144&MId=1649&Ver=4

TfL — London Cycling Design Standards — Feb 2005

http://www.tfl.gov.uk/businessandpartners/publications/2766.aspx

7.0 CONSULTEES
Comments from John Grimshaw CBE, Special Adviser to Cycling England

Comments from members of Major Infrastructure Group, Cycling City York

Programme

2 Internal CYC Workshops with participation from:-  Transport Planning
Engineering Consultancy
Network Management
Highways Maintenance

-20 -



Page 151

Comments from ‘Cycling Champion’ Member
Comments from York Cycle Campaign
Comments from Halcrow Consultancy

Comments from Transport Initiatives Consultancy

Author: Richard Holland
Transport Planner — Strategy
Directorate of City Strategy
City of York Council

September 2009

-21 -



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153 Annex B

e
’44‘

| S
Ny CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

V.

City of York Council
Cycling Scheme Evaluation Tool

1. Foreword

There has been a desire to develop a ‘cycling model’ which would predict the
anticipated increase in cyclists using a facility once built. Unfortunately, on
investigation, and after discussions with other authorities and consultants, it has been
concluded that there is no such model in existence, although there is wide
recognition that one would be useful.

The first steps towards developing such a model was to identify those factors which
encouraged, and conversely, discouraged people from cycling.

When installing new cycling facilities in York, and with thorough before and after
monitoring, it may be possible in the future to use this to build up an evidence base
which would then give sufficient confidence to prioritise cycling in certain
circumstances and give an estimate for the anticipated increase in cyclists, although
this is not possible at present.

An extensive list of proposed cycling infrastructure works and/or improvements within
York has been identified. With limited time-scales and budgets, not all of these can
be undertaken, and it was recognised that those that can be undertaken need to be
justified and prioritised.

This Evaluation Tool has been designed as a simple means to make direct
comparisons of the relative benefits of one cycling infrastructure scheme against
those of another [Table 1]. The purpose of the Evaluation Tool is to assess each
individual scheme on its own merits, give each a score, and then subsequently
compare to other schemes in order to prioritise work programmes. In this way it is
intended that a database of indices for schemes past and present could be
established, against which future schemes can be assessed and compared.

Several example routes within the Cycling City Programme were used with the Tool
in order to adjust the weightings accordingly and develop a Tool which reflected
Transport Planners’ collective judgement on scheme priorities. The relative scoring
for three such recently completed schemes are shown in Table 2. Please note
however that before and after monitoring data is not yet available for these schemes.

For all current and future infrastructure schemes, before and after monitoring of
cyclist-usage must be undertaken so that accurate figures can be given regarding
increases in the number of cyclists using a facility (see the example in Annex 3). In
this way, it may then be possible in the near-future to cross reference the Evaluation
Tool score with the cost of a facility in order to estimate anticipated use of a proposed
facility and its value for money.



Page 154

2. Instructions

The Evaluation Tool is used by judging the proposed route/facility using a list of
factors: encouragers/discouragers to cyclists, each of which is weighted due to their
relative importance to cyclists.

Some heavily weighted factors have an option of scoring from 5 (maximum
encourager) to —5 (maximum discourager) where the factor is an important one which
greatly impacts on a facility.

With other less weighted factors the range is less broad (for example, from 3 to -2
etc) where a factor may impact slightly less on a cycle facility and is of less
importance.

A scoring of 0 for a factor is appropriate when a facility would be neither better, nor
worse than the status quo.

Once a score has been assigned to all factors, the total sum of these is the overall
cycling-benefits score of the proposed scheme (out of a possible maximum score of
38) and can be measured against the scores of other schemes, past and present, in
order to justify a scheme. In the case where several schemes need prioritising, the
highest scoring of the schemes should be the highest priority, subject to Officer's
discretion.



ROUTE / SCHEME:

Page 155

4 3 2 1 0 -1 -2 -3
Encouragers Discouragers
Score
The route gives the cyclist an 5¢<0->-5 The route gives no advantage to the
advantage over other traffic through cyclist over other traffic and may
“time saved” lengthen their journey time
The route is direct with no 4 < 0> -4 | The route deviates largely from
deviations from the desire-line the desire-line with cyclists
likely to use more direct
highway routes
The route is a major commuter route 5 & 0> -3 | Theroute is rarely used
and/or safer route to school, widely and/ or is a leisure
used route
The route links a large number | 4 < 0> -3 The route is isolated
of residents with a ‘destination’ with no ‘destination’
The new route vastly reduces 4 < 0->-3| The new route actually
the risk of accident to a cyclist, increases risk of
compared to previously accident compared with
previously
“Quick Win” — relatively cheap 4<0->-2| Potentially lots
to implement, with potentially a of expensive
large impact utilities
diversions
expected
The route is continuous | 3 < 0> -3 The route requires the
with no barriers, side- cyclist to stop and start
roads, cause for several times due to
stopping etc side-roads, signals,
barriers etc
The route has no 3¢ 0> -3 | Theroute incorporates
danger from high speed sharing road-space with
/ volume of traffic or high speed / volume of
potential conflicts with traffic or more
drivers opportunities for
conflicts
The route provides 3<€0>-2 The route is
connectivity with other purely ‘stand
cycle routes or alone’ / isolated
transport hubs
Popular scheme, with 3€0>-2 No support for
large public & Ward scheme from
Member ‘buy-in’ / any areas /
support local objections

Total =

Table 1




Page 156

Examples of the scoring of three recently completed Cycling City schemes when
inserted into the Evaluation Tool:-

ROUTE / SCHEME: Moor Lane Bridge

Encourager / Score Reasoning

Discourager
7 3 Advantageous over slow/queuing traffic
2 4 Very direct
3 5 Heavily used route to College and P&R site
¢ 4 As above (and also links to Tesco store)
5 2 Still some aspect of risk when riding on-road
6 -1 Kerblines moved
7 3 Continuous throughout
g 2 Some minor associated danger with riding alongside traffic
g 2 Provides some connectivity
7] 2 Fairly popular scheme

SCORE 26

ROUTE / SCHEME: Clifton Green

Encourager/ Score Reasoning
Discourager
7 4 Advantageous over slow/queuing traffic
2 4 Very direct
3 4 Well used commuter route
¢ 3 On main commuter route to City Centre
5 3 Much reduced risk than previously
6 -2 Expensive scheme with a lot of diversions etc
7 3 Continuous throughout
§ 2 Some minor associated danger with riding alongside traffic
g 3 Connects to many cycle and highway routes
7] 0 Balance between positive and negative opinions expressed
SCORE 24

ROUTE / SCHEME: Beckfield Lane (Phase |)

Encourager / Score Reasoning

Discourager
7 -2 Cyclist somewhat disadvantaged at side-roads
2 3 Mostly on desire-line except some side-road crossings
3 5 Safer route to school
¢ 3 Links residential area to school(s)
5 3 Much reduced risk than previously as off-road
6 0 Some works associated
7 -1 Straight route, but a few side-road crossings
g 1 Minor conflicts at side-road crossings
g 2 Connects to some other routes
7] 2 Support for safer route to school

SCORE 16

Table 2



Page 157 Annex C

e
’44‘

| S
Ny CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council
Cost/Benefit Matrix for Cycling Infrastructure

1. Foreword

A report commissioned by Cycling England and reported to them by SQW Consulting
in December 2008, included a matrix which showed the number of additional cyclists
which were needed in order to justify a given spend on a cycling infrastructure
project.

Several variables gave estimated annual monetary values for each additional cyclist
(cycling regularly for one year) including: health benefits; value of loss of life; NHS
savings; productivity gains; pollution; congestion; and ambience. Because
calculation is possible of the economic benefit of each cyclist, it is also possible to
use these combined values to show the number of new cyclists required to ensure
that an investment will at least break-even over the full life of the cycle facility
(assumed to be 30 years). Because facilities are varied in type and location, the
matrix also gave values for four different types: urban on-road; urban off-road, rural
on-road; and rural off-road cycle facilities (Table 1).

In this way, and through before and after monitoring of new cycle facilities, we can
estimate whether a scheme has been good value for money. It must be noted
however that this is difficult to quantify as usage tends to build up steadily (and
“accelerate”) from an initial boost and therefore year-on-year growth in cyclist
numbers is not usually uniform (see Malton Road example overleaf).

2. Cost/Benefit Matrix

Table 1: Number of cyclists needed to achieve a benefit to cost ratio of 1:1

Urban Rural Average
Scheme Cost
On-Road Off-Road On-Road Off-Road

£10,000 1 1 1 1 1

£25,000 3 3 3 3 3
£100,000 11 10 12 11 11

£250,000 27 25 30 28 27

£500,000 54 50 60 56 55

£750,000 80 75 90 83 82
£1,000,000 109 100 120 111 109
£1,250,000 134 125 149 139 136
£1,500,000 161 151 179 167 164
£1,750,000 187 176 209 195 191
£2,000,000 214 201 239 222 218




Page 158

For example, an investment of £100K on a rural, off-road scheme, requires an overall
increase of 11 more people cycling regularly for the life of the project. An investment
of £1M on an urban, on-road scheme would require 109 new cyclists. This means
that there must be 109 additional cyclists cycling at least 3 times a week throughout
the full life of the project (assumed to be 30 years). This does not mean that the
same people must continue to cycle, but that on average, there should be 109 more
cyclists each year than would be the case were the investment not made. Please
note that where the effect of the intervention is likely to be shorter than 30 years, the
number of extra cyclists will need to be higher.

These figures provide a simple and straightforward way to assess whether a cycling
project is likely to generate a positive return on investment.

It is also important to bear in mind that the investment will frequently contribute to
other objectives, such as increasing walking or use of public transport (and other LTP
objectives). In the case of these multi-modal schemes, only an appropriate
proportion of the costs of the investment should be attributed to cycling.

An example: Malton Road

Increase in Cyclists (see Table 2)

= In 1997 there was an average of 261 cyclists using this route (in both directions)
each day.

» From this point onwards there has been a fluctuating, but steadily increasing
number of cyclists using this route year on year, with large surges occurring when
new infrastructure has been constructed.

= By 2007 there was an average of 439 cyclists — An increase of 178 cyclists,
constituting a 68% increase over 10 years.

= Even if we accept that these years might have been ‘extremes’, and unfairly
biased, if we take the average growth in the number of cyclists from the Trend
Line (from just over 300 in 1997, to just over 400 in 2007), this still constitutes a
steady increase of approximately 33% in ten years.

Costs

» The implementation of ‘C’ in the table (phased introduction of off-road cycle
facilities from 2005) was done in combination with bus priority measures on this
highway and had an estimated cost of £1.1M for the entire scheme. An
estimated £600K was assigned to the cycle element of this scheme
(approximately 4km of off-road facilities).

= Using the matrix, we can estimate that £600K of infrastructure works would
achieve a benefit to cost ratio of 1:1 if the scheme created an additional
60 cyclists (approximately) for this urban, off-road route.

Results & Conclusion

» In fact, from a 2005 average daily usage figure of 346 cyclists, the actual
increase in number of cyclists using this route was raised to 439 in 2007 (an
increase of 93 cyclists), dropping slightly in 2008 to 414 cyclists (still an overall
increase of 68 cyclists from 2005 figures).

= Considering these are average daily figures and the matrix assumes cyclists
using a facility only three out of five days; and also that the lifespan of ‘a project’
is approximately 30 years; even after two/three years, the increase in cyclist
numbers has easily exceeded the 1:1 ratio and therefore justified the scheme and
proving that it had been “good value for money”.



Page 159

Table 2: Average daily 2-way flow of cyclists using Malton Road facilities

Trend Line

|

|

|

”
o o
o [Tl
<+ ™
moyy kem-g Ajiep aberany

500
450 -

200

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

1994

Year

Introduction of on-road facilities

A
B

Cc

Opening of the “Magic Roundabout”

Phased introduction of off-road facilities



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161 Agenda ltem 12

COUNCIL

Decision Session - Executive Member for City 20" October 2009
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

City of York’s Local Transport Plan 3 — Consultation Strategy

Summary

1. This report outlines the consultation strategy to be adopted for preparing York’s
Third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) to cover the period from 2011 onwards, and
seeks approval thereof.

Recommendations
2.  That the Executive Member for City Strategy is recommended to:

i Note the content of the report, particularly Table 1, which outlines the
proposed activities and timescales for producing LTP3 and Table 2, which
outlines the proposed consultation strategy;

ii.  Approve the consultation strategy proposed at Table 2.

iii. Grant delegated powers to the Assistant Director, in consultation with the
Executive Member City Strategy, to issue consultation documents for pre-
consultations on the Draft LTP3.

Reason: To enable the commencement of consultations required to prepare the
city’s Local Transport Plan 3.

Background

LTP3 Process

3. A report describing the process for preparing LTP3 and the influences on this was
presented to the Decision Session, Executive Member City Strategy on
1%t September 2009. In summary the report:

e reiterated the statutory duty to produce an LTP(3) before the City’s current
LTP(2) expires in April 2011;

e introduced the latest government guidance for preparing LTP3s, covering
issues such as consultation requirements; LTP3s comprising a long-term
strategy with shorter-term implementation (action) plans; using new powers



Page 162

introduced under the Transport Act 2008, and more local accountability for
LTP3 than for previous LTPs;

e referred to other national, regional and local policies and strategies, such as the
national carbon reduction strategy and York’s Sustainable Community Strategy,
that will influence the preparation of LTP3s;

e contained a Draft LTP3 Vision, and

e contained a table (see also below) identifying the various stages and timescales
for preparing LTP3.

Table 1 - LTP3 Preparation

Stage Date(s)
Approve LTP3 production process 1% September 2009
Approve long-term transport strategy and 6™ October 2009
consultation strategy
Commence initial consultation (for issues and October 2009
options)
Receive/analyse responses November — December 2009
Present consultation responses to Executive 5" January 2010

Prepare Draft LTP3 (with due consideration of, October 2009 — April 2010
consultation responses)

Present Draft LTP3 to Executive 24™ April 2010
Publish Draft LTP3 for consultation June 2010
Receive/analyse responses July — August 2010
Present consultation responses to Executive 14" September 2010
Prepare full report September — December 2010
Present full report to executive 1% February 2011
Publish LTP3 By 31 March 2011

Recommendation (ii) in the report stated [That the Executive Member for City
Strategy is recommended to:] ‘Approve the process proposed in Table 1, subject to
the presentation of the consultation strategy to the Executive Member for a decision
at a future date, prior to the commencement of consultations.” The initial date for
this decision was 6" October 2009 as shown in the above table, has, subsequently
been deferred to 20™ October 2009.

Proposed Consultation Strategy

The proposed LTP3 Consultation Strategy, prepared in partnership with the
Council’'s Marketing and Communications team, is contained at Table 2. It should
be noted that the timescale stated in Table 2 differs from that shown in Table 1, as it
shows two consultation stages prior to the publication of the Draft LTP3, instead of
the single consultation originally anticipated.



Page 163

Table 2 — LTP3 Consultation Strategy

Consultation Purpose Timescale Consultation / communication
stage methods and/ consultees
Issues and Identify the national, regional |Oct. 2009 to |Citywide consultation leaflet /
priorities and local issues and pressures [Jan. 2010 questionnaire, focus

that are likely to influence groups/workshops (including Local

LTP3 and seek public/ Strategic Partnership, Quality Bus

stakeholder views on setting Partnership, Equalities Fair,

the priorities for action. business forums ‘Talkabout’ Panel
and back-chat online citizens panel),
public exhibitions/events and
Council website.

Report back through Officer In |Feb. 2010

Consultation (OIC) with

Executive Member City

Strategy

Options and Present a series of scenarios |[Apr. 2010 to |Citywide consultation leaflet /
consequences |(options) based on priorities May 2010 questionnaire in April issue of

and their potential ‘Your City’, focus groups /

consequences to seek public/ workshops (including Local Strategic

stakeholder views on informing Partnership, Quality Bus

the policies and measures in Partnership, Equalities Fair,

LTP3. business forums ‘Talkabout’ Panel
and back-chat online citizens panel),
public exhibitions/events and
Council website

Report back through Officer In |May 2010

Consultation (OIC) with

Executive Member City

Strategy

Draft LTP3 Seek public/ stakeholder views |Sep 2010 to  |Reference copies of Draft LTP3 plus
on the policies and measures |Oct. 2010 leaflets / questionnaires available in
in the draft LTP3. Council offices, libraries and leisure

centres etc., focus groups /
workshops (including Local Strategic
Partnership, Quality Bus
Partnership, Equalities Fair,
business forums ‘Talkabout’ Panel
and back-chat online citizens panel),
ward committee meetings, public
exhibitions/events and Council
website

Report back through Executive |[Nov 2010

and take Executive’s advice
forward for developing full
LTP3




Page 164

Long-term Transport Strategy and Consultation Strategy

A draft long-term transport strategy has also been prepared and is due to be
presented to The Local Development Framework Working Group, in October 2009,
for its consideration.

Corporate Objectives

LTP3 is a cross-cutting document that encompasses and contributes to all of the
council’s outward facing corporate priorities (see also paragraph 44). It also
parallels, to some extent, work that is being done by the Traffic and Congestion Ad-
hoc Scrutiny Committee, which may help inform the production of LTP3.

Implications
This report has the following implications:

¢ Financial — Consultations for previous LTPs have cost in the order of £20,000 or
more to undertake. These costs were, predominantly, revenue costs and it is
likely that likely revenue cost are going to be similarly significant for producing
LTP3.

¢ Human Resources (HR) — A Transport Planner with a specific remit to assist in
the production of LTP3 has recently been appointed. This is a temporary
appointment (1 fte) until April 2011. assistance from the Marketing and
Communications team has been factored into the consultation costs.

e Equalities — LTP3 will be subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment and it is
also anticipated that officers preparing LTP3 will attend the Equalities Impact
Assessment Fair on 5™ November 2009.

e Legal — There are no implications at present.

¢ Crime and Disorder — There are no implications at present.

¢ Information Technology (IT) — There are no IT implications at present.

¢ Property — There are no implications at present.

e Sustainability — It is anticipated that LTP3 will develop and implement
sustainable transport solutions.

e Other — No comments.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main risk that has
been identified in this report could lead to Council not undertaking consultations on

LTP3 in compliance with Government Guidance, thereby undermining the validity
the LTP3 produced.



Page 165

10. Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for the recommendation
is less than 16 and thus at this point the risks need only to be monitored as they do
not provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.

Ward Member comments

11. Not appropriate at this stage.

Non Ruling Group Spokespersons' comments

12. Non-ruling Group members have been advised and their responses are awaited.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
lan Stokes Damon Copperthwaite

Principal Transport Planner Assistant Director (City Development &
Transport Planning Unit Transport)

Ext. 1429 City Strategy

Report Approved Date 8 October 2009

Wards Affected All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

None

Annexes

None



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION SESSION — EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY

TUESDAY 20 OCTOBER 2009

Annex of Additional Comments received from Members and residents since the agenda was published

AGENDA | REPORT RECEIVED FROM | COMMENTS
ITEM
4 Beckfield Lane — Extension | Debbie Pagliaro

of Cycle Route
(page 17)

(Beckfield Lane)

| would like to confirm my original support of the CYC proposal to
Extend the Shared Path on Beckfield Lane.

| also support the Amendments to the proposal to allow the process
to continue without further delay.

With regard to consideration for a new dedicated crossing over the
Wetherby Road, north of the mini roundabout, linking The Ridgeway
with the New Path Extension, | understand that there are technical
complications which require more study and that these will be
undertaken at a later date rather than delay the process at this
stage.

Additional Traffic
Survey
Information
(paragraphs 8 and
19)

A 12 hour traffic survey (7am to 7pm) was undertaken on Thursday
8" October 2009 south of Knapton Lane. This survey recorded
around 7300 vehicle movements, 300 cycle movements on-road
and 100 on the footway.

The survey also included a pedestrian crossing count on Beckfield
Lane between the junction of Knapton Lane and south of Fellbrook
Avenue. This was to assess the justification for a controlled
pedestrian crossing facility to be installed in this area, as requested
by some local residents. The survey recorded 108 pedestrian
crossing movements south of Fellbrook Avenue, 69 crossing
movements outside the shops north of Fellborook Avenue, and 56 in
the vicinity of the speed table south of Knapton Lane. These 12
hour totals are quite low, and show that there is no strong focus for
crossing movements in this area. Because of the position of the 2
bus stops, junctions and driveways on this length of Beckfield Lane
it would only be practical to install a zebra crossing somewhere
around the existing speed table just south of Knapton Lane.

/9| 8bed

Xauuy epuaby



AGENDA
ITEM

REPORT

RECEIVED FROM

COMMENTS

4

Beckfield Lane — Extension
of Cycle Route (cont.)

(page 17)

Local residents

Pedestrians south of Fellbrook Avenue crossing to the bus stops or
shops are unlikely to take a detour to this location approximately
75m north to use a crossing when it would be quicker to wait for a
gap in the traffic closer to the pedestrian desire line. The average
waiting time to cross the road was also surveyed and this was five
seconds. The existing speed tables and traffic calmed environment
are therefore considered to provide good conditions for people to
cross the road in this area, and a single facility such as a zebra or
pelican is not considered to be justified for the numbers crossing at
this point.

Additional Consultation Feedback

Two extra pieces of correspondence have been received from
residents of Beckfield Lane, one in support of the scheme, and one
against. The resident who opposes the scheme raises many of the
issues that have already been discussed in the report, and in
addition:

Wheelie bins and recycling boxes would present a
hazard to pedestrians and cyclists where the verge
is reduced.

Officer response

The off-road cycle track from Boroughbridge Road to Ostman Road
has been in use for a number of months and this issue has not been
reported as a problem. As part of the consultation, we seek the
views of the council's operations manager for waste collection,

and he also raised no issues of concern.

I work shifts so the noise and disruption during
the construction works would be unacceptable.

Officer response

Unfortunately, noise is unavoidable during construction works. Every
step however, is taken to ensure any disruption is kept to a
minimum.

89| ebed



AGENDA
ITEM

REPORT

RECEIVED FROM

COMMENTS

4

Beckfield Lane — Extension
of Cycle Route (cont.)

(page 17)

Clir A D’Agorne

Carr Infant School

Web based survey (paragraph 7 noted the responses made to the
webpage at the time of writing. Some further responses have been
made, and the total summary is as follows) - The opinion survey
published on the website generated seven responses. Five of these
residents cycle on Beckfield Lane, three use the existing off-road
path, and four said they would use the proposed section. Three said
that a complete cycle route would encourage them to start cycling or
cycle more. Overall, four respondents thought the proposals were a
very good or fairly good idea.

Other Member Views

Does not support the scheme, and believes the funding should be
spent on more strategic areas of the network such as Fishergate

gyratory.

Local Schools

Supports initiatives that encourage walking and cycling

11

Cycling Infrastructure
within York — Standards,
Evaluation Tool and Cost
Benefit Matrix

(page 125)

Clir R Potter

| am very happy to support the innovative work of Council Officers in
producing the document 'Standards and Principles for designing
cycling infrastructure'. It is a very useful tool to help people
understand York's approach. | am also supportive of the Evaluation
Tool and Cost Benefit Matrix. These can only help us to understand
increases in usage due to changes made to cycling routes and the
cost implications of achieving the increases in terms of value for
money.

York Blind and
Partially Sighted
Society

Commented that if the Standards were to be adopted throughout
York, then it was important that they took full account of the safety
of all pedestrians, but particularly older and vulnerable pedestrians.
They believed that pedestrian groups, and in particular those
representing vulnerable pedestrians (including blind and partially
sighted people), should be consulted when designing new shared
use facilities. As pedestrians who are disabled, they felt that they
should be involved with decisions which are made which had the
potential to impact on their freedom of movement, not just today, but

691 abed



AGENDA
ITEM

REPORT

RECEIVED FROM

COMMENTS

well into the future."

12

City of York’s Local
Transport Plan 3 —
Consultation Strategy

Clir R Potter

Clir A D'Agorne

Clir I Gillies

Welcome the consultation Strategy, this is a very important
consultation that should ensure maximum participation from
residents. We need to ensure people understand the long term
implications of LTP3, the need to 'join' York to regional and national
initiatives - our connectivity, the links between transportation and
land use and the important impact transport has on the economic,
social and environmental sustainability of the City. So explaining this
context is essential. | look forward to hearing the priorities of
residents.

If you could expand on these bullet points in the form of a draft
report | would be happy to comment. In particular | would be
interested to see SMART objectives that identify how compliance
with Air Quality maxima in the AQMA's will be achieved if we are still
in breach by the start of LTP3.

| would hope that the outcomes of the residents survey will help to
inform the LTP consultation strategy.

| trust that proposals will pay due regard to the needs of the villages
particularly in Rural West York.

Bus services are being removed, and speeding is also a big concern
particularly in Rufforth, as is access of HGV,s accessing Harewood
Whin.

0.1 8bed



	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Beckfield Lane - Extension of Cycle Route
	Annex A - Beckfield Lane outline proposals
	Annex B - Beckfield Lane proposals
	Annex C - petition
	Annex D - Other issues raised by residents
	Annex E - Beckfield Lane amended
	Annex F - Beckfield Lane cycling survey

	5 Petition Concerning the Erection of Bollards and Chicanes to Prevent Speeding on Etty Avenue
	Annex A Etty Avenue
	Annex B
	Annex C

	6 Petition concerning Speeding Traffic at the Entrance to West Bank Park from the Junction of New Lane and Hill Street
	Annex A
	Annex B

	7 Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS) Policy
	8 Street Furniture Removal
	Annex A

	9 A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements
	Annex 1 Option A Rev 1
	Annex 2 Option B
	Annex 3 Proposed Consultation Area

	10 Crichton Avenue - Proposed Improvements for Cyclists
	Annex A (1 of 2)
	Annex A (2 of 2)
	Annex B (1 of 2)
	Annex B (2 of 2)
	Annex C (1 of 2)
	Annex C (2 of 2)

	11 Cycling Infrastructure within York - Principles, Standards and Evaluation Tool
	Annex A - Cycling Infrastructure Standards
	Annex B - Cycling Evaluation Tool
	Annex C - Cycling CostBenefit Matrix

	12 City of York's Local Transport Plan 3 - Consultation Strategy
	

